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On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”) of Goldin Properties Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual report of the
Company together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31st March, 2009.

RESULTS

The Group recorded a net profit of HK$730 million for the year (2008:
HK$687 million), representing an increase of 6.3%. Basic earnings per share
of the Group decreased by 7.4% to HK$59.73 cents. The Group had no

turnover from continuing operations for the year (2008: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group divested and ceased to engage in digital and electronic consumer
products business, so as to focus on the property investment and
development business. The move allowed resources to be redeployed and

utilized in a more efficient and effective manner.

PRC property development business

The Group ventured into the property development business in the PRC in
2007, in response to the strong appetite for qualities properties as the
Chinese economy continues its robust growth.The Group aims to become a

premier developer of high-end properties in the PRC.

In addition to the two plots of land acquired in the previous year, the Group
announced the acquisition of three additional plots of land in Tianjin
Municipal during the year. All these three plots of land are adjacent to the
previous two plots of land acquired, will be developed under the Tianjin

Goldin Metropolitan project.

The first plot of land acquired during the year is located at Haitai Inner Ring
Er Lu, Xiging District, Tianjin Municipal. Its land plot number is Jinxi Qinghai
(Gua) 2006-077 and it has a total site area of approximately 275,644.2

square metres.

The second plot of land acquired is located in the Central Business District
of Huayuan Chenye District (Outer Ring), Tianjin Municipal. Its land plot
number is Jin Huayuan (Gua) 2005-079 and it has a site area of 53,445.1

square metres.
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Chairman’s Statement
FHERES

The Group later announced the acquisition of another plot of land, which is
located in Xinjishu Chenye Yuan Outer Ring District, Tianjin Municipal. The
land plot number is Jinxi Qinghai (Gua) 2006-046 and it has a total site area

of 101,428.50 square metres.

Tianjin’s economic development is among the fastest growing in the PRC.
The Group has seized this business opportunity to develop the flagship
Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan project. This composite development will
transform the area into a community which meets everyone’s needs in living:
quality accommodation for residents, an excellent office space and working
environment for local and overseas corporations, as well as shopping and
leisure facilities. The project kicked off after the foundation ceremony took

place in December 2007.

The Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan project is a high-end composite
development, with an aggregate planned gross floor area of around |.6
million square metres. To form a new urban centre and set new benchmarks
of quality in Tianjin, the project comprises an international central business
district. It interlocks with a luxury shopping mall, within easy access to a
high-end residential zone and is adjacent to a lush green international

standard polo club with polo fields and club house.

The Central Business District comprises four functional areas: Commercial,

Entertainment, Hotel & Convention and Serviced Apartment.

Goldin Finance [17 is the focal point of the Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan
project. It will be an iconic building in the PRC with a recommended height
of 600 metres and |17 floors. Goldin Finance |17 offers international Grade-

A standard office accommodation and 6é-star hotel.

The Central Business District also comprises the banking and finance
building, the twin towers, the international convention centre, the
headquarters buildings, a hip hotel, a serviced apartment, the broadway

theatre and a contemporary shopping facilities.

The high-end residential district comprises a number of high-end, multi-
storey residential buildings and low-density, residential and town house.The

district has a total site area of 494,600 square metres.
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Another jewel on the crown of this project is the Tianjin Goldin
Metropolitan Polo Club. Designed in modern European architecture style,
Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club comprises a polo clubhouse, an
outdoor dining area, two international standard polo fields together with
training facilities, auxiliary polo sports facilities and a theme park. Tianjin
Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club will play a key role in hosting international
polo tournaments and performances. The Polo Club has a total site area of

898,800 square metres.

Phase | Development will include the high-end residential district, the Polo
Club and preliminary development of Goldin Finance 117.The three phases
of development is expected to take approximate five years to complete. The
properties may be used for re-sale or rental purposes depending on

prevailing market conditions.

The target clientele includes a broad spectrum of multinational corporations,
senior executives stationed in Tianjin, businessmen, locals looking for high-

end quality residence and local government bureaus.

The project is strategically located in Tianjin. It is conveniently served by
public transport and easily accessible to the city centre and Beijing. It takes
only around 20 minutes to reach Tianjin city centre by car from the site, and
an exit of Line no.3 of Tianjin Metro will be located close to the site. With
the opening of Beijing-Tianjin intercity rail in August 2008, commuting
between Beijing and Tianjin by rail takes only about 27 minutes. The traveling
time by vehicles could be reduced by one hour with the opening of the
second phase of Jingjintang Expressway in June 2008. A new terminal of
Tianjin Binhai International Airport was opened in May 2008, which also
makes traveling to Tianjin by air more convenient. It takes around 25 minutes

to travel from the site to the airport by car.

Consumer electronics business

With foresight and agility, the Group divested the digital and electronic
consumer products business to focus its capital and management resources
on property investment and development. The move was approved by
shareholders in an extraordinary general meeting held on 28th October,
2008. The profit of development and sale of the digital consumer products
operation for the year was HK$ 205 million (2008: HK$240 million). In light
of the economic uncertainties ahead and gloomy consumer market, the

Group believes the disposal was a right move.
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Chairman’s Statement
FHERES

NEW COMPANY NAME, NEW BUSINESS FOCUS

To reflect the change in focus of the Group’s corporate strategy to property
development and to align the Company with the Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan
project, the name of the Company was changed to “Goldin Properties
Holdings Limited SR i R B MR 2 B ” on 6th November, 2008.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Working capital and bank balances and cash
The Group’s working capital as at 3Ist March, 2009 amounted to HK$2,979
million, representing a decrease of approximately 22.5% compared with last

year.

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group had approximately HK$1.3 billion in cash,
compared with approximately HK$2.8 billion last year. The strong cash
position has paved the way to finance the working capital requirements of

the Group.

The current ratio of the Group improved from 3.25 times in the previous

financial year to 4.16 times for the year.

Bank and other borrowings

Total short-term bank borrowings decreased from HK$1.292 billion last year
to nil as at 3Ist March, 2009. The gearing ratio (defined as total bank
borrowings on shareholders’ funds) decreased from 32% as at 3Ist March,
2008 to zero as at 31st March, 2009.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
The Group’s transactions are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi (RMB). The Group did not face significant risk from exposure

to foreign exchange fluctuations for the year.

The use of financial derivative instruments is strictly controlled and solely
for management of the Group’s underlying exposures. It is the Group’s

policy not to enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st March, 2009.

PROSPECTS

2008 had been a difficult year for all industries. The financial tsunami had a
serious impact on the global economy and slowed down the pace of the
PRC’s economic development. Still, purchasing power and housing demand in
the PRC are expected to remain robust because of strong household savings

there.

Tianjin is positioned as the economic center in the northern China by the
PRC Government, and thanks to favourable government policies, the Group
is optimistic with the prospects of property development in Tianjin. Tianjin’s
economic development is among the fastest in the PRC. Despite the difficult
economic times, according to a report by China’s Ministry of Commerce,
Tianjin’s FDI utilized amounted to USD1.083 billion in the first quarter of
2009, up 21.18% compared with the same period in 2008. It shows economic
activities were still active in Tianjin and that it remains a popular destination

of foreign investment in the PRC.

In view of the potential economic development of Tianjin as the next
economic powerhouse in the fast-developing PRC after Shenzhen and
Shanghai, more businesses are expected to set up their offices in Tianjin and
more people will be visiting and working in Tianjin. This would boost demand
for quality residential and commercial properties, and Goldin Properties is

ready to grasp the opportunities ahead.

We are confident in turning crisis into opportunity. The slowing global
economy resulted in lower cost of construction materials, which allows the
Group to purchase the best materials available and benefits its property

business.
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Chairman’s Statement
FHERES

Leveraging on its strong cash position, the Group is committed to its
property development business in the PRC. We are eager to further expand
our land bank should such opportunities arise, so as to ensure sustainable
growth in our property development business. While we aim to replicate the
Central Business District model of our Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan project
in future projects in other cities throughout the PRC, we would also
consider other types of real estate development with good potentials. We
shall develop high-end and sizable land for large-scale, premier property
projects with both commercial and residential components. We anticipate to
create demand for residential properties by establishing commercial centres
in first- and second-tier cities, targeting buyers with higher purchasing power
and benefiting from strong GDP growth. We are confident that the “Goldin”
brand name will firmly establish itself in the PRC with the completion of

phase one development of the Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan project.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year, the Company acquired the entire equity interest in Tianjin
Hi-Tech New Star Property Development Company Limited (“Tianjin New
Star Property”) at a consideration of RMBI,420 million from Tianjin Hi-Tech
Holding Group Company Limited. The principal assets of Tianjin New Star
Property is the right to acquire the land use right of a parcel of land located
at Haitai Inner Ring Er Lu, Xiqing District, Tianjin Municipal. Its land plot
number is Jinxi Qinghai (Gua) 2006-077 and it has a total site area of

approximately 275,644.2 square metres.

On 10th June, 2008, the Company entered into an agreement under with it
conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interest in a subsidiary, #A B #{
R O%RIYI) BBR2A A Matsunichi Digital Technology (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (“Matsunichi Digital Technology”) for a cash consideration of
approximately RMB100 million to Grace Dragon International Holdings
Limited, a private company the issued share capital of which is ultimately
beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Pan Sutong (“Mr. Pan”), Chairman of Group.
Matsunichi Digital Technology is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established in the PRC in May 2003, but has not carried out any business

since its establishment.
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On 25th August, 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with
Absolute Glory Limited (“Absolute Glory”), as supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 25th September, 2008 under which the
Company conditionally agreed to sell and Absolute Glory conditionally
agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of Best Concord Group
Limited (“Best Concord”), for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$717.3 million. The move constituted a substantial disposal by the
Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and was approved

by shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting on 28th October, 2008.

On 19th December, 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with
Tianjin Hi-Tech Property Development Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech”)
in respect to the acquisition of Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin Investment Limited
(“Hi-Tech Goldin”) and a shareholder’s loan owed by Hi-Tech Goldin to
Tianjin Hi-Tech for a total consideration of RMB334.16 million. The principal
asset of Hi-Tech Goldin is the land use right of a parcel of land located in
the Central Business District of Huayuan Chenye District (Outer Ring),
Tianjin Municipal. Its land plot number is Jin Huayuan (Gua) 2005-079 and

has a site area of 53,445.1 square metres.

On 26th December, 2008, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Tianjin Hi-Tech Development Company Limited (“Hi-Tech
Development”) in respect to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in
Tianjin Huading Real Estate Limited (“Huading”) for a total consideration of
RMB390 million. The principal assets of Huading are the land use right of a
parcel of land located in Xinjishu Chenye Yuan Outer Ring District, Tianjin
Municipal, with a land plot number Jinxi Qinghai (Gua) 2006-046 and a total
site area of 101,428.50 square metres, as well as the operating rights of the
sports theme park next to the Central Business District of Huayuan Chenye

District (Outer Ring), Tianjin Municipal.
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Chairman’s Statement
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On I5th January, 2009, the Company and Matsunichi Global Investment
Limited (“Matsunichi Global Investment”) entered into (i) an agreement in
relation to the disposal of the entire issued and paid-up capital of Ocean
Talent Limited (“Ocean Talent”) and the assignment of the total outstanding
amount owed to the Group (other than Matsunichi Digital Technology
Limited (“MD Taiwan”) and Matsunichi Technology (Singapore) Pte. Limited
(“MT Singapore”)), as of the date of completion of the disposal at a total
consideration of approximately HK$162.7 million; (ii) an agreement in
relation to the disposal of the entire paid-up capital of MD Taiwan and the
assignment of the total outstanding amount owed to the Group (other than
Ocean Talent and MT Singapore) as of the date of completion of the disposal
at a total consideration of HK$I; and (iii) an agreement in relation to the
disposal of the entire issued and paid-up capital of MT Singapore and the
assignment of the total outstanding amount owed to the Group (other than
Ocean Talent and MD Taiwan) as of the date of completion of the disposal at
a total consideration of HK$509,000 by the Company to Matsunichi Global
Investment. The principal assets of Ocean Talent are the trademarks of
“Matsunichi”, “#A B ” and “ :r} ”, which are registered under class 9 (for
products including consumer electronic products) in Hong Kong and in
countries or districts outside the PRC. The trademarks of “Matsunichi”, “ 12
= ':'r;'i”and “BITSEJ5 " are registered under class 7 (for products
including machine and machine tools) or class 9 or class || (for products

including household appliances) in the PRC.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group had about 83 (2008: 738) employees. The
remuneration policy and package of the Group’s employees are structured
by reference to market terms and statutory requirements where
appropriate. In addition, the Group provides other staff benefits such as
medical insurance, mandatory provident fund and a share option scheme to

its employees.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend (2008: nil).
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APPRECIATION

The soundness of our Board governance, the excellence of our management

and staff and the trust of our shareholders underpin the success of the
Group. As we forge ahead, | would like to express my thanks and
recognition towards the Group’s management team and employees on behalf
of the Board. Their dedication and commitment to the Group has been vital
in achieving the successes of the past year. Thanks are due also to the
Group’s highly-valued business associates and of course the shareholders for

their loyalty and support over the year.

On behalf of the Board
Goldin Properties Holdings Limited
Chairman

Pan Sutong

Hong Kong, 4th June, 2009
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Corporate Governance Report
EREIWE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to being a transparent and
responsible organization which is open and accountable to the shareholders.
The Board believes that good corporate governance provides a framework
and platform that is essential for and advantageous to effective management

and successful business growth.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange (the “Listing

Rules”) as its code of practice.

Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2009, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code except for the code provisions
A.2.l and A4.1, details of and considered reasons for which are set out

below.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the guidelines for the Directors’ dealings in the

securities of the Company.

Upon specific enquiry made by the Company, all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
for the year ended 31st March, 2009.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the following

Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Professor Huang Xiaojian

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun (appointed on Ist April, 2008)

Mr.Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond (appointed on 8th August, 2008)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny

The biographical details of each Director are disclosed on pages 19 to 21 of

this annual report.

The Board is collectively and ultimately responsible for how the Company is
managed, its strategic direction and performance. The Board meets to plan,
decide and review these matters, which resolutions are put to a vote. In
particular, approval of the Board is required for adopting the strategy of the
Group from time to time, major acquisitions and disposals of the Group,
major capital investments, dividend policy and recommendation, appointment
and retirement of Directors and senior management, their remuneration
policy and other major operational and financial matters. Day-to-day
operations of the Group and implementation of the Board’s decisions and

strategy are delegated to the Company’s management team.

The Board is collectively responsible for preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group which were prepared on a going concern basis.
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Also, there is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit

Committee regarding the selection of the auditors.

The Board has also conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of

internal control of the Group and is satisfied with the results of the review.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 31st March, 2009, the Board at all times satisfied the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-Executive Directors (per rule 3.10(1)) with at least
one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management

expertise (per rule 3.10(2)).

Each Independent Non-Executive Director has, pursuant to the guidelines
set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, confirmed his/her independence and

is continued to be considered by the Company to be independent.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year in addition to the
resolutions passed by means of resolutions in writing of all Directors.
Notices of at least 14 days were given for regular Board meetings to give all
Directors the opportunities to attend. Special Board meetings were held
whenever necessary. Details of individual attendance of each Director are as

follows:

BIAEBPITES

RBE-ZZENF=A=1T-HLFER EE8
REERBEIFE LTRAEBEEZEL =8B
FHTESZHRTE RERAE310(1)F) - MER

ELO-EBIUFUTESHEEECEXERAE
AEEBMBEREXRAE (REARE3.1002)
f&)

FBUFHTESC (RELHRAE313FEI 2
o) BREABUMREERAARARERBLAL -

BRUAZEESERRAERVABBZIRERN &
EEREEFEEHETEE - EHESEERY
BHEDTOREBH LB ESEEHERE
HE - -EEZERSRTEZERIER - RES
BB HEFEOT

No. of Board meetings

held during the

Director’s term of office

in the financial year

No. of Board

RAMBEREESHE meetings Attendance
HEEETZ attended rate
Name of Director EEfa EEERY HEEFERY HE %=
Mr. Pan Sutong BRELE 10 10 100%
Professor Huang Xiaojian BEZEHYR 10 4 40%
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun BBELLE
(appointed on Ist April, 2008) (R=—ZFZENFHOA-RAEZMA) 10 6 60%
Mr.Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond TERxRE
(appointed on 8th August, 2008) (R=ZEZENENBNBEZH) 6 6 100%
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence REBESE 10 4 40%
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen RENEL 10 4 40%
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny BERBEL 10 4 40%
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Under the CG Code, code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual for a balance of power and authority.

The Company understands this division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer. Traditionally, the chairman provides
leadership to the board of directors and formulate, together with the board,
the business strategies and long-term objectives of the company whilst the
chief executive officer carries out the decisions made by the board of
directors and, with the support of the executive directors, is responsible for

the day-to-day management and operation of the company’s business.

Currently, Mr. Pan Sutong is serving both as the Company’s Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. However, the Board considers that this situation will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company. This is because the balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operations of the Board which comprises
experienced and high caliber individuals with demonstrated integrity. Further,
decisions of the Board or collective decisions made by way of majority
voting. The Board believes that this structure is conductive to strong, prompt

response and efficient management and implementation.

Non-Executive Directors

Under the CG Code, code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term but are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Board believes that such
practice will offer stability at the Board level while at the same time,
independence is safeguarded by the necessary rotation, retirement and re-

election procedures which involves shareholders’ approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee of the Company is responsible for
formulating and making recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy

and structure of the Directors’ and the senior management’s remuneration.

Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2009, the Remuneration Committee
comprised Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr.

Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence and Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen.

During the financial year ended 3Ist March, 2009, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review and discuss the remuneration
packages of both the Executive and Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Details of individual attendance of each member are as follows:

EFEZEE

ESZ2HH
ARBAZHEHEESERBHTFAREZESRER
BEEAEBMERRRABROESEFHERE

REZ-ZEZAF=ZR=+-HLERAFE  FMH
ZEEMBEHELLE FTNEESXRE) BERL
ERREXELTAR -

REZE-ZEZNF=A=1T-ALYMBFE  FMH

ZEGETT-RE8RE  URFRHARATREL
FHTESZFMNAR - BEREZERHERR
mr

No. of meeting

held during
the financial year No. of meeting Attendance
Name of Remuneration HFHNZEEE REAMBEE attended rate
Committee member REZEA BITZERAY HEERRY HE %=
Mr. Pan Sutong BEELE | | 100%
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence RERGELE | | 100%
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen RENHEL I I 100%
Nomination of Directors REES

The Company does not have a nomination committee. Instead, the Board is
responsible for selection and appointment of its members and for
nominating appropriate person for election by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting, either to fill casual vacancies or as an addition to the
existing Directors. The Board will take into consideration of the expertise
possess by the candidates and the relevance of such expertise to the

Group’s business in selecting and recommending candidates for directorship.

The Board had nominated Mr. Zhou Xiaojun and Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan,
Edmond as Executive Directors of the Company respectively on Ist April,
2008 and 8th August, 2008. The individual attendance at Board meetings has

been set out above.

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED 2009 Annual Report

ARRAERIREEZESE o JiZ CEZEREN
ERAIGESERETREBEARERRERR
BERELES (Wﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬂiﬁﬁ}%ﬁﬁﬁi@ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
2) ESERERENERESREANSZERE
AZBRE#E EZ%%¥E$$¥%Z$EE§'I§°

EZg0R-EENEFNA-ARZZEZNEN
ANBREZARERERTERAAERFLTHT
ES -EFE2ABERERCRLXHS -



Remuneration of Auditors

During the financial year, fees paid/payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
auditor of the Company for audit services was approximately HK$2,670,000
and for non-audit services was approximately HK$1,649,000, which include

fees for provision of tax services.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company comprises the three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence (Chairman of the

Audit Committee), Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen and Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the CG

Code. The functions of the Audit Committee include:

. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any

questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;
2. to review of financial information of the Group; and

3. to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system and internal

control procedures.

During the financial year, the Audit Committee held two meetings at which
the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control matters and the re-appointment of the auditor
were reviewed and discussed. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company
was present at each of such meetings to report and explain to and answer
questions from the Audit Committee regarding the financial reporting
procedures and results of and internal control safeguards implemented by

the Company.
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Details of individual attendance of each Audit Committee member are as

follows:

BEEREEEMEZERERERERAT

No. of meetings

held during
the financial year No. of meetings Attendance
Name of Audit BERZEE RAMBER attended rate
Committee member BEZHEE BzEdRy HEERAH g%
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence REB S 4E 2 2 100%
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen RENEL 2 2 100%
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny HERBEL 2 2 100%
Internal Controls P B Es =
The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system and for EZEEEARECANERRARRTHNE -
reviewing its effectiveness. The review should cover the controls such as BENTFERBEEREELERMEE - €& - B

financial, operational, compliance and risk management. During the financial
year, the Board had been assisted by the Audit Committee in reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. No material
deficiencies have been identified so far. The Audit Committee and the Board
considered the Group’s internal control system was effective and that there
was no significant area of concern, which might affect the interests of the

shareholders of the Company.

The Group will use its best endeavor to implement changes to further

improve the Company’s internal control system whenever necessary.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has established different communication channels such as (i)
holding of annual and extraordinary general meetings to provide a forum for
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (ii) sending corporate
documents and releasing announcements to disseminate the latest activities
of the Group to the shareholders; and (iii) via the Company’s website to

provide an electronic means of communication.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pan Sutong, aged 46, is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and is responsible for the overall strategic planning of the
Group. Mr. Pan has over 22 years of experience in trading and manufacturing
of electronic products in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United States of
America. In 1993, he founded the Group which is principally engaged in the
manufacturing, distribution, research and development of advanced
electronic products including thin film transistors television, video telephone
and portable computer memory devices. He also has profound experience in
finance and property development. Mr. Pan is also the chairman and a non-
executive director of Fortuna International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
530), a company incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, and is responsible for its overall strategic

planning.

Professor Huang Xiaojian, aged 47, joined the Group as Chief Engineer in
2001 and is responsible for developing technology and new products.
Professor Huang was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
September 2006. He has over 22 years of experience in research and
development of electronic and digital technologies. Professor Huang holds a
Master degree of Telecommunications and Electronics from University of
Posts and Telecommunications and is a senior member of an Electronic
Association in China. Before joining the Group, he was an associate
professor of University of Posts and Telecommunications and had worked in
different research organizations in PRC. Professor Huang is also a non-
executive director of Fortuna International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:

530), a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun, aged 35, joined the Group in 2006 as General Manager
of China Division and is in charge its China businesses. Mr. Zhou was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in April 2008. He is also
a Director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Zhou worked as legal counselor and senior management in various
corporations in PRC, Hong Kong and Singapore. Mr. Zhou graduated from
Dalian Maritime University, the PRC, with Bachelor Degree in International
Maritime Law. He has extensive experience in corporate administration,

finance, legal, international trade and public relations.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management
EFEREREEE

Mr.Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in August 2008. Mr.Ting is a registered architect of
the State of California, USA and the Architects Registration Board of Hong
Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Science (Architecture) and a Bachelor of
Architecture, both from the University of Southern California, USA. Mr. Ting
is also a member of the American Institute of Architects, the National
Council of Architectural Registration Board, USA and the Hong Kong
Institute of Architect. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Ting was a director of
P&T Architects and Engineers Ltd.. He has over 25 years experience in
architecture, and in the management and co-ordination of a variety of

projects in South East Asian region, especially Mainland China and Taiwan.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence, aged 73, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in November 2002. Mr. Lai is a
fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
CPA Australia. He has extensive experience in accounting and auditing

sectors.

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, aged 44, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in February 2004. Dr. Ng has nearly 20
years of experience in professional accounting and corporate finance in
Hong Kong, Mainland China, the United States, and Europe. Dr. Ng is a
practicing certified public accountant, a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Certified
Chartered Accountants in United Kingdom, and an associate member of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Dr. Ng received
her Doctor of Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, Master of Laws in Corporate and Financial Laws from The
University of Hong Kong, Master in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, and Master in Professional Accounting
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. Ng is currently the
independent non-executive directors of Cheong Ming Investments Limited
(Stock Code: 1196) and eSun Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 571), the

companies whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny, aged 57, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in September 2004. Dr. Cheng
holds a Doctor of Science degree from the Massachusetts Institute of
Technology, USA and a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Western Ontario, Canada. He has held management positions
in many technology companies. He was in charge of funding technology
companies when he was with the Government of the HKSAR. Currently, Dr.

Cheng is engaged in environmental projects.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 3Ist March, 2009.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

By a special resolution passed on 28th October, 2008, the name of the
Company was changed from “Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited
MBBAZERBERATR " to “Goldin Properties Holdings Limited = R #th &
EREPR 2T " with effect from 6th November, 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 47 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2009 are set out in

the consolidated income statement on page 40.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS
Details of movements during the year in the share capital and outstanding
warrants of the Company are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are shown in Note 37 to the consolidated financial

statements and on page 149, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements of property, plant and equipment during the year are shown in

Note |7 to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Movements of investment properties during the year are shown in Note 18

to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years is set out on page 176.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Pan Sutong

Professor Huang Xiaojian
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun
Mr.Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond (appointed on 8th August, 2008)

(appointed on Ist April, 2008)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny

Professor Huang Xiaojian, Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence and Dr. Cheng Kwan
Wai, Sunny will retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting
by rotation pursuant to Article 105 of the Company’s Articles of Association

and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each Director, including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, is for a period up to his/her retirement by rotation in

accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS EEZRBEY
None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of ~ SEZURMEARQ T FEEMKE L T LEMF
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year THASER-SRENHE CEEBERMN ML

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation. EZBRBEEH -

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTSAND  EBERTHEAKNEKK « HHARGKRESHZ
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES ERRRE

AND DEBENTURES

As at 3Ist March, 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors RIZEENE=ZA=1+—0B XQFESERTHA
and Chief Executives of the Company and their associates in shares, HRFEEZHBEATRRLATRERELIE(EE
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated RESRBERBEXVE) 2kH - HERORE
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures SHEERBESRPEROIEB2RACATR
Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company ~ RIFTFEZ B MA@ IRBELHRAFHZEE
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the FARAERRARBRAZEARKXBNT ¢
Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code in the

Listing Rules were as follows:
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ESERTHAHRRKRS  HRARERESZ
EERKE (@)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

(a) Interests in shares

(a) RifzEz

Appropriate
percentage
of the issued

share capital

Name of Director/ Long position/ Number of of the Company
Chief Executive short position Capacity shares held {EAATE#T
HE TRAHRSE BE/ %A 55 FAERBBE REZBHEHL
(Note 3)
(Hfi£3)
Mr. Pan Sutong Long position Interest held as 761,653,341 62.30%
(“Mr. Pan”) ®e beneficial owner (Note 1)
BEBLE ([BRE)) and through (Kyat 1)
controlled corporation
FRESZEEAR
HEEEETE 2 #R
Mr. Pan Short position Interest held through 79,053,000 6.47%
ERE KR controlled corporation (Note 2)
AXEEESE 2B (Hfat2)
Professor Long position Beneficial owner 244210 0.02%
Huang Xiaojian ) EREBA
BEERHUR
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun Long position Beneficial owner 280,000 0.023%

(“Mr. Zhou”)
AEExRE(ALE]

#e

ERERA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND EERTHERNKG HEARDRESZ
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES EERXE (#B)

AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

(b) Interests in warrants

(b) REZREEZED

Appropriate
percentage

of the issued

Number of share capital
Name of Director/ Long position/ underlying of the Company
Chief Executive short position Capacity shares held 1A AT ST
BEE TRARKE BE/ %A S5 RAEERRGEE RFEZBOEDL
(Note 3)
(Hfa£3)
Mr. Pan Long position Interest held as 66,280,332 5.42%
BEE 39y beneficial owner (Note 4)
and through (Mt 4)
controlled corporation
ERERERAR
AEEEESA 2R
Mr. Zhou Long position Beneficial owner 16,200 0.001%
BxE 5oy EREAA

(c) Interests in convertible bonds

(c) MRk ESZER

Appropriate
percentage

of the issued

Number of share capital
Name of Director/ Long position/ underlying of the Company
Chief Executive short position Capacity shares held {HAAT 2T
EE THEHES BE/%E S5 RAEERRGEE RFEZBOEHLL
(Note 3)
(Hf&£3)
Mr. Pan Long position Interest held as 324,903,598 26.58%
BRE 3} beneficial owner (Note 5)
and through (Htat 5)
controlled corporation
ERBREEAR

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED 2009 Annual Report
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Notes:

I. 79,563,000 shares were held by Mr. Pan in his personal capacity, 659,134,341
shares were held by Goldin Group (Investment) Limited (formerly known as
Jade Forest Limited) (“Goldin Group (Investment)”), the immediate holding
company of the Company, and 22,956,000 shares were held by Clear Jade
International Limited (“Clear Jade”). Clear Jade was 100% owned by Mr. Pan and
Goldin Group (Investment) was 100% owned by Goldin Real Estate Financial
Holdings Limited (“Goldin Real Estate Financial”), the ultimate holding company
of the Company, which in turn was 100% owned by Mr. Pan as at 3Ist March,
2009. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be interested in the 659,134,341
shares held by Goldin Group (Investment) and 22,956,000 shares held by Clear
Jade. Goldin Group (Investment) being a holding company of the Company is
also an associated corporation of the Company within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO.

2. This short position in shares represents the short position in shares held by
Goldin Group (Investment). Goldin Group (Investment) was 100% owned by
Goldin Real Estate Financial which in turn was 100% owned by Mr. Pan as at
31st March, 2009. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be interested in the short

position in shares held by Goldin Group (Investment).

3. As at 31st March, 2009, the number of issued shares in the share capital of the
Company was 1,222,582,293 shares.

4. Mr.Pan and Goldin Group (Investment) held 366,900 units and 65,913,432 units
of the warrants respectively as at 31st March, 2009. Upon full exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to the warrants at the subscription price of HK$6
per share, 366,900 shares and 65,913,432 shares will be issued to Mr. Pan and
Goldin Group (Investment) respectively. Goldin Group (Investment) was 100%
owned by Goldin Real Estate Financial; which in turn was 100% owned by Mr.
Pan as at 31st March, 2009. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be interested in

the warrants held by Goldin Group (Investment).
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ESERTHAHRRKRS  HRARERESZ
EER%E @)

KfaF -

1. 79,563,000 M EEBELENBAZHEE
659,134,341 M HSREE (RE) BERLF (A
#Jade Forest Limited) ((5R&EE (%) ]) (B
ARBZEEERAT) FE » 22,956,000/ i
HHBRERERAT((BR)EE - R-ZEZA
FZRA=+-HB BEHBLEEEF100% SR
SEEE R ELIRERAT (5HE
BE]) (BRQAZRAERARE) EF100%
MafembtEARELEREE100% Hit &
TEBRRAREHSREE(RE)BAR
659,134,341/ B2 7 | 1 5 22458 222,956,000%
BHzER SREB (RE)ARARAZERA
8 TABFRAERAEXVIRREZARD T
BOxE o

2. ZROKXBRASREE(RE)MEEZROAE -
RZZEBAEZAZ+-H SREEHRE) BAS
RERMBEREF100% MeRSRBENREL
EHER100% - Bt BRERBEARRHSRE
(RE) BB ZRDKA 2 -

3. RIZEBAE=ZRZ=+-H  AREAREHCHET
BRHEE 51,222,582,293R R 17 ©

4, RZIZETAEZA=1+-R BX4REHREAR
&) 2 51#55366,9003 % 65,913,43213 SR I AEE o
RRBRREE TS 2 RBENZRBESRRMH6HE
TEERYTEE  AQABIRRELRERSRE
(1R E) #17366,900 & 65,913,432/ i 17 ° I
“EEAEZRA=T-0 SHREERE) AR
SRHERFI00% MafeBENHmELE
EE100% Bt BEERRAEEHSHRER
(RE)BECRRER 2 &R -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

5. Mr. Pan and Goldin Group (Investment) held the convertible bonds with
nominal value of HK$7,338,000 and HK$1,318,268,682 respectively as at 31st
March, 2009. Upon full conversion of the convertible bonds at the conversion
price of HK$4.08 per share (as adjusted on 27th February, 2009), 1,798,529
shares and 323,105,069 shares will be issued to Mr. Pan and Goldin Group
(Investment) respectively. Goldin Group (Investment) was 100% owned by
Goldin Real Estate Financial which in turn was 100% owned by Mr. Pan as at
31st March, 2009. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be interested in the

convertible bonds held by Goldin Group (Investment).

Save as disclosed above and those as disclosed in the section headed
“Discloseable Interests and Short Positions of Shareholders under the SFO”
below, none of the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code as at 3Ist March, 2009.
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B)DREHERRESHEME7,338000% TR
1,318,268,6828 T - RATARESREBREER
R4.088 T (BR-ZZBZAF-_A=-+LHHAE)
EEYEREE  AARBIAELERSRER
(8 E) 8171,798,529/% % 323,105,0698% 712 © 1A
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SRMEEF100% MefermtbENRELE
EE100% Akt BEERRAREHSRER
(RE)BE2UBRRES 2R o

BRENFRBEERRT X REZSRBERHAT
BRECRREERKXR|-HHAREEN  R22F
NE=ZR=+—-H  EERADFTHRREIRKE
ZHEALBERNFRAFEETRBEE (TR
HERAERPIEXVE) 2BRH - BEROKRES
TREERERESRAERAE2REATALAA
FEEcELHR  IREEETHENEARLT
KRB 2 EMESERKR o



DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

As at 31st March, 2009, the following persons or corporations (other than a
Director or Chief Executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO and so far as is known to any Director or Chief Executive of the

Company:

(a) Interests in shares

Directors’ Report
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RIFESRAIROEFREZRFEDR
RE

R-ZENE=A=1+-0 HEAESHELT
TRERFA  UTALHAE (FRERAATES
FATRAH) RARARARABRA T EERER
S RBEHOEBHRATARDANFEZER
Rz BHAAR -

(a) Wiz

Appropriate
percentage
of the issued

share capital

Name of Long position/ Number of of the Company

shareholder short position Capacity shares held EA AT ERT

IR & BEe/ %A e FERBBE REzBOE S

(Note 3)

(Ffat3)

Goldin Group Long position Beneficial owner 659,134,341 53.91%
(Investment) (Note /) 39y EREBA

SRER (RE) (WiF1) Short position Beneficial owner 79,053,000 6.47%
KB ERBEEA

Atlantis Investment Long position Investment manager 132,952,000 10.87%
Management Ltd 3} REKRE

Northern Trust Fiduciary Long position Investment manager 62,028,000 5.07%

Services (Ireland) Limited
(Note 2)
(Kt&t2)

Sy

REKE
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DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF RIEE#RUEKHIBETFHREZREESR

SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO (Continued) XE (&)
(b) Interests in underlying shares (b) RHEERGZED
(i) Interests in warrants (i) RAREEZEZ
Appropriate
percentage
of the issued
share capital
Name of Long position/ Number of of the Company
shareholder short position Capacity shares held EXRATEH#T
RRE# BE/ %A 545 rAERBBE BREZBOE S
(Note 3)
(Hfi£3)
Goldin Group Long position Beneficial owner 65,913,432 5.39%
(Investment) (Note |) 39y BEREEA (Note 4)
BREERE) (KF1) (Kfzt4)
(i) Interests in convertible bonds (i) RATBLKRES R
Appropriate
percentage
of the issued
share capital
Name of Long position/ Number of of the Company
shareholder short position Capacity shares held EXATE#HT
REEHE BE/ %A 55 rARBBE BRAEZBOE L
Goldin Group Long position Beneficial owner 323,105,069 26.43%
(Investment) (Note /) 390y BEREBA (Note 5)
BREERE) (KF1) (Kf&£5)
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DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO (Continued)

Notes:

I. As at 3Ist March, 2009, Goldin Group (Investment) was 100% owned by Goldin

Real Estate Financial which in turn was 100% owned by Mr. Pan.

2. According to a disclosure of interest notice filed by Northern Trust Fiduciary
Services (Ireland) Limited on 17th January, 2007, the 62,028,000 shares were
held by Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited as trustee for
Baring Hong Kong China Fund. Baring Asset Management Limited was also

deemed to be interested in the 62,028,000 shares as an investment manager.

3. Asat 3Ist March, 2009, the number of issued shares in the share capital of the
Company was 1,222,582,293 shares.

4. Goldin Group (Investment) held 65,913,432 units of the warrants as at 31st
March, 2009. Upon full exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the
warrants at the subscription price of HK$6 per Share, 65,913,432 shares will be

issued to Goldin Group (Investment).

5. Goldin Group (Investment) held the convertible bonds with a nominal value of
HK$1,318,268,682 as at 31st March, 2009. Upon full conversion of the
convertible bonds at the conversion price of HK$4.08 per share (as adjusted on
27th February, 2009), 323,105,069 shares will be issued to Goldin Group

(Investment).

Save as disclosed above, there was no person or corporation, other than a
Director or Chief Executive of the Company, who had an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO as at 3|st March, 2009.
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2.  ®R# Northern Trust Fiduciary Services
(Ireland) LimitedR=ZZ+tF -+t A%EZ
BEWEEBSE #62,028,000R R 4% 5 &
Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (lreland)
LimitedfE &Baring Hong Kong China FundZ
ZHEAMEE - EARELE  Baring Asset
Management Limited R H 5 & & &
62,028,000/ R 17 2 2 °

3. RIZEZAE=ZA=1+-R, KRABREAFDHEST
BREEE 51,222,582,293K B -

4, RZBZNF=ZA=+-HB =REERE) S
65,913,432(3 R BEE - RAREF DT 2R
BREZIABEERBN6E TERIITERE A2
ABEERER (RE) #1765,913,432B K17
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SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted on 27th
August, 2002 by a resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders on the
same date, the Directors of the Company may grant options as incentives to
any participants as described in the Scheme for the shares in the Company
within a period of ten years commencing from 27th August, 2002 at the
price determined by the Directors of the Company. Such price shall not be
lower than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average of the closing prices of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 0%
of the total number of shares of the Company on the date of adopting the
Scheme. An option may be exercised at any time within ten years from the

date of grant of the relevant option.

At 31st March, 2009, the Directors do not have any interests in options to

subscribe for shares under the Scheme.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share option

movements during the year:
(i) Employees (other than Directors)

Subscription price per share

Directors’ Report
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BEiRE (@)
TRBEERFAXRRABREZD 2

(i) BE (EERM)

Number of share options

BIRTER RikEHE
Outstanding  Surrendered  Outstanding
at 1.4.2008 during the year  at 31.3.2009
Before After Exercisable R-ZFENE RZBF1E
Date of grant  adjustment  adjustment period A-H =A=+-H
R BH HEA HEE TEH HATE FAERR e K AT
(Note)
(Ht&E)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
5.2.2004 1.30 1.20 5.2.2005 to 4.2.2014 336,315 — 336,315
“EENFE-AEHA “ZTRF-RAEE
“E-MFEZAMA
5.2.2004 1.30 1.20 5.2.2006 to 4.2.2014 336,315 — 336,315
—ZTMFE_ARA “ZTAE-ARAE
—Z-NF-ANA
20.4.2004 1.54 [.42 20.4.2004 to 19.4.2014 567,783 — 567,783
“ZZMEMA=1A “ZEEMFEMNA=tHZE
“Z-MEMATAA
28.9.2005 1.43 1.32 28.9.2005 to 27.9.2015 1,621,050 — 1,621,050
“2TR¥ “ETRFNAZTNRE
ARZTN\E —2-AFNAZTLAR
27.11.2007 — 6.56 27.11.2007 to 26.11.2017 10,000,000 (2,000,000) 8,000,000
e “EFLET-ASTLHE
+-RA=t+tH “E-tF+-A=tiH

12,861,463 (2,000,000) 10,861,463
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) BkE@®
(i) Other participants (i) HithgEE

Subscription price per share Number of share options

BRITEE fRlRERE

Outstanding  Surrendered  Outstanding
at 1.4.2008 during the year  at 31.3.2009

Before After Exercisable RZBENE R-ZBELE
Date of grant  adjustment  adjustment period mA—H =A=+-H
REEH FER Eiik 3t T8 HRITE EREHE ief K AT i€
(Note)
(Hrzt)
HK$ HK$
B B
5.2.2004 1.30 1.20 5.2.2005 to 4.2.2014 761,570 — 761,570
“EEMFE-AEA “EERF-AREAZE
“E-ME-AMA
5.2.2004 1.30 1.20 5.2.2006 to 4.2.2014 1,896,305 — 1,896,305
“ZEMF-ATRA “ZEZRE-ARAE
“E-ME-AMA
20.4.2004 |.54 |.42 20.4.2004 to 19.4.2014 367,695 — 367,695
“ZEMENA=TA —EEMENA=1+HZE
“E-NEMA+AA
27.11.2007 — 6.56 27.11.2007 to 26.11.2017 64,000,000 (64,000,000) 0
“EELF “ERLET-AZTtBE
+-BA=t+tH —E-tF+-A=t~H

67,025,570 (64,000,000) 3,025,570

Note:  The number of share options granted and their respective subscription Wi ERUERESERBEREZTEED
prices have been adjusted for the rights issue taken place on 22nd ER-ZZ+FENAZT-BETZHR
August, 2007. fifE AR o
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Details of movement during the year in the reserves of the Company are set

out in Note 37 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the year, the Company had transactions with related companies in
which a Director of the Company has controlling interests, details of which

are set out in Note |14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the Company
or any its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual

performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in Note 38 to the

consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31Ist March, 2009, the aggregate amount of turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers represented approximately
93% of the Group’s total turnover included in the result of discontinued
operations for the year. The aggregate amount of turnover included in the
result of discontinued operations attributable to the Group’s largest

customer for the year was 46%.

For the year ended 3Ist March, 2009, the aggregate amount of purchase
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers represented approximately
99% of the Group’s total purchase included in the result of discontinued
operations for the year. The aggregate amount of purchases included in the
result of discontinued operations for the year attributable to the Group’s

largest supplier for the year was 85%.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)
None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder, which to the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s share

capital, has interests in these customers or suppliers during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31st March, 2009.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts for management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31st March, 2009
with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules with deviations from certain
provisions of the CG Code, details of which are set out in the section

headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code as at 3Ist March, 2009.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent

Non-Executive Directors are independent.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3Ist March,
2009 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee. Information on the work
of Audit Committee and its composition are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 17 to |8 of the annual report.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the

Company.

On behalf of the Board
Pan Sutong

Director

Hong Kong, 4th June, 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report
35 37 1% BB 4R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS
LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS MATSUNICHI
COMMUNICATION HOLDINGS LIMITED)

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldin Properties
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to |75, which comprise the
consolidated and Company’s balance sheets as at 3Ist March, 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FORTHE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 14| of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st March,
2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

4th June, 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

Fela®

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

2009 2008
“BEAE ZEEINE
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
(O TR TET
Continuing operations: RRCEEER
Turnover EXH = —
Cost of sales HERA - -
Gross profit E7 - —
Other income HA A 8 32,280 8,483
Administrative expenses THER (124,580) (95,292)
Other gains (losses) and expenses Hiths (F8) REA 12 (118,674) (60,859)
Finance costs BHER 10 (209,814) (111,708)
(Decrease) increase in fair value of investment RENELNFEZ
properties (R4 ) & 18 (473,470) 1,586,786
Gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments eEeMIAzKE (B8) I 980,937 (502,134)
Profit before taxation BRI AR A 12 86,679 825,276
Taxation BB 13 116,386 (398,561)
Profit for the year from continuing operations REFELEXEB 2 AFERT 203,065 426,715
Discontinued operations: EERIEER:
Profit for the year from discontinued operations RECKLEB 2 RFE R 14 527,228 259,935
Profit for the year REEGA 730,293 686,650
Dividends recognised as distribution BRADRKZKRE 5 - 51,612
Earnings (loss) per share SREH (B5E) 16

From continuing and discontinued operations

— basic

REFELERCRLERR
—&XK

HK59.73 cents il

HK64.49 cents B4l

— diluted

-#F

HK29.77 cents &l

HK63.31 cents 4l

From continuing operations

— basic

REFBEEXH
—&XK

HK16.61 cents il

HK40.08 cents &1l

— diluted

-#F

HK(3.71) cents #fll

HK39.34 cents &4l
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
FaeEEARE

At st March, 2009 R=BENE=A=+—H

2009 2008
—STLE  —TEINE
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
& FET TET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I - MR RRE 17 79,152 136,040
Investment properties REM= 18 2,419,330 2,790,400
Prepaid lease payments BNEERE 19 1,205,780 2,741
Intangible assets BREE 20 90 174,735
3,704,352 3,103,916
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 22 — 68,833
Properties under development BRPYE 22 1,937,880 1,038,395
Trade and other receivables and deposits FE U BR R R H At
BYRERZE 24 328,216 984,816
Amounts due from related companies FE W B = A R FKIE 25 82 1,932
Prepaid lease payments BENEENE 19 —_ 63
Pledged bank deposits EEARTER 27 1,000 662,292
Bank balances and cash RTEERRSE 27 1,331,453 2,800,033
3,598,631 5,556,364
Assets classified as held for sale DEABIEHEEE 23 323,559 —
3,922,190 5,556,364
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade and other payables FE A BR 0 % EL fth A4 SR I8 28 611,152 296,635
Amount due to ultimate holding company B RAERARRIE 29 — 30
Amount due to a related company FEfY — BBAE A RIFKIE 30 6,542 11,700
Taxation payable FE 2% 18 20,111 63,030
Derivative financial instruments TEEmMIA 31 — 46,66
Bank borrowings - amount due within one year  $R4TER — —F R E A 32 — 1,292,267
Obligations under finance leases MEMRNER
- amount due within one year - —FREEBFHIE 33 44 139
637,849 1,710,462
Liabilities directly associated with TEABFREHEEERRE
assets classified as held for sale BEBEENEE 23 305,100 —
942,949 1,710,462
Net current assets REEEFE 2,979,241 3,845,902
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBDER 6,683,593 6,949,818
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
FeEEARE

At 31st March, 2009 R=BEAFE=A=+—H

2009 2008
=L E I
NOTES HK$°000 HK$°000
Bt =t FER FHET

Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Obligations under finance leases MEBENED

- amount due after one year - —FRABRIE 33 134 297
Derivative financial instruments PTELRTIEA 31 27,270 594,182
Convertible bonds AR RE S 34 1,539,673 1,840,141
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBEEE 35 292,886 425,796
1,859,963 2,860,416
4,823,630 4,089,402

Capital and reserves BRAR #E
Share capital [N 36 61,129 61,123
Reserves 18 4,762,501 4,028,279
Total equity ERAE 4,823,630 4,089,402

The consolidated financial statements on pages 40 to |75 were approved BNFAEZ1TEZGEMERER -_SELE
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 4th June, 2009 and are NRAMBEESEMERRELG  UATHES

signed on its behalf by: R&R%EZ
Pan Sutong Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond
g3 3 ] TER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF 4
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Balance Sheet
HEARE

At st March, 2009 R=BENE=A=+—H

2009 2008
—BTaE —ETN\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt THET TET

Non-current assets ERBEE
Intangible assets BR&ERE 20 90 90
Investments in subsidiaries MEARRE 21 302,468 391,721
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE LI 1B 2 B FRIE 26 5,149,897 —
5,452,455 391,811

Current assets REEE
Other receivables Hit W 24 128,028 11,685
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U Bt B 2 RIFRIE 26 —_ 4,279,191
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRS 27 710 43,715
128,738 4,334,591
Current liabilities nEAE

Other payables Hth I 28 1,159 4,359
Amount due to ultimate holding company R RAERARRIE 29 — 30
Amount due to a subsidiary FE1+ —REIH B A RIS 26 129,898 129,902
Amount due to a related company B —EEEARRIE 30 6,542 11,700
Taxation payable E#H1E 1,982 —
139,581 145,991
Net current (liabilities) assets RE (BF) EERE (10,843) 4,188,600
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBDERS 5,441,612 4,580,411

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Derivative financial instruments PTEEHIA 31 27,270 594,182
Convertible bonds R ES 34 1,539,673 1,840,141
1,566,943 2,434,323
3,874,669 2,146,088
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Balance Sheet
HEARE

At 31st March, 2009 R=BEAFE=A=+—H

2009 2008
“¥EAE  —TINE
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
M &t FTER Ti#n
Capital and reserves BRA K i
Share capital R 36 61,129 61,123
Reserves 18 37 3,813,540 2,084,965
Total equity REHEE 3,874,669 2,146,088
Pan Sutong Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond
g 3 ] TR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF )
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RARREDR

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FATRERAARE
Equity
Share-based participants  Capital PRC
compensation reserve redemption statutory Minority
Share Share  reserve Translation RE  reserve  Capital  reserves  Retained interests

capital ~ premium BB resere  £EA RE  reserve HE  profits  Total b Total

k% RHEE HeHE BEEE B EERE RABRE fTER REEH it RRER it
HK$'000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK§000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§'000  H§000
TAn ThRn TEn TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEr  TEr TEn

(Note 37)  (Note 37) (Note 37)
(W3 (W3 (3E37)
At Ist April, 2007 RERLE
mA-A&e 9390 1393100 803! 57,601 - I3 3605107620 186220 1795742 — 17974
Exchange diferences arisngon IR A
translation recognised ERRAZM
directly in equity EEZERER - - - WM - - - - - WM - WM
Reversal upon disposals of RUEREA R
subsidiaries e - - - (%,226) - = (3,605) - — (1281 - (1281)
Profit for the year EpiH = = = = = = = — 086650 686,650 — 086650
Totalrecognised incomeand ~~~ ERBERHAR
expense for the year Rx4% = = - W9 = = (3,605) — 086850 9310 - BIm
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FARRERR

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FATRERAARE
Equity
Share-based participants  Capital PRC
compensation reserve redemption statutory Minority
Share Share  reserve Translation BE  reserve  Capital  reserves  Retained interests
capital ~ premium Bft  resene  BHA RE  reserve BB profits  Total b Total
k5 BhER MERE AREE 0 BE BORE RIEE  ARRE REEM % BRER 4%
HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKF000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§000  HS§000
Tén  THEr TEn TEr TEr  TEn  TEr  TEr  TEn  fEr  TEn  TiEn
(Note 37)  (Note 37) (Note 37)
(W3 (W3 (Hr&3n)
lsue of new shares (Note 36)  HfTHFRM (ME36) 19851 1507889 - - — — — — — 150740 — 15074
Deemed distrbution wpon issue ~ HETTERES
of convertible bonds REAK = = = — (201860 = = = —  (201860) — (201860
Expenses ncurred in comection - ETRAME K2
with issue of shares B - 340) - - - - - - - 4n) - [(340)
Exercise o share options frikhE 1789 BAT (6488) - — — — — RV RV
Brerdise of warrants friEahRs N 16475 - - - - - - L L
Recognition of equity-settled ERAEE,
share-based payments SROAERZR - - e = = = = = - W - W
Lapse of share options BREXY - - (50) - - - - - %0 - - -
Appropriations i = = = = = = = 31655 (31,655) — — —
Transfer (Note) 2 (W) - - - - - - —  (46869) 46869 - - -
Transfer upon disposal of RUEREL R
subsidiaries 4 — — — — — — - (I818) 18128 — — —
Fina dvidend for 2007 TRRLEZRERE - - - - - - - —  (lel)  Glen) - (len)
At 31st March, 2008 R-2RNE
ZRZT-AES  ol3 2%0700 B0 305578 (201860) 173 — A8 854650 4089402 — 408940
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RARREDR

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FATRERAARE
Equity
Share-based participants  Capital PRC
compensation reserve redemption statutory Minority
Share Share  reserve Translation RE  reserve  Capital  reserves  Retained interests

capital ~ premium BB resere  £EA RE  reserve HE  profits  Total b Total
k% RHEE HeHE BEEE B EERE RABRE fTER REEH it RRER it
HK$'000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK§000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§'000  H§000
TAn ThRn TEn TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEr  TEr TEn

(Note 37)  (Note 37) (Note 37)
(W3 (W3 (3E37)
Exchange diferences arisgon ~ NRAERERARAE
translation recognised MELZER2E
directly in equity - - — 14 - - - - - DB4MS - DBAMS
Reversal upon disposals of HEMEA R
subsidiaries (e - - - (267403) - - —  (4M8) 48 (267403 - (267403)
Profit for the year Epigl = = = = = = = — 730293 730293 - 0%
Total recognised incomeand ~~ EREHANAR
expense for the year AxAR - - — (130s8) - - — (4u8)  8MSTI 7T - T
Deemed contribution upon disposal 7t &~ EHEL A
of asubsidary (Note 40) BRELE (Wi - - - - 5 - - - - X
Surrender of share options HERRE - = (6453 = 10,590 = = = 6,453 10,59 - 10,590
Exercise of warrants el Fi 6 1,045 - - - - - - - 1,051 - 1,051

Acquisition of a subsidiary hi-EHELT
Obligation to acquire minority WS ERFERER
interest (Note 39 (RtaE 39ii)

24700 214700

(214700) (214700}

At 315t March, 2009 RIEENEZF
=t-RER 609 296745 1T 050 (185918) In3 =

1,665,674 4823630 — 48360

Note:  During the year ended 31Ist March, 2008, the Board of Directors of two B : REBZE-ZE\E=B=+-—-HIEE Koz

subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China passed resolutions to transfer AREHBEZHERBATCESSEB RS
part of their statutory reserves to retained profits and these subsidiaries =, BENETEEREERZREEF  ZEHE
were subsequently disposed of. NEBEEREE o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FeEBaRER

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

2009 2008
“EEAE “2ENF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
liE=3 FTERT FET
Operating activities REER
Profit for the year AEEGEF 730,293 686,650
Adjustments for: EHTSIFAZ
Allowance for inventories FERE 18,313 11,530
Amortisation of trade marks [SEES: £ 11,951 12,630
Decrease (increase) in fair value of REMEATERD ()
investment properties 473,470 (1,586,786)
Depreciation of property, plant M BERRERE
and equipment 10,823 23,440
Finance costs B & 355,565 237,917
(Gains) losses on derivative TEEMIAZ
financial instruments (k&) BB (1,028,449) 548,795
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries HEMBARAERE (322,191) (19,619)
Impairment loss on trade marks BEZRERE — 36,915
Interest income FEWA (69,490) (36,436)
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment BiEZEE 69 122
Release of prepaid lease payments BANHERES 13,187 108
Reversal of allowance for bad RERBHRE
and doubtful debts — (4,022)
Share-based payments expenses UMD AER 2T — 32,267
Taxation BiIE (64,033) 471,312
Unrealised exchange difference AEBRELER (61,959) 121,364
Operating cash flows before RTEEELEHA
movements in working capital ZRERERE 67,549 536,187
Increase in properties under development R P Y EIE N (995,422) (979,539)
Increase in inventories FEEM (145,746) (23,017)
Decrease (increase) in trade & W BR 0 % EL At
and other receivables and deposits EWRERESHD (Bm) 86,734 (61,083)
Increase in trade and other payables FE 1 BR AR I HL fth P& A SR IR G 499,038 148,599
Cash used in operations REEXEBREME (487,847) (378,853)
Taxation paid EH%E (11,310) (4,910)
Taxation refunded 2REBIE — 6,126
Net cash used in operations KREXEBRERHFHE (499,157) (377,637)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
FaBaRER

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

2009 2008
“EEAE —RENF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
& FET Ti#T
Investing activities REEH
Purchase of prepaid lease payment BARNHEENE (1,048,887) —
Purchase of assets held for sale BABFLEEE (323,559) —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BANE  BERRE (78,710) (8,455)
Purchase of investment properties BAREWE — (1,126,318)
Acquisition of assets and liabilities ZBRRBHEARKEBEER
through acquisition of subsidiaries &8f& (MERFTWEEZ
(net of cash and cash equivalent acquired) BERREEEN) 39 56 35
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and ~ HEW¥E - BER
equipment B3 5'r$ 135 403
Repayment from related companies BELEEN 1,850 1,041
Interest received 2R 2 69,490 36,436
Disposals of subsidiaries (net of cash and cash HEKEAT (HKRAEHE
equivalent disposed of) ZEERBEZEY) 40 90,323 (4,423)
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits B IXIFBTFEFED (L) 294,410 (662,294)
Deposit received for disposal
of assets held for sales BIEHEEE 2TERFE 305,100 —
Net cash used in investing activities RETBREM L FE (689,792) (1,763,575)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FeEBaRER

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

2009 2008
“EEAE “2ENF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
P &E FERT TER
Financing activities MEED
Repayment of bank loans EBERITER (965,623) (686,443)
Interest and finance charges paid ENFERUBER (260,190) (165,228)
Net cash outflow of trust receipt loans ERBBERRERLFE (254,664) (671,341)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases 1RIERIER N EREEHK (227) (218)
Repayment to ultimate holding company R AER D RER (30) (850)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon RITE R IR R B
exercise of warrants BITRMDAERE 706 11,065
Repayment from related parties BEALEX 158,045 —
New bank loans raised m?ﬁZfEﬂ',ﬁ 914,466 1,524,633
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHRG PSR — 1,786,578
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds 1 —Hﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfa A - 1,418,704
Proceeds from issue of shares upon T 60 88 IR A B
exercise of share options BITRMETEIE — 48,738
Expenses incurred in connection E#TROMIH 2z
with issue of shares — (9,402)
Dividends paid ERE — (103,104)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities MEZHRE ORE) RAFHE (407,517) 3,153,132
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash BeREESEYZ
equivalents OR4) #&nFaE (1,596,466) 1,011,920
Cash and cash equivalents at the FY2RERBLZEY
beginning of the year 2,800,033 1,751,274
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes IEERG FE 127,886 36,839
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZBAESREGEEY
end of the year 1,331,453 2,800,033
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents BE R BEEBN 2 EBFEIN
Bank balances and cash RITEERES 1,331,453 2,800,033
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the

corporate information included in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is different from the functional currency of the Company,
Renminbi (“RMB”) as the Company is a public company incorporated in
Hong Kong with its shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
where most of its investors are located in Hong Kong and therefore,
the Directors consider that Hong Kong dollars is preferable in
presenting the operating result and financial position of the Company
and the Group. The majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are
operating in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) with RMB as their

functional currency.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its

principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2009 are set out in Note 47.

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

ekl
ARRARA-BREBEMRLZETERA
A EROREBBERZMERDA (TR
Fil) £t e ARRAZEAMBEERETEE XN
B2 RFR2ARNENAKE o

GEUBBRUWEBTES]  MIEUARATWEE
ERARBZY  WIHRARTR-BRE
BEMAL 2z EH AT - ERBFRERAE
e MERBOREETURES  BUES
ARABT 2 AR ARSI RELEXEEN Y
BRRMERE - KRR RBHMER SR
REARLNE (HE))EE  REZYDEE
BRARE

=
=}

AABAE—BREERAR  EXEHBLA
R-BBAEZA=1+-B2E£BARPBR
& MTEE4T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)’’)
In the current year, the Group and the Company have applied, for the
first time, the following amendments to Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS”) and new Hong Kong (IFRIC) Interpretations
(“HK(IFRIC) - Int”) (collectively referred to as the “new HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(“HKICPA”) which are or have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets

(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC)-Int |1 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,

Minimum Funding Requirements

and their Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the
results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior

period adjustment has been required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”’)

(Continued)

The Group and the Company have not early adopted the following new

and revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS | (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & |

(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS | & HKAS 27

(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9

& HKAS 39

(Amendments)

Improvements to HKFRSs'

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

Presentation of Financial Statements?

Borrowing Costs®

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements*

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations

Arising on Liquidation®

Eligible hedged items*

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,

Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate?’

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations®
Business Combinations*
Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments®

Operating Segments®

Embedded Derivatives®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”’)
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes®

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate’

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign

ERABERETZEEMBREEA
(TEEMBREEA]) @

&8 (BIFR B 3R
HREBZEY)
—RBE135%

&8 (BB 5 3R
HREBZEY)
—R2BE 155

&8 (EIFR B 3R

EEEHTEL

FERE R

RARBHNEEEREN

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

Operation’

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners*

Transfers of Assets from Customers®

HREBZEY)
—RBE165
&8 (BB 3R

HREBZEY)
—RBE1H
&8 (BIFR B 3R

57

XNFHRBAFEEE
EZaik

AEFEREE®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
I'st January, 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS 5,

effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist July, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
I'st January, 2009, Ist July, 2009 and |st January, 2010,
as appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
I'st January, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist July, 2009
Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30th June, 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist July, 2008
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

Ist October, 2008

Effective for transfers on or after Ist July, 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”’)
(Continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after
I'st April, 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment

for changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

The application of the amendment to HKAS 40 “Investment Property”
arising from improvements to HKFRSs may affect the accounting for
property under construction or development for future use as an
investment property of the Group. The amendment to HKAS 40 brings
such property within the scope of HKAS 40 which, therefore, shall be
accounted for under the fair value model in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Such property is currently accounted for at
cost less impairment in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”. The amendment is to be applied prospectively and is
effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on or after Ist

January, 2009.

The application of HKAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing Cost” eliminates the
option available under the previous version of the standard to
recognise all borrowing costs immediately as an expense.To the extent
that borrowing costs relate to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset, the revised standard requires that they
be capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing

costs should be expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”’)
(Continued)

The HKAS 23 (Revised) is generally to be applied prospectively to
borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets for which the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or after the effective date
of the revised standard for the Group’s financial year beginning on or
after Ist April, 2009. Therefore, if the Group has previously followed an
accounting policy of immediately recognising all borrowing costs as an
expense, it is not required to retrospectively restate its financial
statements for borrowing costs incurred on qualifying assets before the
effective date of the standard, nor is it required to apply the
capitalisation policy to borrowing costs incurred subsequent to the
effective date on projects that had commenced (i.e. that had met the
criteria for commencement of capitalisation of HKAS 23) before the

effective date.

The Directors of the Company are in the process of assessing the
potential impact and so far concluded that the application of the other
new or revised standards, amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and financial position of the Group and

the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The principal accounting policies

adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries) made up to 3Ist March, each year. Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its

activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date

of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used

by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at their fair values at the

acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds
the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Assets classified as held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its

present condition.

3.

BT ER (#)

%ﬁéﬁ

HEEEDNRARBEREE - WERADRA
BRRKELEFHEMRRZ ARATHZE
B MELREAEZEERFIRERRITZR
FEBETACAVESR REMEKEH
ERBERATE - RUBHASEBNBER
ERARIFEFEH ARG 2 TREE
E AERIBEE  ARARUBREEZA
FERSD -

KEFELZBEERBIREE  UURE
%Ev%%%%Aﬁ&$ﬁﬁ$EEME$W
ZAHAEE  AERIARRBZATVEE
ﬁﬁ%ﬁZ%ﬁ°ﬂEEﬁ#ﬁé!$%E%
KEBHZIREEE  BERIBEGEZLD
TEFEMEEESEBEB AT 258
2B BN IR R AR

SEEREHERE
MEEZREELTEEBHERSMFRBRE
BEAZAAKE  BELEARFEHESR
E-UERSEREREEZAIKERS -
BZEETVHBUERERRHLE  AERE
BEERKHE -

Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the PERBELHEZEE  RREEEZENE
assets’ previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. HERAFEMER 2BEERHEERAG
=

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED 2009 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the

normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered

and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account their estimated residual values, using the straight-line

method.

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as an
investment property is classified as property, plant and equipment and
carried at cost less recognised impairment loss until construction or
development is complete, at which time it is reclassified to and
subsequently accounted for as investment property. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous

carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the

term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is

derecognised.

Investment properties

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use was regarded as held
for capital appreciation purpose and classified as an investment
property. Where such land is subsequently developed for future use as
an investment property, the property continues to be recognised as an
investment property while the development takes place. Such leasehold
land is carried at fair value. Changes in fair value of the leasehold land
were recognised directly in profit or loss for the period in which

changes take place.

On initial recognition, investment properties were measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair values

using the fair value model.

An investment property was derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property was permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits were expected from its disposals. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) was included in the consolidated income statement in the year in

which the item was derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet

at cost less any identified impairment losses.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment

losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated

income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities was recognised as an expense in the

period in which it was incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure was recognised only if it was anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project would be
recovered through future commercial activity. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be amortised, development expenditure

was charged to profit or loss in the period in which it was incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Prepaid lease payments

The cost of acquiring land under an operating lease is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease term except where the
properties are classified as assets held for sale and properties under
development and those classified as investment properties under fair

value model.

Inventories/properties under development

Inventories were stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost was calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value was determined as the estimated selling price less all further
costs of production and the related costs of marketing, selling and

distribution.

Properties under development which are intended to be held for sale
in the ordinary course of business are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value and are shown as current assets. Cost includes the
cost of prepaid lease land, construction cost and other development
expenditure and other attributable expenses. Net realisable value is

determined by management based on prevailing market conditions.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. In
addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.A reversal

of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance
sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset/liability and of allocating interest income/
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts/payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset/liability, or,

where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income/expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, amounts
due from related companies, amounts due from subsidiaries, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances) are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any identified impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EEEBR®#)
Financial instruments (Continued) EMIR (&)
Financial assets (Continued) SHEE (B)

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Loans and receivables are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows of

the financial assets have been impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

*  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
0 default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

0 it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For loans and receivables, such as trade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period between 30 to 120 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective

interest rate.

The carrying amount is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
loans and receivables with the exception of trade receivables and
amounts due from subsidiaries, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable and amounts due from subsidiaries are
considered uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest

in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are financial liabilities held for trading.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

¢ it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in

the near future; or

J it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

*  itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EEEBR®#)
Financial instruments (Continued) EMIR (&)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) SHMEERKRAEZ (B)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (Continued)
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest

paid on the financial liabilities.

Convertible bonds contain liability and conversion option derivative

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both liability and
conversion option components are classified separately into respective
items on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be settled
other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is a conversion option derivative. At the date of issue, both
the liability and conversion option components are recognised at fair

value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible bonds
is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
conversion option derivative is measured at fair value with changes in

fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds are
allocated to the liability and conversion option derivative in proportion
to the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
conversion option derivative is charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period

of the convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value at
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derivatives of the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting and thus
they are deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial

liabilities held for trading.

Derivatives embedded in financial instruments or other host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated as
at fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the
financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in

accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EEEBR®#)
Financial instruments (Continued) EMIR (&)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) SHMEERKRAEZ (B)

Obligation to acquire minority interests

A forward contract which contains an obligation to acquire minority
interest of a subsidiary is initially recognised at the present value of the
contracted amount (consideration payable) with a corresponding debit
to equity the minority interests and subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, amount
due to ultimate holding company, amount due to a subsidiary, amount
due to a related company and bank borrowings) are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Warrants/options issued by the Company that will be settled by other
than a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is a derivative financial instrument. Warrants/
options classified as a derivative financial instrument are recognised at
their fair values at the date of issue. They are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss

is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

If the fair values of the convertible bonds issued to existing
shareholders of the Company upon initial recognition is in excess of
the proceeds received, such excess is recognised as a distribution to

equity participants in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases was recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the term

of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet as a
finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease
are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on

a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as
a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To
the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
leasehold interests in land are accounted for as operating leases,
except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment

properties under the fair value model.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs in
the consolidated income statement in the period when they are

incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from the profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other year, and it further excludes income
statement items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred taxation is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred taxation liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred taxation assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction

that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred taxation is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case

the deferred taxation is also dealt with in equity.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included

in profit or loss for the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the entities of Group are translated from
their functional currencies to the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after Ist January, 2005 are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and retranslated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange

differences arising are recognised in the translation reserve.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to Directors of the Company and employees

Share options granted after 7th November, 2002 and vested before st April,
2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
Group’s consolidated balance sheet until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in the consolidated income
statement in respect of the value of options in the year. Upon the
exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded
by the Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares and the excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal

value of the share is recorded by the Company as share premium.

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share-based compensation reserve) or recognised as
an expense in full at the grant date when the share option granted vest

immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to Directors of the Company and employees
(Continued)

Share options granted after 7th November, 2002 and vested before |st April,
2005 (Continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited subsequent to
vesting or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to

retained profits.

Share options granted to other share option scheme participants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are measured
at the fair values of the goods or services received, unless that fair
value cannot be reliably measured, in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted. The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses immediately, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets. Corresponding adjustment has been

made to equity (share-based compensation reserve).

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed pension schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the Directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that
have a significant risk of causing material adjustments to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair values of derivatives financial instruments

The Directors of the Company use their judgment in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not quoted in
an active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by market

practitioners are applied.

The fair values of warrants and conversion option derivative are
subject to the limitation of the Binominal model that incorporated
market data and involved uncertainty in estimates used by management
in the assumptions. Because the Binominal model requires the input of
highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share price,
changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate. Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in Notes

31 and 34.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Income taxes

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses of
HK$172,168,000 (2008: HK$104,441,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In case where the
actual future profits generated are more than expected, additional
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which should be
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the period in

which it takes place.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to

shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total equity, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits, as disclosed in Note

37 and consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically.
As part of this review, the Directors of the Company prepare the
annual budget taking into account of the provision of funding. Based on
the proposed annual budget, the Directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the management of the Group, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debts or the

redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s and the Company’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, amounts due from related companies,
amounts due from subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits, bank balances,
trade and other payables, amount due to ultimate holding company,
amount due to a subsidiary, amount due to a related company,
derivative financial instruments and convertible bonds. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these kinds of

risks or the manner in which it manages and measures.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

6. MBIR
AEMRANDZTEN BT EAERKES
R EAM KRR - YRS A BRE - B
BLAANE BERBABES  ROLEE
NHREMELED  ENREERADRE
EN-—BHEARRE BN —MEEARR
B ESRIARTRRES - ARZeR
IERBzARBETEAR FZaAK - 5
wEREAMERAR)  SEARRESR
BAK - TXHIREZSARZHE - €8
EEBRERZZAR  UBRRERRE N
REE R -

AEEfEEZSENERIREERRT
BeRALELD o

(a) MABIRER

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
FEE Y. YA
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EEAE ZEENE —BTrE —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TER FERT FERT
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables ER R EWRFRIE
(including cash and (BERER
cash equivalents) REEEN) 1,644,768 4,242,230 5,278,635 4,334,591
Financial liabilities tREE
Amortised cost - S IR (1,759,860) (2,558,273) (1,280,500) (1,190,563)
Derivative financial TEERMIA
instruments (423,985) (1,433,432) (423,985) (1,386,771)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank deposits
and variable-rate borrowings. The Group is also exposed to fair
value interest rate risk which related primarily to its fixed-rate
borrowings and fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and the liability
component of convertible bonds issued by the Company. The
Group currently does not use any derivative contracts to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the management will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the

need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank deposits and
bank borrowings and the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of assets and liabilities outstanding at the balance sheet
date were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
increase or decrease is used for the management’s assessment of

the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year ended 3lst March, 2009 would increase/decrease by

HK$5,005,000 (2008: HK$9,164,000).
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6. MBIR @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk

Certain trade and other receivables, bank balances, trade and
other payables and convertible bonds of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group entered into
several foreign currency forward contracts with a bank to reduce
its exposure to currency fluctuations risk of certain bank deposits
that are denominated in RMB. These derivatives are not
accounted for under hedge accounting as the Group currently
does not have a formal currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will further
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the respective functional currencies of the

relevant group entities at the reporting date are as follows:

6. MBIR @

(c)

o0 L B
FEEETEREZFEAREBERRK
B RITHR BNEZREAREME
NREARTRREFANEREL -
AERE-FROTUEOIEERS
Ko EUBFEHEE TUARKFER
TERZERRDERRE - Z5TE
TADUEHETEAR  BAEER
i EXE WK - A B
BEEERNMER AR YE-SRE
FERZRUPEANERRE

AEERANAzEHRABRERERE
REE (RIGFSHBSEERERHRE
AZHEEBREM WT !

THE GROUP AEE
Assets Liabilities
BE Bff

2009 2008 2009 2008

“EEAE —2ENF —BTrE —2ENF

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FET TER FERT FERT
Hong Kong dollars Br ([EBrxl)

(“HKD”) 130,478 55,404 1,574,587 2,448,435
United States dollars £t ([E7t])

(“USD”) 10 920 — —

Renminbi (“RMB”) AR (TAR%]) - 2,683,345 112 578,964
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. UHEIR®@
(c) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (c) SRR (&)
THE COMPANY ENNE
Assets Liabilities
gE Bf&
2009 2008 2009 2008
—BThE ZEENEF —BThE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET THER FET TET
HKD BT 526,885 2,022,275 1,704,485 2,577,256
usD Y — 2,312,099 - 78
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MBEIR @
(c) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (c) ShMEERIE (&)
Sensitivity analysis BREZ
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase TRALFEEREHBADEEH R
and decrease in the relevant functional currencies against the BLEARTRO%EZHRBE - ERER
relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used for the FAS%EIRE L R M ETE 2 2 518 7] E
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in BETHME - BBRESMERER K
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only TRANNERENZESRER AR
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and FREZNE 2 EREZRELS%EE o
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign BREIMEEHIMERKIERENK
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external receivables B URAEEERETENMERH
and payables as well as loans to foreign operations within the ZEXR MERREREMNREUER
Group entities where the denomination of the receivables and FEPFZNEER AN 2ERREN -
payables is in a currency other than the functional currency of the TRZEBRTFERSNEER LN
lender or the borrower. A positive number below indicates an BIMNEFHED% R - m A R E MR AR
increase in profit for the year where the respective functional ZEMm e BYHREW RS Y RE%
currencies strengthen 5% against the relevant foreign currencies. B HHAFERNZFE S MM
For a 5% weakening of respective functional currencies against the R MTRZESRTEREEH -
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the profit for the year, and the balances below would be negative.
RMB impact HKD impact USD impact
AREZHE BLZHE EnZHE
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“STAF “TEN\F REAE “TTN\F CREAE SFINF
HK$000  HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000

TET TEL  TF#ER TELT  T#R TET

THE GROUP BN
Increase (decrease) in FERFIEM
profit for the year (R ) 6 (95748) 58,793 22,939 - (95,405)
THE COMPANY ENNG
(Decrease in profit/increase ORFRD
in loss) increase in profit/ BEEm)
decrease in loss FERFEM
for the year SEEV RS - — 58,880 22,893 —  (95371)

The sensitivity analysis excludes the effect of certain foreign
currency forward contracts which were entered into to hedge the
currency fluctuations risk of bank deposits that denominated in
RMB. The sensitivity of the foreign currency forward contract is
provided in Note 6(d)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Other price risk

U]

Conversion option derivative, warrants and share options

The Group and the Company are required to estimate the
fair value of the conversion option derivative of the
convertible bonds and warrants and options issued by the
Company at each balance sheet date, which therefore
exposed the Group and the Company to equity price risk.
The fair value adjustment will be affected either positively or
negatively, amongst others, by the changes in risk-free rate,
the Company’s share price and share price volatility. Details
of the convertible bonds, warrants and options issued by the

Company are set out in Notes 34 and 31, respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to the Company’s share price, volatility and
foreign currency rate risk at the reporting date only as the
Directors consider that the change in risk-free rate may not
have significant financial impact on the fair values of

conversion option derivative, warrants and share options.
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6. MBIR @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MBIR @
(d) Other price risk (Continued) (d) EfbER&ER (&)
() Conversion option derivative, warrants and share options (i) HBEBETETIR RIWEIZRERE
(Continued) (&)
Changes in share price BREZE8
If the share price of the Company had been 10% higher/ EXNRRELATHRI0%
lower while all other input variables of the valuation models BEEIAZHEMBHERTE B
were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year would AREFEERAZ (AD) B mER
(decrease) increase and the Company’s profit for the year RAERNRZEERF OH D) &0
would (decrease) increase (2008: loss for the year would (ZZZNF  FEFE (MR
(increase) decrease) as follows: DERWT
2009 2008
—EE0E —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
Higher by 10% EH10%
Derivative financial instruments: FTEEHMIA
Share options B —_ (33,923)
Warrants R R (9,851) (59,095)
Conversion option derivative RBEERTETR (69,322) (124,242)
Lower by 10% D 10%
Derivative financial instruments: fTEE®MIA :
Share options BB — 33,747
Warrants Ebe £ 8,214 56,190
Conversion option derivative HIBERETETE 65,621 120,258
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Other price risk (Continued)

(i)

Conversion option derivative, warrants and share options
(Continued)

Changes in volatility

If the volatility to the valuation model had been 10% higher/
lower while all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit would (decrease) increase and the Company’s
profit for the year would (decrease) increase (2008: loss for

the year would (increase) decrease) as follows:

e MBERRME
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6. MBIR®
(d) HbEHRER (&)

(i)

RBETETE AREERBRE
&)

RIEZEE
EMEEARZRE LA THE
0% MAREMBRERTE -
AAREZAFERAM GRD)
o AR E 2 FERNE (BD)
Bm(Z2ENF  FEHR (8

mm) M
2009 2008
—TTAE “EBEN\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTERT FHET
Higher by 10% EFH10%
Derivative financial instruments: fTESmIA:
Share options BRE —_ (14,146)
Warrants AR REE (1,973) (24,395)
Conversion option derivative RBETETR (70,138) (92,965)
Lower by 10% TF& 10%
Derivative financial instruments: fTEemMI A :
Share options BRE —_ 16,807
Warrants IR REE 7,373 24,771
Conversion option derivative SBREMTETR 73,295 97,219
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

(d) Other price risk (Continued)

(i) Conversion option derivative, warrants and share options
(Continued)
Changes in foreign currency exchange rate
If the foreign currency rate of RMB against Hong Kong
dollars had been 5% higher/lower while all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit would increase
(decrease) and the Company’s profit for the year would
increase (decrease) (2008: loss for the year would decrease

(increase) as follows:

MBI #)
(d) HibE#&ER &)

(i)

RBETETER AREERERE
(&)

IEERZEH
MEARBABTZIEER LR
/ THE%mAE Lt #HERT
2 AAEE RN D)
MADE 2 FERNBE M R D)
(ZZ2ENF  FEFRBRY (B
T

2009 2008
“EEAE —RENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT
Higher by 5% £ 5%
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmIA:
Conversion option derivative ABRBAESTETR 19,836 (39,629)
Share options B - (13,695)
Warrants RRER 1,364 (16,014)
Lower by 5% T B 5%
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmIA:
Conversion option derivative RAETETR (19,836) 39,629
Share options ERE — 13,695
Warrants RRER (1,364) 16,014

In Director’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation of the conversion
option component of convertible bonds, warrants and share
options involve multiple variables and certain variables are

inter-dependent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Other price risk (Continued)

(ii)

Foreign currency forward contracts

The Group entered into several foreign currency forward
contracts with a bank to reduce its exposure to currency
fluctuations risk of bank deposits which were denominated
in RMB. These derivatives were not accounted for under
hedge accounting. The Group was required to estimate the
fair value of the forward currency contracts at each balance
sheet date, which therefore exposed the group to other
price risk. During the year, the subsidiary which held such
forward contracts was disposed of. The Group does not
hold any outstanding forward contracts as at 3|st March,
2009.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below were determined based on
the exposure to the Group’s forward buying rate risk at the

reporting date only.

Changes in forward exchange rate

If the forward exchange rate of RMB against USD had been
5% higher/lower while all other input variables of the
valuation models were held constant, the Group’s profit for

the year ended 31st March, 2008 would increase (decrease)

e MBERRME
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6. MBIR @
(d) HivEHERE (&)

(ii)

MEEHEN

AEER-FROTTLZHIINER
HEed BENARBAEMZE
TRATERMEE 2 HME KB E B2
B o ZETETIATRRENE
AEAR  AREARSEE AR
AHEEMAHN (EAEEEE L
BRER) 2AVE - FEZRERS
HZHMBRAAERAFERLE o
R-ZZEENE=ZA=1+-B %K
B ESEEARTREHREH

HRED
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BmEE o

EHEZZEH

MEARBEETZEHNER FF
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as follows: BRI R W
2009 2008
—BENE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FTET
Higher by 5% EF#H5%
Derivative financial instruments: TEELHMIA:
Foreign currency forward contracts HERMER — 311,513
Lower by 5% Tk 5%
Derivative financial instruments: PTEELHMIA
Foreign currency forward contracts MERBEN — (23,807)

200074 BRBELRERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Credit risk

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the

Group and the Company due to failure to discharge an obligation

by the counterparties is arising from:

*  the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial

assets as stated in the consolidated and the Company’s

balance sheet; and

*  the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial

guarantee issued by the Company as disclosed in Note 45.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

In this regard, the Directors of the Company consider that the

Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies or stated-owned bank in the

People’s of Republic China (the “PRC”).

At 3Ist March, 2008, the Group’s concentration of credit risk on
trade receivables by geographical locations was mainly in the
United States of America (“USA”). At 31st March, 2008, 45% of
the balance of trade receivables comprised receivables derived
from USA. In addition at 3Ist March, 2008, the Group had
significant concentration of credit risk on by individual customers,

with exposure to the Group’s five largest customers comprising

32% of these outstanding trade receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) Credit risk (Continued)

(U]

At 31st March, 2009, the Group’s concentration of credit risk was
mainly in receivable from a disposed subsidiary and deposits paid
in respect of the construction and operation of the club and
theme park (Note 24). The Group’s concentration of credit risk

on other receivables was mainly in PRC.

The Company is exposed to concentration of credit risk on few

subsidiaries on the amounts due from subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group’s
and the Company’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group and the Company
manage liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking

facilities and reserve.

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group has no available unutilised bank
loan facilities (2008: HK$73,766,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MBIR®
(f) Liquidity risk (Continued) () "BHELER (&)
The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s TRALAEERADNAERMEE (B
remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities, including ARRES 2EBEDIRIMEEREHN)
liability component of convertible bonds and foreign currency ZHBENEYE - EERAKEAE
forward contracts. The table has been drawn up based on the BRZEPAY RERBEZRER
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the RERIK - WREFANERELEZH
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The & o
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
THE GROUP REE
Carrying
Total amount
Weighted undiscounted at
average 6 months cash  31.3.2009
interest rate  Less than 3.6 tol year flows R=BFLE
ME 3 months months ~EA  l2years  25years KERKE ZR=+-H
THiE  ZEANT =EREA i-§ -Ezf  CERE REE  mkEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn Tén Tén Fén T T Tin
2009 “ELE
Trade and other payables At ERFRHM:
(Note) e (W) - 455454 = 180,800 = = 636,254 610,182
Liability component of TaRES
convertible bonds ZAERS 1.5% - 53,201 53,201 106,403 1,791,114 2,003,919 1,142,958
Obligations under finance leases BER X EH 6% 19 14 29 5% % 26 178
Amount due to a Eff-EBE
related company G - 6,542 — — — — 6,542 6,542
462,015 53215 234,030 106,461 1,791,210 2,646,931 1,759,860
Note: As at 31st March, 2009, advance from KZEHREEREEFR Mz : R-ZBEAF=A=+-H BYE=FXEE

A A Tianjin Hi-Tech Property Development Company Limited
(“Tianjin Hi-Tech Property”), an independent third party , in
respect of construction, operation of the club and theme park, is
amounting to RMB136,927,000 (equivalent to HK$154,727,000)
with effective interest rate at 21%. Details disclosed in Note 28.

The remaining trade and other payables are non-interest bearing.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MBIR®
(f) Liquidity risk (Continued) () “BHELERE (&)
THE GROUP (Continued) XEE (8)
Carrying
Total amount
Weighted undiscounted at
average 6 months cash 31.3.2008
interest rate Less than 3-6 to | year flows R=BENE

it 3 months months ~EA [-2 years 2Syers AEEEE ZB=t+-H
FUNE  ZfERUT ZEXfER £-% -EIf  CER% nEE  NEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TEx TEn Tén TRn TR TEx

2008 nt &8
Trade and other payables EARRREL
A - 206,288 - - - - 206,288 206,268

Liability component of k&S

convertible bonds PA-LC:) 75% - 53,001 53,001 106403 1897517 2010322 1047552
Bank borrowings RITER

- fixed rate —EBEAE  Sed% - 375,035 258,489 - — 633,724 616,187

- variable rate —FBAE  656% 328018 360,898 - - - 688,916 676,080
Foreign currency MEEaK

forward contracts - - 31912 14,749 — - 46,661 46,661
Obligations under RERNER

finance leases 5.37% 44 44 91 |76 |64 519 436
Amount due to ultimate e

holding company ARHE = 30 — — — — 30 30
Amount due to a Ef-HEE

related company A - 11,700 - - - - 11,700 11,700

546,080 821,290 326,530 106,579 1,897,681 3,698,160 2,604,934
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MBIR #
(f) Liquidity risk (Continued) () "BHELER (&)
THE COMPANY YN
Carrying
Total amount
Weighted undiscounted at
average 6 months cash  31.3.2009
interest rate  Less than 3.6 tol year flows R=BFLE
ME 3 months months ~EA  l2years  25years KERKE ZR=+-H
FHE  ZERUT =EXERA i-f -EZf CERf nAE  mREE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$§'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
2009 k%2
Other payables HitEARE - 1,102 - - - - 1,102 1,102
Liability component of RRES
convertible bonds PASL ) 7.5% - 53,001 53,001 106403 1791114 2003919 1,142,958
Amount due to il
a subsidiary AAHAE - 129,898 — — — — 129,898 129,898
Amount due to a Ef-HEE
related company G - 6,542 — — — — 6,542 6,542
137,542 53,001 53,201 106403 1791114 2041461 1280500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MBIR®
(f) Liquidity risk (Continued) () “BHELERE (&)
THE COMPANY (Continued) ART (&)
Carrying
Total amount
Weighted undiscounted at
average 6 months cash 31.3.2008
interest rate Less than 3-6 to | year flows R=BENE

it 3 months months ~EA [-2 years 2Syers AEEEE ZB=t+-H
THRZE  ZEANT  ZEAfER -§ -EZf  ZERF REE  WREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TEx TEn Tén TRn TR TEx

H

2008 tEEAE
Other payables HEEARE - 1379 e - = = 1379 1379
Liability component of TERES
convertible bonds ZERBH 75 - 5301 5301 106403 1897517 211032 104755
Amount due to ultimate Ef&A2R
holding company DGR - 30 - - - - 30 30
Amount due to Ef-BNE
a subsidiary AAHE — 129,902 — — — — 129,902 129,902
Amount due to a Ef-EEE
related company G - 11,700 - - - - 11,700 11,700
143,011 53,201 53,201 106,403 1,897,517 2253333 1,190,563
Note: Liquidity risk analysis excludes conversion options derivative, Mz RBESEBINFEEFIRAS
warrants and share options which do not involve cash settlement. FETRRARITETER  RARER

REBRAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(g) Fair values of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

¢ the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates from

current market transactions as input.

*  The fair value of derivative instruments is determined using
option pricing model. Where such prices are not available,
use is made of discounted cash flow analysis using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments
for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for

optional derivatives.

. Foreign currency forward contracts were measured using
quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves derived
from quoted exchange rates matching maturities of the

contracts.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their

corresponding fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

For management purposes, the operations of the Group are currently
divided into two businesses, which are property development and

property investment.

The Group was also involved in the development and sales of digital
consumer products. That operation was discontinued during the year
(see Note 14).The comparative figures were restated to represent the

corresponding segment information of that discontinued operations.

Business segments

Segment information about these business is presented below.

For the year ended 3 1st March, 2009

TEER
REREHMNS  AREXBRNSAWEA-
NEBRRINERE -

AEETBREERREERABRRHEZE
%o ZEBERFTFERLL (HE14) - BH
BERLEBZRBIBENLBAFECET

EBOE
RHELEB 22 BEANENNT -

BE_SENE=A=+-HLEE

&
Revenue and results BaRRE
Continuing Operations Discontinued Operations
RREEEY ERILEH
Development and
Property Property sales of digital
development investment Total consumer products Consolidated
HEHEER
AR LES @t MERHE &8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
CERAE CERNECREAE CETNE CRBAE CET/\FIRRAE CET/\FZRRAE CRENE
HK$’000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Tén TRz TFEn TEx FEn TEz TR TEx TER TiEn
Turnover EEE - - = — = — 3,107,538 4297788 3,107,538 4,297,788
Segment results TEER (1,189)  (45593) (488,857) 1549,094 (490,046) 1503501 318,275 457,834 (I71,771) 1961335
Interest income FIEBWA 32,136 8333 37,354 28103 69,490 36436
Unallocated corporate RAE
expenses NAER (226,534)  (72,716) - — (226,534) (72.716)
Finance costs HEER (209,814) (111,708) (145,751) (126,209) (355,565) (237,917)
Gain (osses) on derivative fTESRIA
financial instruments g (B8) 980,937  (502,134) 47512 (46,661) 1,028,449  (548,795)
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries HENWBAT WG - — 322,191 19,619 322,191 19,619
Profit before taxation B AER 86,679 825276 579,581 332686 666,260 1,157,962
Taxation #E 116,386  (398561) (52,353) (72,751) 64,033  (471312)
Profit for the year REERT 203,065 426715 527,228 259935 730,293 686,650
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

Business segments (Continued)
At 31st March, 2009

Assets and liabilities

PEER @)
EBSE (&)
RZTFAF=ZA=+-H
BERER
Continuing Operations Discontinued Operations
RREZEH ERLEH
Development and
Property Property sales of digital
development investment Total consumer products Consolidated
HBHEER
e hERE it RERHE &8

2009 2008 2009 2008

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

CERAE SRR CREAE CERN\E CRRAE SRR\ FIRRAE CRE/\F ZRRAE CRENE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TEr TFER TEx

HK$'000  HK$'000

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000
TEn TEx TER TR TER TEx

Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 1,939,115 1,195,326 3,893,269 2,790,400 5,832,384 3,985,726 — 1,200,647 5,832,384 5,186,373
Unallocated corporate assets FABDAERE 1,794,158 3,473,907
Consolidated total assets GABEE 7,626,542 8,660,280
Liabilities 8f
Segment liabilities PEER (222,290)  (23,609) (671,429) (27,148) (893,719)  (50,757) —  (209899) (893,719) (260,656)

Unallocated corporate liabilities KABLAEE

(1,909,193) (4310222)

Consolidated total liabilities Gat

(2,802,912) (4570878)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. HEEH @
Business segments (Continued) EBNE (B
For the year ended 31st March, 2009 BE-EENESHA=T—-HLEE
Continuing Operations Discontinued Operations
RASERE ERLEEH
Development and
Property Property sales of digital
development investment Unallocated Total consumer products Consolidated
HIEHEER
hEHR LES AHE @it RS &8
(Note)
(Hri)

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZREAF CERNFCRRAF CERNF CRRAE CRE\E CERAE SRR\ F CERAE SR\ RRAE CERNE
HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKS000 HK§'000  HKSO00 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000 HKS'000  HKS$000
FTER TEr FERT TEx TFER TEx TER TR FER TER FER  THEx

Additions to investment JFEREYE

properties - — - 1,126,318 - — - 1,126318 - — - 1,126,318
Additions to property, AREHE °

plant and equipment ~ HERKE 626 1807 74,147 = 1,504 1980 76,211 3787 2433 4890 78,710 8677
Additions to prepaid SRS

|ease payments REZE - — 1,048,887 — - — 1,048,887 - - — 1,048,887 -

Allowance for REREE (EBE)

(reversal of)

bad and doubtful debts - - - - - [,459 - [,459 - (5.481) - (4022)
Release of prepaid ~ BAHEFHEEL

|ease payments - — 13,187 — - — 13,187 — - 108 13,187 108
Allowance for FEBRE

inventories - — - — - - - — 18,313 1,530 18,313 1,530
Amortisation of HEZEY

trade marks - — - — - — - — 11,951 12,630 11,951 12,630
[mpairment loss BEZHERE

on trade marks - - - - - - - — - 36,915 - 36,915
Depreciation of property, 415 » ##& R

plant and equipment  KfEZITE 3l — 394 — 1,854 962 2479 962 8,344 2478 10,823 23440

Loss (gain) on disposal i EME - &
of property, plant e P

and equipment (&) - - - - 69 (46) 69 (46) - 168 69 12
Share-based HRAAHER
payments expenses  [{HZER - - - - - 0 - 0 = - - 0w
Note: Included in segment assets of properties under development st : SAABRFMELEEE21,912,791,000
HK$1,912,791,000 (2008: HK$1,038,395,000) represented prepaid lease BT (ZZZ/\F :1,038,395,000%8 1T) &
payments of which HK$1,005,367,000 were acquired in the current FEAHEEEM - HH1,005,367,0008 T2
financial year (2008: HK$961,230,000). REABBREERB(ZZESNEF:

961,230,000/ T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. HEEH ®
Geographical segments WESE
The Group’s discontinued operations in development and sales of AEEHBHEEMMBEREECCRLE
digital consumer products and the continuing operations in property B NERRRINERECHERLEERIE
development and property investment are principally located in the URFE FEESE -

PRC, excluding Hong Kong.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales by TREHEAEEZBEDSD B2 HEZ I
geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/services: (FwER/ R ZREH) :

Sales revenue
from discontinued
operation by

geographical market

BHMEWESE
ZHEWE

2009 2008
k- k-2 B3 —ZEEN\E
HK$ HK$
THET TET
Europe B 264,951 1,050,598
USA XE 2,610,937 1,935,600
Hong Kong B 142,265 825,407
Other regions in the PRC HEIH fth it & 69,608 253,622
Others Hith 19,777 232,561
3,107,538 4,297,788
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical segments (Continued)
There was no revenue derived from the continuing operations during

the year ended 3 st March, 2009 (2008: Nil).

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets,
and additions to property, plant and equipments analysed by the

geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amounts

of segment assets

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

PEER @)

wEDE (&)
REE-_ZEENE=ZA=+—HILEE BE&E
KREEBTARELERA (CESNE : £) o

UTADBEERAERMENE  BERR
REREEMELBETZOMN

Additions to property,

plant and equipment

DESEREE REVE  BRERRE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENE —EEN\F ZEEAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK’000 HK$°000
FHET TEr FHET T
Hong Kong BH — 15,006 2,281 2,960
Other regions in the PRC  HE HAHE 5,832,384 4,992,648 76,413 5,703
Others Ht — 178,719 16 14
5,832,384 5,186,373 78,710 8,677
OTHER INCOME 8. HalA

Other income for the year includes the following:

ERZEMBABEATEE

Continuing Discontinued
Operations Operations Consolidated
REEEEH EBRIEER &8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“RPAF SFTTNF SERAF SFTTNF SEPAF SFTNE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FTE&Rx TFTEx FER TFTEx FER THER
Interest received RITER
on bank deposits U B 2 Fl & 32,136 8333 37,354 28,103 69,490 36,436
Others Hith 144 150 21,123 4,318 21,267 4,468
32,280 8,483 58,477 32,421 90,757 40,904
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ 9. EERILZREFEENS
REMUNERATION

(i) Details of Directors’ remuneration are as follows: (i) ZEMEFBOT :
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2008: five) ENSERLE (CZENE  ER)E
Directors were as follows: E5EZHMenT :
Other emoluments
Hipb <
Salaries
and other

benefits Pension Total

Fees itk costs emoluments

He HiiEF BRRE B &aE

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

TER TER THERT TERT

Pan Sutong (“Mr.Pan”)  EEE ([EXE)) — 22,500 12 22,512

Huang Xiaojian mEE — 1,200 — 1,200

Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence RER 410 - - 410

Ng Lai Man, Carmen REX 341 — — 341

Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny ~ ERE &, 273 — — 273

Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond T &’ — 1,387 6 1,393

Zhou Xiaojun ARE — 1,440 — 1,440

Total for 2009 “EENELE 1,024 26,527 18 27,569

Other emoluments

HitB &

Salaries

and other
benefits Pension Total
Fees HeRk costs emoluments
e Hit R A RIREA < 2%
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THERT THERT FET THET
Pan Sutong (“Mr.Pan”)  EEE ([FXE)) — 15,000 12 15,012
Huang Xiaojian BEEE — 660 — 660
Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence AR 410 — — 410
Ng Lai Man, Carmen REX 341 — — 341
Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny ~ BRE 273 — — 273
Total for 2008 —EEN\FLH 1,024 15,660 12 16,696
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(ii)

Employees’ remuneration:

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, three (2008:
one) are the Directors of the Company whose emoluments are
disclosed above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2008:
four) are employees of the Group, details of whose remuneration

are as follows:

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

9. EFRIEREHEENSE @

(i) EEMS :

AAEEREREHFALH  ZE(ZF
ENF: —R)REDAZES K2
MEREXRE - FTAREME (=F
ENF MR EEZHEFENT :

2009 2008
—gEAE  —%INE
HK$’000 HK$°000
THET TET
Salaries, allowances and other benefits He  EEREMER 3,240 4,543
Pension costs BIREAR 24 20
3,264 4,563

Their emoluments were within the following bands: REZHMENFTIHIEE
2009 2008
—EELE  —TINF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 8 TZ 1,000,000 % T - |
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /& Tt £ 1,500,000 /& 7T 1 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& jt £ 2,000,000 /& 7T 1 —
2 4

During both years, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
Directors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals of
the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors of the
Company has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during

both years.

REER  FEELEAHETFES
FhEBREHEESFAMAXKEET
WalMARER 2 REHEDBR 2B
E-RWEATEESHRAFDEAR
EAME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B ER
Continuing Operations Discontinued Operations  Consolidated
RATERY E&IEEH &8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

“FEAE CTT\F ZFFAE —FT/\F ZFFAE —FINRF
HK$000  HK$000  HK'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
T#x TEr FTER TEx  FER  TEx

Interest on: THEEZFE :
— Bank borrowings wholly - BAREEREH
repayable within five years EEZBITENR - — 145,751 126,187 145,751 126,187
— Finance leases -RMEHED 31 18 — 22 31 40
— Others —Hft 1,827 — - — 1,827 —
Effective interest expense on AgRES 2
convertible bonds BB EMX 201,956 111,690 - — 201,956 111,690

209,814 [11,708 145,751 126,209 355,565 237917
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

. GAINS (LOSSES) ON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 11. fT£&RMT Bz (BE)
INSTRUMENTS
Continuing Operations Discontinued Operations  Consolidated
RETEEY BRI EH &8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“BTAE CTEN\F ZBTAE —TTN\F ZBTAE ZTENF
HK$000  HK$'000 HK’000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TET
Fair value change on share RTHEMSEEZ
options granted to other BREZATE
participants (Note 31 (b)) #{ (M 31(b)) 206,127  (273,901) - — 206,127  (273,901)
Gain on derecognition REUHHERERE
of share options &4 KUz
(Note 31(b)) (FfEE 31(b)) 57,184 — - — 57,184 —
Fair value change on convertible X IRHAEST4H T A
option derivatives in MBRRESZ
convertible bonds AFER 424,960  (161,088) - — 424,960 (161,088)
Fair value change on warrants RREEZ
ATEZ 292,666 (67,145) - — 292,666 (67,145)
Fair value change on foreign HNERBEH
currency forward contracts ZATERL - — 41,512 (46,661) 47,512 (46,661)
980,937  (502,134) 47,512 (46,661) 1,028,449  (548,795)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

12. OTHER GAINS (LOSSES) AND EXPENSES/PROFIT BEFORE 12, H{tili#s (518) RER /B# AR F
TAXATION
Continuing Operations Discontinued Operations  Consolidated
RATERY E&IEEH &8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZFTAE CTT)\F ZBFAE CTT/\F ZRBAE IR
HK$000  HK$'000 HK’000  HK$'000 HK$’000  HK$'000
Tén THBr Féx TEx FER @ TEx
Profit before taxation has been BB AR A E MR
arrived at after charging (5tA) UT&®\:
(crediting):
Allowance for (reversal of) bad *EREHE (BE)
and doubtful debts (FFAREMK R
(included in other gains (losses) (B#) REAR)
and expenses) — [,459 — (5,481) — (4,022)
Release of prepaid lease ANHEREED
payments (included in (GFARTHER)
administrative expenses) 13,187 — — 108 13,187 108
Auditors’ remuneration BEMME 2,998 2,628 588 49 3,586 3119
Cost of sales comprises: HERKERE
Cost of inventories recognised BRAREXZ
as expenses BFERAK — — 2,691,796 3,634,704 2,691,796 3,634,704
Allowance for inventories FERE - — 18,313 [1,530 18,313 [1,530
Amortisation of trade marks PEAZ 2 8 — — 11,951 12,630 11,951 12,630
Impairment loss on BEZHEEE
trade marks — — — 36,915 — 36,915
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERRELZ
and equipment e 2,479 962 8,344 22,478 10,823 23,40
Foreign exchange loss (gain),net ~ JMNEEE (&) FE
(included in other gains (losses) (AR HE oz
and expenses) (B#E) RER) 118,674 (11,068) (3,193) 18,033 115,481 6,965
Loss (gain) on disposal of HEME BERRE
property, plant and equipment ZEE (lE) 69 (46) - 168 69 122
Operating lease rentals in HEMREERY
respects of rented premises He 20,683 7,669 2,882 14,789 23,565 22,458
Pre-development expenditures MEAZEH (GtAB
(included in other gains (losses) Hitis (F#8) &
and expenses) (Note) BR) () - 70,468 — = — 70,468
Research and development PR AL
costs expensed —_ — 3,862 4,388 3,862 4,388
Royalty expenses R E X — = - 565 — 565
Staff costs (including directors’ EIRK (B
emoluments) ESMe)
Salaries, bonuses and Fe o AR
allowances 50,777 17,774 12,697 42,590 63,474 60,364
Retirement benefits cost RKBRIAA
(Note 42) (P&E 42) 1,028 140 162 2,152 1,190 2,292
Share-based payments MR A3 A B A A K
expenses ZER - 32,267 - = — 32,267
51,805 50,18l 12,859 44,742 64,664 94,923
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER GAINS (LOSSES) AND EXPENSES/PROFIT
BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Note: The amount represented expenses incurred before the development of a

property development project for both property development and

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

12. Rl (B8R RER /BB A 7
(%)

Wi KREEBE-SENFZASt-ALE

ENERRERMEREN AR - NED

property investment segments for the year ended 3Ist March, 2008. BEAAEEZHY -
. TAXATION 13. HilE
Continuing Discontinued
Operations Operations Consolidated
REGERYE ERILER &8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

CERAFE SRR\ FIRTAFE CSR/\FZETAE CTTNF
HK$000 HK$000 HK’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TExT TEx TFERX TExT FERXT TERX

The charge comprises: BIEX HERE !
The Company and subsidiaries: 282 & K& B 2 7

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EMEH

— Current year —REE 1,982 1,865 26,839 43,350 28,821 45,215

— Underprovision in -—-EFEERE
prior years A — — — 301 — 301
1,982 1,865 26,839 43,651 28,821 45,516

Deferred taxation (Note 35)  EREBIE (KisE35) (118,368) 396,696 25514 29,100 (92,854) 425,796

Taxation (credit) charge FEHIE (EKR)
for the year X (116,386) 398561 52,353 72,751  (64,033) 471,312

No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided as there was no assessable
profit for both years. Taxation arising in other countries or other
regions in the PRC is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
jurisdiction. Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
certain subsidiaries are entitled to exemption from Enterprise Income
Tax under certain tax holidays and concessions. And one of the
subsidiaries established in Macau was entitled to exemption from
income tax under relevant tax concessions. This Macau subsidiary was

disposed of during the year ended 31st March, 2008.

EmEFEYEERTEHN  MEFREBRE
BoHtEARSFEREMBE2HBENREEEL
REMRAZBINERTE - RETEMAEEMNR
AR ETHELARBRRETEHARAREH R
BMEERSEH - ZRMARLZ—EKBLRARE
HERBEEEREREH - WRMKEBEARER
BE-ZET\FZA=1+-RLEERLE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

13. TAXATION (Continued) 13. HIE (&)

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the State Bureau of
Shenzhen Longgang District dated 20th July, 2004, Matsunichi
Information Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Information
Technology (Shenzhen)”), a subsidiary of the Company which has been
disposed during the year ended 31st March, 2009, had been designated
as a newly established foreign manufacturing enterprises. As a result,
Information Technology (Shenzhen) was entitled to the two year’s
exemption from Enterprise Income Tax followed by three years of 50%
tax reduction commencing from the first profit-making year with effect
from 2004 (“Tax Benefit Period”).

On |6th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on
Enterprise Income (the “New Law”) by Order No. 63 of the President
of the PRC. On 6th December, 2007, the State Council of the PRC
issued implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New Law and
Implementation Regulations have changed the tax rate to 25% from Ist

January, 2008 after the Tax Benefit Period.

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED 2009 Annual Report

1R 1% State Bureau of Shenzhen Longgang
District R=ZTMEFLA-tHEH2#
X ARRZMBRRARAEERR (RN A
RAA(MEERFE (RN ] ERBE=2F
NEZRA=Z+-RLEFERLE) BEESH
BUNERELR - At - FERE (R R
BFRBEFNZE D-_SENFEZEWF
ZHEHEHR  WREER=FZH50%2BIE
R (HBEEEHD -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

13. TAXATION (Continued) 13. BiIE (&)
The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before FERBIETRGAERER 2B ADERE
taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows: BT

Continuing Operations Discontinued Operations  Consolidated
HREERE E&IEEH &8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZRRAE D22\ ZFFAE CTT/\F ZBREAE C2TNF
HK$000  HK$'000 HK’000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
Té#r TEr FER TEx  FER 2 TEn

Profit before taxation BREE AR A 86,679  82527¢ 579,581 332,686 666,260 1,157,962
Tax charge at the domestic BAM S = 25%

income tax rate of 25% (ZEENE :33%)

(2008: 33%) AEZBIEX 21,670 272,341 144,895 109,786 166,565 382,127
Tax effect of income not taxable ~ FLEEH M S BARH

for tax purpose WAZHBEE (245,500) (777)  (92,434)  (12,826) (337,934)  (13,603)
Tax effect of expenses not AR S RS

deductible for tax purpose MY HETE 106,043 242,492 1,240 75305 107,283 317,797
Tax effect of tax losses not WERR 2 HEER

recognised ZRBZE 8,468 11,368 391 18,678 8,859 30,046
Utilisation of tax losses previously &) f A £l R HE 52

not recognised ZHEBE (7,524) — — — (7,524) —
Withholding tax on W2 RAR D IREF

undistributed earnings of 2B

subsidiaries (Note 35) (Pt 35) - — 25514 29,100 25,514 29,100
Effect of tax exemptions for MERRR ZBE

offshore profits Hezgg - — — (17622 — (17622
Income tax on concessionary ?ﬁ@%%‘_—‘%‘l’%

rate ZFEH - —  (36,832) (138591) (36,832) (138591)
Effect of tax rate differential 33% K& 25% Fi =&

between 33% and 25% TRzEE —  (126,944) - 9,310 — (117,634

Effect of different tax rates of HHMREER
subsidiaries operating in other EECHBAR

jurisdictions BMERE2EE (2,761) — 2,990 — 229 —
Underprovision in prior years BEFEZBERR - = - 301 — 301
Others Hft 3,218 8l 6,589 (690) 9,807 (609)
Taxation (credit) charge for EEREXH

the year (116,386) 398,56 52,353 72,751 (64,033) 471,312
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year ended 3Ist March, 2009, the Group was entered into

the following sale and purchase agreements in respect of disposal of

the entire interest of certain subsidiaries of the Group, which

principally engaged in the operation of development and sales of digital

consumer products:

U]

On |0th June, 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with
Grace Dragon International Holdings Limited (“Grace Dragon”)
to dispose the entire equity interest in a wholly owned subsidiary,
Matsunichi Digital Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited
(“Digital Technology (Shenzhen)”) for a cash consideration of
RMB100,069,000 (equivalent to HK$113,419,000). Mr. Pan, a
Director of the Company, has beneficial interest in Grace Dragon.
The disposal was completed upon the control of Digital

Technology (Shenzhen) was passed to the acquirer.

On 25th August, 2008, a sale and purchase agreement was entered
into with an independent third party to dispose of the entire
issued share capital of Best Concord Group Limited (“Best
Concord”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Information
Technology (Shenzhen) (collectively referred as “Best Concord
Group”) at a consideration of HK$717,303,000. The disposal was
completed upon the control of Best Concord Group was passed

to the acquirer.
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14. ERILEFR
REBZE-BENE=ZA=+—-ALEE &£
BEREErAE@ETHEAR 22 BERT

VYTHEE R -

ZEWBLRETERBHIE

HEEmMARREERS

(i)

(i)

R=—ZZENFRA+H KATHGrace
Dragon International Holdings
Limited ([Grace Dragonl) s\ 13
P& — @ 2 & It B 2 & Matsunichi
Digital Technology (Shenzhen)
Company Limited ( [ Digital
Technology (Shenzhen)]) #92 &K
B HEKEAAKE100,069,0007T
(HEM113,419,0008 T) - AABES
7%& % £ M Grace Dragonh EE S #H
# o 3% 1 & M Digital Technology

(Shenzhen)Z ZHIBEREF KT °

R-ZZENFNA=+HAB  XAAH
—BBUE=RTLI-—NEEHE A
i &Best Concord Group Limited
([Best Concord]) REZEMBE N RE
B CRII (£ Best Concords
Bl)z228E8T0KREA REAR
717,303,000/ 7T ° % A i & 1 Best
ConcordR B2 EHBBEREF AT
B o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(iii) On I5th January, 2009, the Company entered into three sale and

purchase agreements with Matsunichi Global Investment Limited

(“Matsunichi Global”) whereby the Company had agreed to

dispose and Matsunichi Global had agreed to acquire:

()

the entire issued and paid-up capital of a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Ocean Talent Limited (“Ocean
Talent”) and the assignment of loan of HK$216,257,000 for a
consideration of HK$162,694,000. The disposal was
completed upon the control of Ocean Talent was passed to

the acquirer.

the entire paid-up capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, Matsunichi Digital Technology Limited (“Digital
Technology”) and the assignment of loan of HK$ 11,726,000
for a consideration of HK$ 1. The disposal was completed
upon the control of Digital Technology was passed to the

acquirer.

the entire issued and paid-up capital of a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Matsunichi Technology
(Singapore) Pte. Limited (“Technology (Singapore)”) and the
assignment of loan of HK$758,000 for a consideration of
HK$509,000. The disposal was completed upon the control

of Technology (Singapore) was passed to the acquirer.

Matsunichi Global is wholly and beneficially owned by a Director,
Mr. Pan.

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

14, BRILER (&)

(i) R=FEFNFE-A+HA  ADFH
Matsunichi Global
Limited ([Matsunichi Globall) 573 =
REEWHZE  BRAQAARELEM
Matsunichi GlobalE Z# E :

Investment

(a) RABZEMBARA Ocean
Talent Limited ([Ocean Talent])
ZEHEBTRBERE  URE
EHEE 216,257,000 T £
B %162,694,0008 T ° ZEHE
MOcean Talentz EHIEBRER
B o

(b) AARZEKE AT Matsunichi
Digital Technology Limited
([Digital Technologyl) 2 & & &
ERA LUREFEBEN
11,726,000 v - KER BT -
%18 1 £ M Digital TechnologyZ
BHIEEIE BTN

(c) #7272 &M B2 A Matsunichi
Technology (Singapore) Pte.
Limited (I Technology
(Singapore)]) 22 HE B TR A
ERALREESBE 758,000
B KB 5H509,0008 T ° %IE
H &M Technology (Singapore)
ZEFRESERETH °

Matsunichi Global HEEEELE2E
BERER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 14. BRILER @)
The profit for the year from discontinued operations is analysed as RECRLEBZAFERAIFAT ¢
follows:
2009 2008
“EEhE —2ENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FER TER
Profit of development and sales AEEHBEEEMAZR
of digital consumer products HEXK ER
operation for the year 205,037 240,316
Gain on disposal of development HEHBEEEMMARR
and sales of digital consumer HEEK 2 Wm (FIEE 40)
products operation (Note 40) 322,191 19,619
527,228 259,935
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 14. BRIEER (#)
An analysis of the results and cash flows of the discontinued operations BRERGEUERRRERERZERLERK
included in the consolidated income statement and the cash flows XERASRESNMT :

statement is as follows:

Profit for the year from discontinued operations ERLEEBAEERF
2009 2008
ZBTAE —RENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TER
Turnover SR 3,107,538 4,297,788
Cost of sales HERA (2,722,060) (3,695,779)
Gross profit EF 385,478 602,009
Other income E Al A 58,477 32,421
Selling and distribution costs HER D HERAK (39,032) (31,479)
Administrative expenses THEHA (49,294) (117,014)
Finance costs BM%ER (145,751) (126,209)
Gains (losses) on derivative TEEMIAEzWE (BE)
financial instruments 47,512 (46,661)
Profit before taxation BRE AR A 257,390 313,067
Taxation BIE (52,353) (72,751)
Profit for the year from RECRILER ZREEZF
discontinued operations 205,037 240,316
Cash flows from discontinued REERLEEBZRERE
operations
Net cash from operating REXBIBRESFH
activities 565,276 190,108
Net cash from (used in) investing REZHME (A ReFHE
activities 307,886 (855,092)
Net cash (used in) from BMEZEH (A) MERESFE
financing activities (2,424,941) 1,146,791
Net (decrease) increase in cash flows Beng (RY) BmFERE (1,551,779) 481,807
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

I5. DIVIDENDS 15. R 8
2009 2008
“EThE “2ENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FER TER
Dividends recognised as distribution FRABRIEIRZBE :
during the year:
Final dividend of HK6.5 cents per share 2007 FERHREAER 6.5 81l
in respect of 2007 — 51,612
No final dividend has been proposed by the Directors of the Company AABESYFAEZRTMEEFE 2 RBR
for both years. Bo
16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 16. BREF (B518)
For continuing and discontinued operations HESERCHRULERE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable RAAREBRESBAEREEREAREER
to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based on the FIBETHERTE
following data:
2009 2008
“EThE “2ENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FER TER
Earnings & F
Profit for the purpose of basic BAEBRERBR 2ER
earnings per share (AREREEHEARGFEERET)
(profit for the year attributable
to equity holders of the
Company) 730,293 686,650
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BrEEEERzEE
Fair value change on convertible option AR EFPHTRRK
derivatives in convertible bonds HEMTEIAN AT ESE (424,960) =
Interest on convertible bonds ARRESFE 201,956 —
Exchange gain in relation to liability EREREIETRRES
component of convertible bonds SENOERENLE RS
recognised in profit or loss (38,442) =
Profit for the purpose of diluted FEEREERAN G
earnings per share 468,847 686,650
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

16. BREF (BR) @)

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

2009 2008
“ETAF —ZENF
Number Number
of shares of shares
kB HE RO EE
Number of shares ki3 & H
Weighted average number of A EERERER 2
ordinary shares for the purpose EERMEF I
of calculating basic earnings per share 1,222,580,034 1,064,669,451
Effect of dilutive potential BEHEEERFE
ordinary shares
— Share options —BRE 4,315,192 19,919,784
— Convertible bonds — AR ES 347,721,631 —
Weighted average number of RERBERRZ
ordinary shares for the EBRMEFIE
purpose of diluted earnings
per share 1,574,616,857 1,084,589,235

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 3Ist March,

2008 has been adjusted for the rights issue on 22nd August, 2007.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company's outstanding warrants as the exercise price

was higher than the average market price per share for both years.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st
March, 2008 has not taken into account the exercise of convertible
bonds to ordinary shares as it would result in an increase in earnings

per share.

FJI\:%‘-I- ﬁ:l:—? 7)\35 H -I_ Elﬂiir-@
REARBERA  EBRIMETHHER=
EZLENAZTZHAZHRMFHAE -

HRTEESRZMEFAERRN 2 FHIH
B HAEEREERABIBRRTELSD
A2 RITERIRER

BE-Z2TN\F=A=+-HLFE BRI
FEUBRREFERAEBRSEABREFE
e BEEEREFRNEL A RUER
?\ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 16. BREHN @
For continuing operations FESEEK
The calculation of the basic earnings per share from continuing ARREBREREARGKELSLEERER
operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company HEABADBREBETHERGE
is based on the following data:
Earnings figures are calculated as follows: BREFRETIERGE
2009 2008
“EThE —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FTER Tign
Profit for the year attributable to FAREEHEABRERFERR
equity holders of the Company 730,293 686,650
Less: profit for the year from B RBERLEER 2 AFEGEF
discontinued operations (527,228) (259,935)
Profit for the purpose of basic earnings R ERELSEER
per share from continuing operations BREXRBF ZEF 203,065 426,715
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BrEEEEkegg
Fair value change on convertible option AHRBRES PN IIRRAE
derivatives in convertible bonds TETENATFESD (424,960) —
Interest on convertible bonds ARKRESFE 201,956 —
Exchange gain in relation to liability EhRREIETRRES
component of convertible bonds SEMDEENLE RS
recognised in profit or loss (38,442) —
(Loss) profit for the purpose of AERERKEEBERBERAN
diluted earnings per share (B8’) =8
from continuing operations (58,381) 426,715
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both FRIBEENFAARGTESREARES
basic and diluted earnings per share. BAREz2BHE -
For discontinued operations BRILEH
Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operations is HK43.12 BIBE KL% 2 K F E & R527,228,0008
cents per share (2008: HK24.41 cents per share) and diluted earnings T (ZEZ\F : 259,935,000/ jT) & £ X F#
per share for the discontinued operations is HK33.48 cents per share ARG EEREXRBERN 228 ER
(2008: HK23.97 cents per share), based on the profit for the year from LEBR2EREABFATRA3N2EL (=2
the discontinued operations of HK$527,228,000 (2008: ENF  BR24.4184)  MERLEKZE
HK$259,935,000) and the denominators detailed above for both basic BR#ERAASRIB48EBW (ZEENF .
and diluted earnings per share. B%23.9724L) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BER®RE
Furniture,
Properties fixtures
under  Plantand  Leasehold and Motor
Buildings development machinery improvements equipment vehicles Total

R K& AEmE &R
g7 VE S K RERSH nE L
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TRT TER TEx TEx TEx TRT TEx

(Note)
(Fi3t)
THE GROUP 356
AT COST A
At Ist April, 2007 RZBELE
A-H 114,506 - 182,805 4417 6,980 4998 313,706
Exchange realignment ERAE 301 - 9,491 48 655 210 13,515
Additions £m = = 164l 3,406 1,883 1,747 8,677
Disposals HE = = = (1,890) (12) (893) (2,795)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEREAT (35491) - (96,396) (1,652) (2,108) (808)  (136,455)
At 315t March, 2008 RZBENE
=A=t-H 82,126 - 97,541 4329 7,398 5,254 196,648
Exchange realignment EiAE 1,058 — 4178 48 250 8 5,652
Additions £m - 73,083 L6l m 1,644 1,595 78,710
Disposals e — — — - - (489) (489)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEREAT (83,184) —  (102,645) (94) (4,627) (3213)  (193,763)
At 315t March, 2009 RZZENE
ZA=t-A - 73,083 685 5,060 4,665 3,265 86,758
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 17. Y% - BERRE @
Furniture,
Properties fixtures
under  Plantand  Leasehold and Motor
Buildings development machinery improvements equipment vehicles Total

R K& AEmR &R
g% nx k&R K RERSH AE L
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
TRT TEx TEx TEx tér  TEn  TER

(Note)
(Firit)

DEPRECIATION e
At Ist April, 2007 R=B2LE

B-R 9,555 - 70,762 3402 6,57 2,590 92,566
Exchange realignment ERAE 432 - 3270 17 330 78 4127
Provided for the year EERG 3,009 - 16,398 1,503 1,609 9l 23,440
Eliminated on disposals &k - - - (1,579) - (691) (2,270)
Disposals of subsidiaries &N BA A (7,002) - (46,547) (1,568) (1,767) @7 (57,085)
At 315t March, 2008 RZZENE

ZB=t-H 5,994 - 43,883 1,775 6429 2507 60,608
Exchange realignment ERAE 220 = 1,662 l6 126 4 2,065
Provided for the year EERfE 1,090 — 6,174 1,608 1,273 678 10823
Eliminated on disposals i EEFE 8 — — — — — (285) (285)
Disposals of subsidiaries  tHEH B2 (7,304) - (51,034) (468) (5,328) (1471)  (65,605)
At 315t March, 2009 RZBENE

ZB=t-H - - 685 2931 2,500 1,490 7,606
CARRYING AMOUNTS BRI
At 315t March, 2009 RZBENE

ZA=1-H - 73,083 - 2,19 2,165 1,775 79,152
At 315t March, 2008 RZZENE

ZB=t-H 76,132 - 53,658 2,554 969 27 136,040
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Note: On 3Ist July, 2003, the Group entered into a purchase agreement to
acquire the entire equity interests in Best Concord, which beneficially
owned a plant under construction situated at Shenzhen, the PRC, from
Matsunichi Communications (Hong Kong) Limited, a company which was
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Pan, a beneficial owner of Goldin
Group (Investment) and a Director of the Company, at a consideration
of HK$78,000,000, which was included in the buildings of Best Concord.
The remaining balance outstanding as at 3Ist March, 2008 of
HK$11,700,000 had been included in the amount due to a related
company in the current liabilities as at 3Ist March, 2008 (see Note 30)
which should be payable upon completion of due registration of the
title of the plant in the name of Best Concord during 2008. As at 3|st
March, 2008, the title of the plant was registered under the name of a
subsidiary directly held by Best Concord. During the year ended 3 st
March, 2009, Best Concord was disposed of to an independent third

party. Details are disclosed in Note [4.

The buildings were located on land held under medium-term lease and

are located in the PRC.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s motor vehicles and furniture,
fixtures and equipment held under finance leases were nil (2008:
HK$342,000) and HK$129,000 (2008: HK$203,000), respectively.

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

17. Y% BEREH @

fiex: R=ZE=FE+tA=1+-0 AKETIL-
BEERE  UENRBER(EB) BRAF
B Best Concordz = EBMR#E - AH &
(BEB)ERARNHEREE (RE) BERE
BARAQARAEEBELE2ERERER
Best ConcordBI & & %A 1 i F BRI T
ZEEFEE - G2 E478,000,000/%
g o BEM#EC 5 ABest Concordz i
FoRIBENE=A=1—-AENTKRM
ZEAMA11,700,0008 T EFIARBEE
(T — FEIRBE A R B (RIFEE30) » (Y
B A TR E £ Best Concord& &
EXBR -RZZBENFE=ZA=1+-R0" &
E¥# T LBest ConcordEEHA 2H B
AFBEER - RBE-FTAE=RA=T
—HIEFE > Best ConcordB HEF —1{u
BUE=F - FHRERMF14HE

ZRFUNAPHRAFE 2L LW AR S
o

AREETURERNBEZREREM - £
ERBMNZEAEINAZERL(ZZEN
£ :342,00038 7T) % 129,0008 T (ZEEN
£ : 203,000 T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

17. %  BERRE &)
L% s MERREDUESERTHER

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: E !
Buildings Over the estimated useful life of 20 years, EF “tEZEFTRAEH

K HERENEA
(ABREHERE)

or the unexpired term of the relevant

lease, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10% - 20% BBERFRE 10% — 20%
Leasehold improvements ~ Over the estimated useful life of 5 years or HEMERE BFE2HEEATRAESR
the unexpired term of the relevant lease, 5 R BN H R

CABEHERE)
&AM RERSEM  20% — 33'/,%

whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 20% - 33'/,%
equipment
20% E 20%

Motor vehicles

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. &M%

HK$°000
TEx
At Ist April, 2007 R-ZEZELHFNA-—A —
Acquired through acquisition ZBRWEHEAR
of subsidiaries 1,105,290
Additions NE 21,028
Increase in fair value recognised in RizE s RER
the consolidated income statement ZAFEZEM 1,586,786
Exchange realignment B 5 % 77,296
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZEENF=ZA=1+—H 2,790,400
Exchange realignment BN 102,400
Decrease in fair value recognised in RFERREZER
the consolidated income statement ZRFEZED (473,470)
At 31st March, 2009 R-ZBENF=ZRA=+—H 2,419,330
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

As at 3Ist March, 2008, all of the Group’s investment properties
represented leasehold lands located in the PRC under medium-term
leases, which were held for undetermined future use. During the year
ended 31Ist March, 2009, such lands are held for development for future
use as investment properties, the properties continue to be recognised

as investment properties while the development takes place.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st March,
2009 and 3Ist March, 2008 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited and Knight Frank Petty Limited respectively,
independent qualified professional valuers not connected with the
Group, who has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in
the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation is arrived at by adopting the direct comparison approach
making reference to the recent transactions of similar properties under

the prevailing property market conditions.

. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent land use rights in the

PRC under medium-term leases.

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

18. REYE @)
R-ZEENF=ZA=+—H xEEZ2HR
EMEIURPE  AUTFBANBERILR
REAZRARZz I -RBE-TTNE=A
S+-RLEFE  BEIHURENERREE
ARAE BRNENERRPUEEEIS
REME -

AEBRENEFNR-ZZNF=R=1—-R=
ZENF=ZA=t-HZAVEERELEH
VERE2BUREREXMEMNE - ATH
EHEEREXERER AR RS IT
BRAANEBFEH2EEFE  RYRES
BREELRENNR 2 AEERRIBE
B o EEDURBNEDSRREUN R 2
HREASR  RAERLBEHE -

19. AHHEERE
AEEANREREDEAPHEAERML
RAEZ LA -

THE GROUP
r5E
2009 2008
“BEAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FMEENEL D
Current portion RENED D — 63
Non-current portion FRBE D 1,205,780 2,741
1,205,780 2,804

The land use rights are held for development for future use as

investment properties.

ARLHERENEFRRBRRARENE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. BREE

Club
Trade marks debentures Total
[} EFiES st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEIT FHET F#ET

THE GROUP AEE
AT COST (B
At Ist April, 2007 and R-ZBZLHFENA-BR

31st March, 2008 —EENE=HA=1+—H 251,650 610 252,260
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHEAR (251,650) — (251,650)
At 31st March, 2009 RZEZENF=A=1+—H — 610 610
AMORTISATION 55
At Ist April, 2007 R-ZEZ+LHFMA—A 27,460 = 27,460
Charge for the year FEXH 12,630 — 12,630
At 31st March, 2008 RZEENF=A=1+—H 40,090 — 40,090
Charge for the year FEXH 11,951 — 11,951
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHEAR (52,041) — (52,041)
At 31st March, 2009 R-ZEZENF=A=1+—H — — —
IMPAIRMENT HE
At Ist April, 2007 R-ZEZELHFNA-—A — 520 520
Impairment loss for the year FERERE 36,915 — 36,915
At 31st March, 2008 RZEENF=A=1+—H 36,915 520 37,435
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EKE AR (36,915) = (36,915)
At 31st March, 2009 RZBZEANF=A=1+—H — 520 520
CARRYING AMOUNTS BRME{E
At 31st March, 2009 R-ZEBNEFE=A=1+—H — 90 90
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZBENFE=ZA=+—H 174,645 90 174,735
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 20. BREE (®)
Club
debentures
EFiES
HK$’000
TFH#ET
THE COMPANY AATH
AT COST BN
At Ist April, 2007, 3Ist March, R-ZEZtFMAB—H »
2008 and 31st March, 2009 —EENE=A=1+—H
R=ZBZENE=ZA=1+—H 610
IMPAIRMENT BIE
At Ist April, 2007, 3Ist March, R=ZZEZEtHEMNA—H -
2008 and 31st March, 2009 —EZENE=B=+—H
R=ZZEBEhE=HA=1+—H 520
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
At 3Ist March, 2009 RZEZAFE=R=1+—H 90
At 31st March, 2008 RZBEENFE=A=1+—H 90
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 20. MLEE (&)

Trade marks

On 3rd November, 2004, the Group entered into two purchase
agreements to acquire the trade marks, service marks, logos and
commercial symbols of “Matsunichi” in Hong Kong and in countries or
districts outside the PRC (“non-PRC trade marks”) and in PRC (“PRC
trade marks”), respectively, with Matsunichi International Holdings
Limited (“MIHL”) or/and Guangdong Matsunichi Electronics Limited
(*GME”), Guangdong Matsunichi Communication Technology Company
Limited (*“GMCT”) and others, in which Mr. Pan, a Director of the
Company has beneficial interests in MIHL, GME and GMCT. The
consideration was satisfied by cash of HK$20,000,000 and issue of
95,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each.

The resolution in respect of the above mentioned acquisitions was duly
passed by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 24th January, 2005. Pursuant to the non-PRC trade marks
agreement, HK$20,000,000 cash was paid and 80,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company were issued and allotted to MIHL or its
nominees on 24th January, 2005 resulted in a total consideration of
HK$229,600,000. The 80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
issued at a price of HK$2.62, being the closing price of the Company’s
shares on 24th January, 2005, the date on which the Group has taken

control of the non-PRC trade marks.

The PRC trade marks agreement was completed on Ist November,
2005, and accordingly, 15,000,000 ordinary shares were allotted and
issued to Goldin Group Investment on that date at a price of HK$1.47,

being the closing price of the Company’s shares.

The fair value of trade marks at the date of acquisition could not be
estimated reliably. Accordingly, the fair value of trade marks are
measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments

granted, measured at the date the Group obtained the trade marks.

Both the non-PRC trade marks and the PRC trade marks are

amortised over their useful lives of 20 years (2008: 20 years).

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED 2009 Annual Report
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EREEERAR ((RAEREE) R RE
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RABANERGERAR ((ERABBEAR
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[ARIEE - BEERL  BRREERERE
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Zl) RRPEZER ((FEEED » mAAF
ZEBELXERNBEAREE BERIWASH
RERLBBANBYERES R - REA
1 £ 20,000,000 7t K % 17 95,000,000
REMB0.SETZHEBRZARZM

FRLEZEWEEB2ABRERAR=-Z
ERFE-A-THABTZRABAIASLE
BB o RIBFPERMERE » 20,000,000
TEXFEL » 80,000,000 A2 &)L B
FER-ZZERF-A-THERTREZET
RAEBREBIEREA BEREREA
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EEEEHEEAZRmE) 2BRETLZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Trade marks (Continued)

The trade marks were classified under the business segment of
development and sales of digital consumer products and assessed
impairment based on the cash-generating unit of certain production

lines in respect of the sales of digital consumer products.

Due to the disposals of certain subsidiaries during the year ended 3 st
March, 2008, the management expected the capacity of the Group’s
production to digital consumer products would be reduced, which
would lead to a decrease in sales of the digital consumer products.
Hence, cash flow forecast was prepared by the management to

estimate the recoverable amounts of the trade marks.

As at 31st March, 2008 the recoverable amounts of the trade marks
had been determined on the basis of their value in use. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations were those regarding the
discount rate, growth rate and expected changes in sales and direct
costs of digital consumer products during the forecasted period.
Management estimated discount rate of 7% that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to
the Group’s business in manufacture and trading of digital consumer
products. As the recoverable amount of the trade marks was estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the trade
marks was reduced to its recoverable amount through recognition of
an impairment loss against the trade marks of HK$36,915,000 for the
year ended 3 |st March, 2008.

As disclosed in Note 14, Ocean Talent, in which the principal assets
were the trade marks was disposed of during the year. The recoverable
amounts of the trade marks were not less than their carrying amounts

as at the disposal date.

Club debentures

The club debentures are having an indefinite useful life because they
are expected to generate economic benefit indefinitely. The club
debentures are tested for impairment annually by reference to the

market value.

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

20. BEEE @)

HiR (&)
BENPBEAYBHEERRBERHEXED
BEUARERAHEERREEERE TEER
EREN 2 EHERE

AREEZE-ZEEN\E=-A=1t—-HLEER
HELZTHEBAR  HEEBRHEAEERE
EHEERCEEH#NSETR  RMEHH
BHEERBEERD -Hit BEEBREHERS
REFR  UEHEEZTRESE -

ERHEREEEE - HEERBEZEER
EREANEA URE ERERHERHEZ
BREBEEEERZERAAEL - EEE
2R E17%  HERMRBEBHSTMEZ
EXRREERAREYBHEERRERE
BEXBZHTERR - AREREZTRE SRR
FEREREE BE2REEERBE_2
ENEZR=+T-ALEEREIABTE
36,915,000/ T . HERE » HAZEHARE
S8

AP EE14F7H & » Ocean Talent(HEEH
EARE)EREALE -BEZIRE S5
TMEREHERHZREEE -

EfifR%

EMESHEEERBEREY  RERARRE
SRBUERPTREENS - EMESRF
SEMEETHERN o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21. HBABRE
THE COMPANY
FAT
2009 2008
“EEAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET THET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRG 0 BB 13,191 127,517
Deemed capital contribution BIEXE 333,136 288,582
346,327 416,099
Less: Impairment loss recognised o ERAZBEER (43,859) (24,378)
302,468 391,721
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2009 AR EENBRARAR-_ZZAFR-FEN
and 31st March, 2008 are set out in Note 47. During the year ended EZA=t+-BZENERHETL - BE=F
31st March, 2009, impairment loss of HK$27,746,000 (2008: ERNF=ZA=+-RHLEFER BEEE
HK$19,275,000) was fully recognised in the income statement. 27,746,000/ T (ZZF)\F : 19,275,000
) 2R R ERER
22. INVENTORIES/PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT  22. & # R
THE GROUP
X 5E
2009 2008
“EEAE —ERENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FiERT
Raw materials BE# — 55,924
Work in progress ¥EMEm — 4,245
Finished goods Hm — 8,664
— 68,833
The inventories/properties under development are carried at lower of RE/BRRPNERRARTERFEME T
cost and net realisable value. In the opinion of the Directors, the ZBREESE EERA  BRPUERDF
properties under development is expected not to be realised within EREFEREHTZEARER -

twelve months from the balance sheet date.
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ASSETS/LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Assets classified as held for sale represented the land cost amounted
to RMB286,335,000 (equivalent to HK$323,559,000) acquired from X
EEREREBE AR A A Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding Group Company
Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding”) through the acquisition of assets
and liabilities of X255 % 2 5 ih & M % B R 2 7 Tianjin Hi-Tech
New Star Property Development Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech
New Star Property”) during the year, which would be disposed of
within twelve months subsequent to year ended 31st March, 2009. It is
carried at lower of cost and fair value less cost to sell. A deposit of
RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to HK$305,100,000) was received during
the year and is disclosed as liabilities directly associated with assets

classified as held for sale to the consolidated balance sheet.

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

23. AEBREHEEE RHESEER

MBHE R
PEAREFLEEEEEBRERNKERE
BRIEFHERBERLRA ((R2ERHME
EE]) 2EEREEMORXEEREREE
BRAR ([REERER) WEZAHARK
286,335,000t (18 % 4 323,559,000 T) 2
TR (BREZ_SEAEF=A=+—A
LEERT-EARALE) - ZBEERRA
AFERELERETRMER ZBEESE
& %E AR 270,000,000 (/8% R
305,100,000 7t) ERFRWE - BE R
REERBERAZIEARFEHESERR
BEHNEERE -

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS 24, BKERRREMERRIERES

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
FE£E FAT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—BEhE —EENEF —BEAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TERT TER TET TER
Trade receivables FEUR BR X 1,269 722,845 —_ —
Less: Allowance for B REREE
doubtful debts (1,269) (9,198) — —
- 713,647 - —
Other receivables (Note |) HEtnfEURIE (MiEE 1) 146,673 269,965 128,028 11,685
Deposits (Note 2) 7e (M= 2) 181,543 1,204 — —
Total trade and FEWER R & E At
other receivables FE W FE
and deposits K& B 328,216 984,816 128,028 11,685
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS
(Continued)

Notes:

As at 3Ist March, 2009, other receivables mainly represented
receivable from a disposed subsidiary. The amount was unsecured,
interest-free and subsequently fully settled after the year ended 3Ist
March, 2009.

As at 3|st March, 2008, other receivables mainly represented proceeds
receivable from factoring of trade receivables. The counterparties of
proceeds receivable from factoring of trade receivables were financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international credit
rating agencies. In this regard, the Directors considered that the
Group’s credit risk was significantly reduced and there was no credit

provision required at 3|st March, 2008.

As at 3lst March, 2009, included in the Group’s deposits of
RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to HK$180,800,000) which was acquired
through the acquisition of assets and liabilities of K2 & E it E & R
A §] Tianjin Huading Real Estate Limited (“Huading”) during the year, is
the earnest money paid to R EFEMEXEEBEERZES
Administrative Committee of Tianjin Hi-Tech Industry Park in respect of
the construction and operation of the club and theme park. The amount
is refundable when the investment of the Group in the club and theme
park reaches RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to HK$180,800,000).

The Group allowed a credit period ranging from 30 days to 120 days to

its trade customers. Long credit periods granted to several well

established customers with long business relationship. The following

were an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance of doubtful

debts at the reporting date:

Aging analysis based on invoice date

24. EMIRR R A MRBKRARESE @)

—_

’n_w

R-ZZZRNF=RA=1-H HHEWKE
FERARB-—EEEMBARNRE %S5
BAEER RERAREE-ZRNF=
A=t-HLFERTHEE -

R-ZZENF=ZA=+-B  HitEWHE
TEERUEREEZRUAERE - B
ERRECRUFEREZREHFIHIRE
BREEFRRETIUSEETR 2K
Bopitms  ESRALEEZEERR
ETHRERE BR-FBAF=A=1-
HBAREERE -

R-ZZEZNE=ZA=1+—-H ZTEEBEA
[ # 160,000,000 (8 % 1 180,800,000
) ZEBEEFAFTABRNBERZERREE
BERAR((£ER]) 2EEREENRERR
ReeMkFERAEMARENEMEEE
EEBZESXA2RES - ZELEHR
AEAREMREIBLAEAZREEARY
160,000,0007T (1827 180,800,000 )
B o

AEBGRFHESEFZEERNTI0BEE
1200 - BEERURBEHERER2EF

TESERZEES -

AT HREE A LURE

0 2 BURFBRRBED T -

UBREHAER 2 RERIN

2009
= L IE
HK$’000
FH7

2008

= 2 0
HK$’000
Fi#

0 - 30 days

31 - 90 days
91 - 180 days
Over 180 days

TE30H
31£90H
912180 H
180 B L

145,702
447,127
112,710

8,108

713,647
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS

(Continued)

For the year ended 3Ist March, 2008, the average age of trade
receivables was 62 days. Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assessed the potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit
limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers were reviewed

periodically.

As at 3lst March, 2009, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balance are debtors of HK$1,269,000 which are past due and has been
fully impaired in prior year. As at 3Ist March, 2008, included in the
Group’s trade receivable balance were debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$431,364,000 which were past due at the reporting date
for which the Group had not provided for impairment loss. For those
past due but not impaired receivables, although no collateral was hold,
the Group had assessed the creditworthiness, past payment history and
substantial settlement after the balance sheet date, and considered that
the default risk was low, and accordingly no impairment had been
provided. Trade receivables which were neither past due nor impaired
were in good quality. The Group does not hold any collaterals over
these balances as at 3Ist March, 2009 and 3Ist March, 2008. For the
year ended 31st March, 2008, the average age of these receivables was

35 days.

Aging of trade receivables (based on overdue date) which are

past due but not impaired

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

24. EMIRRREMRBKREARES @)

BE-Z2TN\F=A=+-HLFE  BUK
M2 PRIk A621 - HEMNEMHEFA -
AEENMEEEFFREEREEFER
BeOEFRHZEERBEDERETER -

R-BEAF=ZA=+—-0 FEEERKEN
AR ERNBEIFECHBEER2RER
FE U BR 351,269,000 T - R=ZBEZENF=A
=+—B ARERBERESRPERERRE
AHEZHEAKEL R ELRESBREZ
FEWER SR - BREI{E & $£431,364,0008 T © B
EEHBYRBEZERERMES @ ERLE
K#E BEREBEETEEREFNEEBRER
BRAEE MABHRECREEAZERE
B AKERRENRRE  HUBELRE
BE UARBHSPAEZEREREEER
BoMZBENF=ZA=T-HR-ZENF
SRR AEEYERELEREER
MEH - BE-EE\E=ZA=F+—-HLEF
B BHRWERAR 2 FIIRE B350 ©

EHMERGEZERER 2R (BREH
)

2009 2008

“EEAE —2ENF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET THEx

Within 30 days 30HA - 310,587
31 - 90 days 31Z90H — 279
91 - 180 days 91Z 180 H — 112,390
Over 180 days 180 HM L — 8,108
— 431,364

The Group had provided fully for all receivables over 180 days and with
no subsequent settlement because historical experience was that such

receivables were generally not recoverable.

AEEDREIH1808 U LRI BN EEEE
CEBEREHZEEE  DNEARBBRER
B ZERWERS —RATUE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS 24. BKIRR R A ERKREREZS @)
(Continued)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RERIEEEE
2009 2008
—BThE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
TET TERT
At Ist April, RUA—H 9,198 34,554
Eliminated upon disposals of subsidiaries HEMB A R KL HE (8,078) (21,477)
Impairment losses recognised on receivables FEWFRIBZ EBARMEEE - 6,200
Amounts written off as uncollectible WEER TR 2 &% — (286)
Amounts recovered during the year FRKEEHE — (10,222)
Exchange realignment B 5 % 149 429
At 31st March, R=HB=+—8H 1,269 9,198
The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated in URBEEBER R ER U EBREN
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group ZAEERWERAREMERRIBENT

entities are set out below:

usD HKD RMB

EL BT N

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

TERT FERT FERT

At 31st March, 2009 R-ZBFAF=R=+-H — 129,692 -
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZZENF=ZA=1+—H 596 1,685 14,944
The Company’s other receivables of HK$128,028,000 (2008: R A H A FE 7R 1E 128,028,000 T (=&
HK$11,685,000) are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), a 2\ 111,685,000/ ) B THE BT

currency other than the functional currency of the Company. WHARRZYEEE o
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26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES
Particulars of the amounts due from related companies in which Mr.

Pan, a Director of the Company, has beneficial interests are as follows:

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

25.

FE Wi A 3 24 B FRIE
FRRESELLEARELRED CRUHEED
AMEZHENT

THE GROUP
35E
Maximum Maximum
Balance Balance amount Balance Balance amount
at at outstanding at at outstanding
31Ist March, Ist April, during  3lst March, Ist April, during
Name of related company 2009 2008 2009 2008 2007 2008
REATER RZFENE
R-BBAE RIFTNE  AERKE R-FINE R-TTtE “TTNER
ZA=+-B WA-H #EZ ZA=t-B WmA-B HRKEXE
&8 &k BENE & & <RERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
RRULABANEROERAT RRRABANEROERAA 76 84 84 84 753 753
Fortuna International EREREEERAR
Holdings Limited 6 - 6 - — -
RESNET (M) BRAF REENET (F) BRAR - 160 160 160 I 160
RBEELEAAA RBEELEADA - 1,688 1,688 1,688 2209 2209
82 1,932 1,932 2973
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BRERENEKE REREERER o

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNT DUE
TO A SUBSIDIARY

THE COMPANY

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, carry effective
interest at 5% (2008: 5.25%) per annum. At 3Ist March, 2008, the
amounts were expected to be repaid during the year ended 3lst
March, 2009 and hence the balances were classified as current asset. At
31st March, 2009, the subsidiaries are not expected to repay the
advance within twelve months from the balance sheet date and the

balances are classified as non-current.

The amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

26.

BEHBATRE EH—EHEAT
M

XxAF

FUMBLARRELEER RERFNR
5% (ZZF\F 1 5.25%) st E - R=ZZEN
F=ZA=t-R0 ZERRHEREE_ZT
NE=ZB=1t-RALFEREE HWEBEER
BABRRBEE -R-TENF=A=1—
B BARERBARTEREERE =
BAREBERR - MEBEHRKI BRFER
BE -

EH-BHEATRENRES  RERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

26.

27.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNT DUE
TO A SUBSIDIARY(Continued)

THE COMPANY (Continued)

The Company’s amounts due from subsidiaries and amount due to a
subsidiary of HK$398,147,000 and HK$129,898,000 respectively (2008:
HK$1,966,875,000 and HK$129,825,000 respectively) are denominated

in HKD, a currency other than the functional currency of the Company.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to a bank to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group with maturity of less than three
months and are therefore classified under current assets. The pledged
bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of the relevant

banking facilities.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are

set out below:

26.

27.

FEEMBATRE EH—EHEAT
RIE #®)

327 (&)
ARBZEWMHEB L RARBRES—BHEL
& 74 18 398,147,000/ 7t % 129,898,000/ 7t
(ZZZENF : 5 5151,966,875,000% T &
129,825,000/ 7T) J3 AR A B 2 h e & % ML
PzEBBIIE -

ERRRTER RITEHERBAE

EHFRTER
BEREADEERFRIT2ER  UBERT
AEEZIBMEOIR=EA ZRITRE » Bt
HOBARDEE - CEARTERSRER
ARBTEREBBRER -

NEBEEER 2 YEER N 2 ERREN
CAKEZEERARTERAT

HKD RMB Total

BT ARH mE

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

TET FET FET

Pledged bank deposits EEARITER

At 31st March, 2009 R-BFAF=RA=+—8H - - -
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZBENF=ZA=+—H — 662,292 662,292
All bank deposits carry interest at market rates at approximately of EVBROFEREDSINRAE  BRNAEHF
0.01% to 4.14% (2008: 1.98% to 4.14%) per annum. 0.01%Z 4.14% (= FEE N\ §F : 1.98%%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND

CASH (Continued)

Bank balances and cash

The Group’s bank balances and cash are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are

set out below:

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

27. EHRBRTER RTEERR: @)

RITEERES
DHBEEEER 2 HEERUN 2 ERBEN
CAREZRTEERASNMT ¢

usD HKD RMB
ER BT ARH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TEx TER TER

Bank balances and cash BRTEERRE
At 31st March, 2009 R-ZEFTAE=R=+—8 10 710 -
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZEBNF=A=+—H 324 43,715 2,004,176

All of the Company’s bank balances and cash of HK$710,000 (2008:
HK$43,715,000) are denominated in HKD, a currency other than the

functional currency of the Company.

As at 31st March, 2008, included in bank balances and cash was cash-in-

transit of HK$1,218,214,000 (2009: Nil).

All bank deposits carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 4.14% (2008: 1.98% to 4.14%) per annum. Most of bank
deposits carry at prevailing interest rates ranging from 1.71% to 4.14%

(2008: 1.98% to 4.14%) per annum.

AABz2MRTEFREL5710,0008 T
(ZZZ\5E : 43,715,000/ T) B TEHE
BRLUEARAR 2 NEE o

R-ZZBENFZA=1-H Bt ARTER
RBEEHNELRES51,218,214,0008 T (=ZF
SNEE) o

EWROEFREMSANXRAE BE2REE
0.01%Z 4.14% (= ZEE N & : 1.98%%
4.14%) - KERBTERNERBANEZRAEF
17M%ZE 4.14%(Z B N F | 1.98%%
4.14%) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

28. FEfHRRAR R E it FE 4 5RIA
T RREH A MURREID 2 BIRH A -

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

An aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date is set out

as follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AEE ¥ A

2009 2008 2009 2008
—BThE —EENF —EENE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FTEx FTH#T FTEx
0 - 90 days ZZ90H 32,933 105,523 — —
91 - 180 days 91E£ 180 A — 13,598 — -
Over 180 days 180 HM L 1,654 12,358 — —
34,587 131,479 = —
Dividend payable ERRE 1,102 1,102 1,102 1,102
Other payables (Note) HitEAFE (HE) 575,463 164,054 57 3,257
611,152 296,635 1,159 4,359

Note: Mtz :

As at 31st March, 2009, the amount mainly represented (i) consideration
payable of RMB174,160,000 (equivalent to HK$196,801,000) in relation to the
acquisition of a wholly-owned subsidiary, X &%= 5 iR 2 & B IR 2 & Tianjin
Hi-Tech Goldin Investment Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin”) during
the year; (i) advance from Tianjin Hi-Tech Property, in respect of the
construction and operation of the club and theme park, amounting to
RMB136,927,000 (equivalent to HK$154,727,000) with effective interest rate at
21%; and (iii) an obligation to acquire the minority interest of RMB 190,000,000
(equivalent to HK$214,700,000) in relation to a forward contract to further
acquire the remaining equity interest of 48.72% of a subsidiary, Huading, from
RIEZBHRRHEER M B R A A Tianjin Hi-Tech Technology Development
Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech Development”) by no later than 20th June,
2009.

As at 3Ist March, 2008, the amount mainly represented other tax
payables (including value-added tax, deed tax and stamp duty) of

certain subsidiaries established in PRC.
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RIZZEANE=R=1+—H BESBEEEZA()FX
EEARKBEZEMBLARXREZERSRREEAR
AA([XEBRBR]) ZEAREBEARYE
174,160,0007c (1 & 1 196,801,0005& T) ; (ii)k
EEEEHERBRIRCEEMREEAERMEZ
#3 AR % 136,927,000 (18 & 1 154,727,000
J) o WREBRAE21%: 8 5 Rii)GTER=S
ENEARA-THRREERRBERERHBRA
A REERRERRE]) BIE BB A RE
BT 2%REZEREN 2 WBELBRFER
B ARE%190,000,0007t (1HE 7 214,700,000%
) °

R-ZZENF=ZA=1—-H FHEHIEA
EPERIZETHEAR 2R EATK E
(BEEER  ZHRREOEHR) -



28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
The Group’s trade payables that are denominated in currencies other

than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

28. FERHERA R HE b FEFRRIE ()
UTAAEEEEEI SR EHTIE
ZAREBEMRL

below:
HKD RMB
BT AREE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTiExT FTiExT
At 31st March, 2009 N-EBFhRFE=RA=+—H 1,102 112
At 31st March, 2008 RZBEENE=A=1+—H 2,382 125,851

The average credit period on purchases of goods was 75 days. The
Group had financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all

payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

The Company’s other payables that are denominated in currencies

other than the functional currencies of the Company are set out

BEEmZVPHEEHATSR - AREREY
BERRERIR  URREHECHEREE
HMREE -

UTRADEADREER U 2 ERIIE 2K
DRAEMENRE

below:
HKD
BT
HK$’000
TR
At 31st March, 2009 R-ZEEAE=RA=1+—8 1,102
At 31st March, 2008 RZBEENE=A=+—H 1,378
AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 29. EftRRERATIRE
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY AEEREAAT
The amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BRRENERR RERREREEZ - BH

The balance has been fully settled during the year.

ERCREANBHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

30. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 30. FEft—RIFAEATRIE
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY FREREAAT
The amount represents amount due to Matsunichi Communications ZREARNMNBER (BB)ERARAZR
(Hong Kong) Limited in which Mr. Pan is a Director. He BRERAZDNEIZES -
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. ZREDEER REREREREE o
The Group’s and the Company’s amount due to a related company that AEERAQNE BN -—EBEDRAMKE (&
is denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the PHEHAEBER 2 NEERIE) MT

relevant group entities is set out below.

HKD

BT

HK$°000

THET

At 31st March, 2009 R-BEREFE=ZR=1+—H 6,542
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZEBNF=ZA=+—H 11,700
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS M. FTEERMIA
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
FEE ¥ VS|
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhE “ETN\HF —EEAE —ZE)N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TERT TERT TERT FHERT
Foreign currency forward ~ 7ME & Hi
contracts (Note a) B8 (Mizta) — 46,661 — —
Share options (Note b) BRE (HEb) — 273,901 — 273,901
Warrants (Note c) BREE (MizEc) 27,270 320,281 27,270 320,281
27,270 640,843 27,270 594,182
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
3L ] ¥ |

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhE “EEN\F —EEAE —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
TERT TERT TERT FERT

Represented as: BUT 25 :
Current liabilities (Note d) FREEE (KfzE d) — 46,661 — —
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 27,270 594,182 27,270 594,182

(Note e) (Mizte)

27,270 640,843 27,270 594,182
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Group had entered into several foreign currency forward contracts
with a bank to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuations risk of bank
deposits that were denominated in RMB relative to USD. These

derivatives were not accounted for under hedge accounting.

At 3|st March, 2008, the Group had outstanding foreign currency forward

contracts:

Notional amount

ZHReH

Maturity date
A

Buy US$85,411,000/ Sell RMB6 10,040,000
B A 85,411,000 7T/ ki
A R¥ 610,040,000 T

various dates from
I8th August, 2008 to
|8th March, 2009
H-ZEENENATNH

EZZEEAF=AF+N\BF

ZEHH

These contracts were subject to settlement at various maturity dates and
were measured at fair value at the balance sheet date. Their fair values
were measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves

derived from quoted interest rates matching maturities of the contracts.

The Group has not entered into other foreign currency forward
contracts upon the disposal of Best Concord Group during the year.

Details are disclosed in Note 14.
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31.
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1
Bt

ﬂ_lr

(a)

ST R @)

AEEE-RRTTLSHIEEREH -
WHPETAARE (BXnHLE) BEN
ZROFRZERRG@E - Z5ITETR
WEFHHETEAR ©

R-ZZEENE=F=+-0 AEEEUE
TABUZAFANERBEY

Exchange rates

Ex

range from
RMB6.820/US$ | to
RMB7.349/US$ |
B1XTHARS 6.820 T
EIXRAARE7.349 T

ZEEHNANRBHZIMB TULE IR
FERRAVERE AHSHNZATER
RENEXRERURSSNEHA2AE
REGE RS HRETE -

F AR EBest ConcordEE% » REEL
B VHMHERDEN o FBERM 145
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 27th November, 2007, 64,000,000 share options with estimated fair
values of HK$263,336,000 were granted to potential investors at nil

consideration.

The fair values as at 3Ist March, 2008 and 23rd November, 2008 are
HK$273,901,000 and HK$67,774,000, respectively.

These fair values at 27th November, 2007, 31st March, 2008 and 23rd

November, 2008 were calculated using The Binomial model. The inputs

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

3. TESRTIA @)
i ()

(b) R=ZZEZTLF+-—-A=+tH:  #FF2FE
263,336,0003% 7t 264,000,000 lE R EC &
BRTFEEREE -
R-ZBENE=ZF=+-HAR=-ZFENET
—BZ+=H22FESH15273,901,000%
7T} 67,774,000 7T °
RZEZEtE+-B=Z++tH - ZFZNE
ZA=+t-HAR-EENFE+-A=+=H

into the model were as follows: ZOFEDU-BAEXFE - ZEX 28
ABIEMT :

27th November, 2007 31st March, 2008 23rd November, 2008
—BELE =3 =t 8
t-h =A t-A
=++A =4 F =ih=E
Share price A& HK$6.56 HK$6.85 HK$2.30
Exercise price TEE HK$6.56 HK$6.56 HK$6.56
Expected volatility SN 60.60% 61.00% 62.00%
Remaining life FIERF 5 10 years 9.7 years 9 years
Risk-free rate BERSE 3.27% 2.56% 1.44%
Expected dividend yield R B W 1.20% 1.20% 0%
Exercise multiple TEEE 4.90 4.90 4.90

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price before the grant date for previous three years.The
exercise multiple was to account for the early exercise behaviour of the

share options granted by the Company.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the
options. The variables and assumptions used in comprising the fair value
of share options are based on Director’s last estimate. The value of an

option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

BAHREDRAREAHA=FN2ARE
BLREMEE - TREHDAUAXBED
ARHEREZRATETS

SEREAT AT BREZATE - 2
HBREATERFAZZHRBRYER
EECEMEN BRAMETRET
BERZTARBMRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

31.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

On 24th November, 2008, deeds of surrender of outstanding share options
were received from the grantees in relation to the surrendering all rights of
the share options granted to them for the subscription of a total of
64,000,000 shares in the Company (the “Surrender”). The fair values of
those share options were amounting to HK$67,774,000 as of the date
prior to the Surrender. Included in the share options surrendered of which
10,000,000 share options were granted to an existing shareholder of the
Company on the date prior to the Surrender, the fair values of these share
options on the date prior to the Surrender of HK$10,590,000 were
recognised as a contribution from equity participants in equity participants
reserves. The fair values of the remaining 54,000,000 shares options
surrendered on the date prior to the Surrender, amounting to

HK$57,184,000 were credited as gain on derivative financial instruments in

the consolidated income statement for the year.

Prior to the Surrender, a fair value gain on such share options of

HK$206,127,000 was recognised as gain on derivative financial derivatives

in the consolidated income statement for the year.

There was no additional share options granted to potential investors by

the Company during the year ended 3Ist March, 2009.
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31.

TESMTI A (@)
I (48)

RZZEZENF+-B=+HA  AREAGRK
EHERBRECDEABERERTE
BREZZIE L4 64,000,0008 A
DRRG (HE]D - BZRZEAH - Z5H
BREZDAFEE67,774,0008 T  FINERS
R $110,000,00017 8 IR E R K E A1 B &
FRAAR-BBERR  REEMNBZEHE
R 2 A F{E10,590,0008 T B R A S &
AEBRRIARASEAME o REUEH
H FT Bt 2 2 £254,000,00000 B R i 2 A F B
57,184,0008 TERAFEHFEWREKF A
RIEFTESBMI A2 -

ZEBRERHNEN2ATERSE A
206,127,000 TE R A EEF S WEKRAHE
DATESRIEZIRE o

BE-SZTNEF=ZA=+t-BLEER &K
ARVEREAREERHETRAINER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(©)

On 28th August, 2007, the Company issued 397,017,341 new shares of
the Company of HK$0.05 each under the rights issue as mentioned in
Note 36.Warrants with exercise price of HK$6.00 per share were issued
by way of bonus in the proportion of three warrants for every ten new
shares, resulting 119,105,202 units of warrant being issued. All Warrants
are exercisable from the grant date to 28th August, 2010. The new issued

shares and warrants were immediately separable upon the issue date.

During the year, upon the exercise of 117,600 (2008: 1,844,249) units of
warrants on 7th April, 2008, 18th April, 2008 and 9th May, 2008, 117,600
(2008: 1,844,249) new shares of HK$0.05 (2008: HK$0.05) each in the
Company were issued. Total amount of HK$1,045,000 (2008:
HK$16,675,000), representing proceed in excess of new shares issued of
HK$700,000 (2008: HK$10,973,000) and fair value adjustment to the
warrants exercised of HK$345,000 (2008: HK$5,702,000), was recognised

as share premium.

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

. TESRMTIR @

Bt aE -

(c)

(&)

R=ZBZLENA=TNH » XA T REM
FE36FTHL 2 A AR) 317397,017, 341 R A 1A ]
FREE0.058 T 2 H KD » RIEE (T
BEAER6.008 T) DIRE TR HA TER

SHRBREB2ARNFABT BSRET
119,105,20213 R IR 2% o Fi A R MRAEZE AT K
REAHZ-_Z-ZFENA=-TNBTE
HBETRORIAREZRBITEBNTFH
Eﬁo

FRETENI60(=ZFZENE
1,844,249) A REE  R=FZENEMNA
tH ZEENFMUATNAR=-ZENE
FANBEET117600(ZEENEF .
1,844,249) R R EE0.05% T (:iﬁ)\
F0058n) 2KRAHKRM o B E
1,045,000 T (ZZZ )\ § : 16, 675,0007%

Eﬂﬁﬁﬁé?ﬁﬁﬂxfﬁmﬁﬁﬁ#xlﬁﬁpZﬁété'f
700, oooﬁéx Z \F 10,973,000
n)&Eﬁﬁmﬂﬂ%a&zﬂ?ﬁ%@%us,ooo
BT (ZEE\E :5,702,0008 7)) E T
RAERMDEE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

117,143,353 (2008: 117,260,953) units of warrants is still outstanding. At
31st March, 2009 and 31st March, 2008, the fair value of the warrants
amounted to HK$27,270,000 and HK$320,281,000, respectively. These
fair values at 31st March, 2009 and 31Ist March, 2008 were calculated

using The Binomial model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

. TESMTIR @
Iz ()

117,143,353 (ZZZ \ fF © 117,260,953) 12
AREFERTE - AREFR-ZZIE
SRA=+-BR=-ZENF=ZA=1+—-HZ
A F A 5 B A 27,270,000% T K
320,281,000 c R=ZEZERF=ZA=1—
AR=—ZEENE=R=1+—-HA2AFEIU
“HEABATE c ZEAZBABBELT :

31st March, 2008 31st March, 2009

=2 LT =3 L 9K

=A=+-—-H =A=+-—H

Share price RE HK$6.85 & T HK$3.00 & T
Exercise price TRE HK$6.00 & 7T HK$6.00 7& 7T
Expected volatility TEH R iR 61% 57.7%
Remaining life TR E 5 2.4 years F .4 years &
Risk free rate Rk SR 1.36% 0.56%
Expected dividend yield R B s 1.2% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the

Company’s share price before the grant date for previous three years.

The Binominal model has been used to estimate the fair value of the
warrants. The variables and assumptions used in comprising the fair value
of warrants are based on Director’s last estimate. The value of a warrant

varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

(d) Foreign currency forward contracts having various maturity dates within
one year were deemed as held for trading. They were classified as current

liabilities.

(e) Share options and warrants will be settled by the Company’s equity

shares and is therefore classified as non-current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

32. BANK BORROWINGS 32. RITHER
THE GROUP
*5E
2009 2008
=1 F I DY
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Bank loans RITER — 1,159,196
Trust receipt loans EREREER — 133,071
— 1,292,267
Analysis as: WM :
Secured BHEHF — 616,187
Unsecured B — 676,080
— 1,292,267
The Group’s bank borrowings that were denominated in currencies R-ZZZN\EZA=1+-0  NWEBKEEE
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities at ZUNEEBUNERAEZARBERITERD
31st March, 2008 was RMB453,113,000. AR®453,113,0007T °
As at 31st March, 2008, include in bank loans of HK$616,187,000 were RZBENFZA=+—-H RITEXTE
under fixed-rate borrowings while the remaining balances of bank loans 616,187,0008 T B ESfE » MER T ART
were under variables-rate borrowings. All trust receipt loans were ERAZERER - 2WEXRBERYIAZRE
under variable-rate borrowings. The average effective interest rates of ER -RIBENE=ZA=1+—-H ' FERE
variable-rate and fixed-rate borrowings ranged from 3.18% to 7.22% EERZFIHERNELEETE318%ET7.22%
per annum as at 3|st March, 2008. R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 33. MEHORE
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
REXHHESE BREXAFHESHEZRE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—BTrE ZEENE —BTrE —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TER FERT FERT
THE GROUP FEE
Amounts payable RERMERN
under finance leases: B z&% !
Within one year —F R 62 181 44 139
In the second to FE_EFRF
fifth years inclusive (BREEEME) 154 340 134 297
216 521 178 436
Less: Future finance charges & @ KRB EE (38) (85) — —
Present value of HAEBEH
lease obligations 2B E 178 436 178 436
Less: Amount due for B —FR
settlement within ZIHE
one year BEREE (44) (139)
Amount due for —FREBE
settlement after one year EFN%R 134 297
The lease terms are five years. Interest rates are fixed at the contract MOFHARF - MIERIT LGN AHEST -
date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements FERNYRKAEEENEE YA VAW
have been entered into for contingent rental payments. BRXNRAEE 228
34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 34. TRRES
On 28th August, 2007, convertible bonds with an aggregate principle R-Z2BLFNAZTNB  FKATETEK
value of HK$1,418,704,000 were issued by the Company (“Convertible ©%51,418,704,0008 T2 T RRES ([
Bonds”). The Convertible Bonds are denominated in Hong Kong BRES]) - TRREFUBTREN
dollars.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
The proceeds received from the issue of the Convertible Bonds had
been split into liability component, conversion option derivative, and
equity participants reserve. The excess of the fair value of the
convertible bonds issued on 28th August, 2007 to all shareholders over
the proceeds received from the issue of Convertible Bonds was
debited to equity participant reserve. The liability component and the

conversion option derivative are measured at fair value.

The movements of the liability component and conversion option

derivative of the Convertible Bonds for the year is set out as below:

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

34, REESF (&)
BOUBRRESBFURZFEHEEIBE
BEBG - HRBRITETARRASHEAR
Bo-R-ZELENA-T\BA2EBRRER
TrAUBRESZATEEBHRTTRRE
SWBZFERELHS  HERARESHE
EEE  AESIRBREFETIARATE

e -
TRBES 20 EHORRBETETRR
FERZEBNT :

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
FRERFAT

Conversion

option
Liability derivative
component SR Total
BfEiRi fTETR @zt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At Ist April, 2007 R-ZZTLFMA—H — — —
Convertible bonds issued R-ZZEZE+LFNA=+NH
on 28th August, 2007 BIIZUBRRES 989,063 631,501 1,620,564
Interest expenses AMEZH 111,690 — 111,690
Interest paid ENFE (53,201) — (53,201)
Exchange gain recognised REBHE PR HE L s
in profit or loss (57,615) — (57,615)
Exchange realignment R 57,615 = 57,615
Changes in fair value DNFEZEE = 161,088 161,088
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZZZNF=A=+—H 1,047,552 792,589 1,840,141
Interest expenses MEXH 201,956 — 201,956
Interest paid ERFIE (106,550) — (106,550)
Exchange gain recognised RE@PER
in profit or loss HYBE 5 W 28 (38,442) — (38,442)
Exchange realignment B AE 38,442 29,086 67,528
Changes in fair value N EZ2E — (424,960) (424,960)
At 31st March, 2009 R-ZEZAF=A=1+—H 1,142,958 396,715 1,539,673
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 34. JREESF (&)

The Convertible Bonds are unsecured, carry interest at 7.5% (2008:
7.5%) per annum and will mature on 28th August, 2012 (“Maturity
Date”). Interest is repayable semi-annually after the date of issue of the
Convertible Bonds. The effective interest rate is 20% (2008: 20%) per

annum.
The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds are set out as follows:

Conversion

At the option of the holders, the Convertible Bonds will be converted
into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company on any business day
during the period between the third anniversary of the date of issue of
the Convertible Bonds and the maturity date, at an initial conversion

price of HK$6 per share (subject to adjustments).

The conversion price shall be adjusted downwards on the date falling 6
months from the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds and every 6
months thereafter (the “Reset Date”) to the arithmetic average price
of the Company’s share for each of the 30 consecutive trading days
immediately prior to the Reset Date, provided that the adjusted
conversion price shall never be below HK$3.50, subject to the
customary adjustments such as for sub-divisions, consolidation and

reductions in the share capital of the Company.

On 27th August, 2008 and 27th February, 2009, the conversion price
has been reset to HK$5.86 and HK$4.08 per share, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Redemption

No Convertible Bonds may be redeemed by the Company and the
holders prior to the maturity date. Any Convertible Bonds which
remains outstanding by 4:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on the Maturity
Date shall be redeemed by the Company at [15% of its then

outstanding principal amount.

The conversion option derivative is carried at fair value at the balance
sheet date with change in fair value recognised in profit and loss. At
31st March, 2008 and 3Ist March, 2009, the fair values of the
conversion option derivative in the Convertible Bonds are
HK$792,589,000 and HK$396,715,000, respectively, and are calculated

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

34. TRRESF @)

EE

ARARFEAFEREG BAEE TRKRE
%o FAREBETFRKE (BRI HA
TEZTRRESFARARFRERRTER
&% 2115%F A ERE -

REMETETAREERZATENE A
TEZ2BHRERAER -R_TZNEF=A
=St+t-HBRZZEZAE=A=+—-H TR
BFERBRBETEIAZLAFEIAA
792,589,000 7t % 396,715,0005& 7T » J3 L

using the Binominal model. Details of the variables and assumptions of “EARAHE - ZRATAZARBERD
the model are as follows: TS ¢

31st March, 2008 31Ist March, 2009
“2B\F  CBEAE
=R=t—H =R=t+—H
Share price of the Company AARZRE HK$6.85 /& T HK$3.00 & T
Exercise price TEE HK$6.00 & 7T HK$4.08 /& T
Remaining life FIREH 44| years F 3.4 years &
Risk-free rate EREREX 2.04% 1.29%
Expected volatility K IR 61.0% 65.0%
Expected dividend yield TEHA AR B W &R 1.2% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price before the grant date for previous three

years.

BERELDRARL BB =FN2TRERE
EREMEE
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FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

35. DEFERRED TAXATION 35. EEHIE

The movements in major deferred tax liabilities recognised during the FRAZCHRTZELEFEEB2EHNT :

year are as follows:

Undistributed Revaluation
earnings of of
subsidiaries investment
MEBASZ properties Total
x5 ikt 7 REMEER @5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FER FER
At Ist April, 2007 R-ZZEZE+LFMA—H — — —
Charge to consolidated income FRARGZE
statement for the year L= il°s 29,100 396,696 425,796
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZZENF=A=1—H 29,100 396,696 425,79
Exchange realignment ERAE 1,069 14,558 15,627
Charge (credit) to consolidated FRARGEE G R
income statement for the year kxR (Gt A) 25,514 (118,368) (92,854)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EKE AR (55,683) — (55,683)
At 3Ist March, 2009 R-ZZNE=RA=1—H — 292,886 292,886
According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State RRMRBREARDELAR 2B BAHNH
Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui 2008 No. I, dividend distributed [2008]15% » —EENF-F—BURBFE
out of the profits generated since Ist January, 2008 shall be subject to SRR DR 2 B B R 1R 10%8 A AR R X AR 1B
EIT at 10% and withheld by the PRC entity, pursuant to Articles 3 and BREBEEIRE27IR R EE AR EI1RH
27 of the EIT Law and Article 91 of its Detailed Implementation Rules. FEIEREN - RORBFZELHBEEED
Deferred tax liability on the undistributed earnings has been accounted BHRE10%AEK o

at the tax rate of 10%.
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 3Ist March, 2009, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$172,168,000 (2008: HK$104,441,000) available to offset future
profits. The losses may be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred
taxation asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The subsidiaries disposed
of during the year have unused tax losses of HK$1,282,000 (2008:
HK$165,864,000) and HK$2,846,000 (2008: HK$224,748,000) as at
year ended dates and upon disposal dates, respectively. There were no
other significant temporary differences arising during the year or at the

balance sheet date.

The Company had no significant temporary differences arising during

the year or at the balance sheet date.

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

35. BEHIE (&)

R-BEAF=ZA=+—-0 FEEXBAZ
HIBE1E172,168,0008 T ( —EENE :
104,441,000 7t) AT ARIKEE B & )%F - B
EREFETERIALEE - AN AREARER
ZRAEAIM - WERBERRERTMET
RBEE -FAHEZHBATRELEARE
ERHA BB RS BB HEE1,282,000% T
(ZZEZ )\ £ : 165864,000%8 T ) K
2,846,000/8 T (ZZZ /\F : 224,748,000
) FRASREERTEEMEAERHE
B o

ARBEANSINEEALBEENERER -
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For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

36. SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

36. lRAR2IRHEE

Number Share
of shares capital
2B L ES
Notes 2009 2008 2009 2008
it =t “EEAE -ZTN\F CZEEAE C"IIN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT THERT
Ordinary shares of SREE0.058 T
HK$0.05 each ZEBR
Authorised: EE
At Ist April REA-BR
and 31st March R=A=1+—H 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRAE
At Ist April KA —H 1,222,464,693 787,824,683 61,123 39,391
Issue of new shares upon  [RI1T 2 i iR #E
exercise of share options  E{THT X7 (a) — 35,778,420 - 1,789
Issue of new shares by PAERR A =X
way of rights issue BITHRMD (b) — 397,017,341 — 19,851
Issue of new shares upon 1T {5 52 % #E 3%
exercise of warrants BITHRG () 117,600 1,844,249 6 92
At 31t March R=B=+-A 1,222,582,293  1,222,464,693 61,129 61,123
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36. SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS (Continued)

(2)

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, 10,124,210 new shares
and 400,000 new shares of HK$0.05 each in the Company were
issued at a price of HK$1.20 per share and HK$1.30 per share,
respectively, upon exercise of share options granted on 5th
February, 2004. Another 18,236,140 new shares and 1,360,000
new shares of HK$0.05 each in the Company were issued at a
price of HK$1.42 per share and HK$1.54 per share, respectively,
upon exercise of share options granted on 20th April, 2004. A
further 108,070 new shares and 5,550,000 new shares of HK$0.05
each in the Company were issued at a price of HK$1.32 per share
and HK$1.43 per share, respectively, upon exercise of share
options granted on 28th September, 2005. The new shares issued

rank pari passu with the existing shares in issue in all respects.

On 28th August, 2007, the Company completed an open offer of
one offer share (with warrants) (the “Rights Shares”) for every
two shares held by members on the register of members, at an
issue price of HK$4.50 per offer share, resulting in the issue of
397,017,341 shares of the Company of HK$0.05 each for a total
of HK$9,402,000, of

consideration, before

HK$1,786,578,000.

expenses

Warrants with exercise price of HK$6.0 were issued by way of
bonus in the proportion of three warrants for every ten Rights
Shares. Upon the completion to the open offer, 119,105,202 units
of warrants were issued (the “Warrants”). The Warrants are
exercisable within a period from the date of issue to the third
anniversary of the date of issue of the Warrants (both dates

inclusive).

The fair value of the Warrants at the issue date was
HK$258,838,000 and the Warrants were recognised as derivative
financial instruments corresponding amount recognised as share

premium upon initial recognition.

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

36. lRARERESE @)

(a)

(b)

REBE-ZZENE=A=+-HILEE
W RZZENF-FIAREZER
ETHEE ERRERER1208BTIRE
BR10ETZERBITALAREREE
0.0578 7T 2 #910,124,2108% & 400,000
BRIBG - 2RIRER142ETRER
1548 T2 BRETAARSREE
0.0578 7T 2 18,236,1408% & 1,360,000%
FRG o B R-ZZBREAA=T
NEREZBRETER  E25l&E
BR1.32BTR143B T2 BRETER
T {E0.05/% 7t 22 108,0708% & 5,550,000
BREBRG - BT2HRONSHTEE
RERNEERASES -

R-ZZZLtFNAZTN\B AQFTE
BABIIRREMzBRRIEEE MR
DRE-REERD MR RER) ([#
BRG] 2ARRE BREERNDZ
BB ARALOB T  BEHET
397,017,341 R B REE0.058 T 2 A2
ARM o LRKEH1,786,578,000% 7T
(10 F% B3 529,402,000 T Al) ©

AREHEZTEERC.0B T UARE
NBT HOASTRARKRGTER
ZHRRER ARBETAK B
119,105,202 B R 1T 2 AR EE ([RR
BE]) RREFNRTEHEEIAR
RERTHHE=-ARF2HHE (B8
EmMA) RATHE

PREBRETEHZATES
258,838,000/8 T * RREF RIS HER
RHEAAITEEMIA  MEESE
BHEIARMDIEE -
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For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

36. SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS (Continued)

The gross cash proceeds credited to share capital, share premium
and derivative financial instruments were amounted to
HK$19,851,000, HK$1,507,889,000 and HK$258,838,000,
respectively. The new shares issued rank pari passu with the

existing shares in issue in all respects.

During the year ended 3Ist March, 2009, 117,600 (2008:
1,844,249) new shares of HK$0.05 each in the Company were
issued at a price of HK$6.00 per share upon exercise of 117,600
(2008: 1,844,249) units of Warrants. The subscription money of
approximately HK$706,000 (2008: HK$11,065,000) has been
received in full upon the exercise. The new shares issued rank pari

passu with the existing shares in issue in all respects.

As at 31st March, 2009, 117,143,353 (2008: 117,260,953) units of
Warrants were still outstanding which would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
117,143,353 (2008: 117,260,953) additional shares of HK$0.05
each of the Company. Assume the outstanding warrants were
exercised in full and there has been no change to the initial
subscription price, the total subscription money received will

amount to HK$702,860,000 (2008: HK$703,566,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

37. RESERVES 37. &

THE GROUP
Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Capital reserve represented the loans waived by former minority
shareholders of a wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC. Pursuant to
local regulations, this amount had been transferred to a non-
distributable reserve of the subsidiary. The capital reserve was released
to consolidated income statement upon the disposal of the subsidiary

during the year ended 31st March, 2008.

PRC statutory reserves are reserves required to be maintained under
the relevant PRC laws applicable to PRC subsidiaries of the Company

and are non-distributable reserves of the subsidiaries.

PRC statutory reserves as at |st April, 2008 comprised statutory
surplus reserve and enterprise expansion reserve which represented
12% of the annual audited net profit after taxation of a PRC subsidiary
of the Company as approved by Directors of the subsidiary. The ratios
for appropriations among these reserves are determined at the
discretion of the Board of Directors of the respective PRC subsidiary.
When the balance of such reserves reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’
registered capital, no further appropriation is required. In prior year,
the statutory public welfare fund of HK$46,869,000 was cancelled
upon resolutions passed by Directors of the subsidiaries and was
therefore transferred to retained profits. Upon the disposal of a
subsidiary during the year, statutory reserves of HK$74,278,000 (2008:
HK$18,128,000) in that subsidiary was transferred to retained profits.
Statutory reserves as at 3|st March, 2008 comprise statutory surplus
reserve and enterprise expansion reserve which represented 12% of
the annual audited net profit after taxation of a PRC subsidiary as

approved by the Directors of the subsidiaries.

x5E
AEERFEEZDFEEANGOREZDRR -

BARBETEZENB AR AL BRRR
RZER - REEWRH - ZHACEREM
BRAZAADREER - RARBEREBEZEZ
ER\FZAZt-RLEERHENBLH
BRGEWERERE o

REEERBELREBARADQE 2 EME
RRAIZBBTEEGIMRL 2 f#1E - BEEH
BRARZRD KR o

R-BEENGFNA-AZHEEERE &%
EABREREEMRABAN  KADA-R
TEMBARZESHAE  HZMBAREE
BREZBRBAMERN212%  ZEREZIEL
BIETENBLARICESEETERE ° %
REBEZENBARZMERZ50%  AIBEBE
B -RE—FE LZZEHBLARIZESR
BRER  5246,869,0008 T EEAES
BEFmME  TEZRBEF c FAHE—RKM
BLOR%  ZMB2RR 274,278,000 7T (=
TZ)\F 18,128,000 ) A ERBECER
ZRBEF - R=ZEENE=ZA=+-BzZ}%
TR BEELBERCERRMAEAR -
BZEMBARME  (—FTERBLARFE
REZRBBER212% °
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For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

37. RESERVES (Continued) 37. s @
The statutory surplus reserve can be used to set off against EEBREETAEEREE  MeER
accumulated losses whilst the enterprise expansion reserve can be RREAGRTAEAREEREIIEMIME
used for expansion of production facilities or increase in registered Ko
capital.
Equity participants reserve represented the excess of the fair value of RAZEARBEER-ZZLtENAZT/NA
the Convertible Bonds issued on 28th August, 2007 to all shareholders ME2BRRBETZITRRES D FEBHRE
over the proceeds received from the issue of Convertible Bonds, gain TARRESFERERBE-SSENF+—
on the surrender which was granted to an existing shareholder of the AZtTHARTFALAA-BRERRZBER
Company as at 24th November, 2008 and gain/loss on sale of certain BB URLERBNEE BEF-LF
assets/liabilities to a director and controlling shareholder of the EERERBRR2AE BB -
Company.
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For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

37. RESERVES (Continued) 37. s (@
THE COMPANY XAF
Equity Retained
Share-based participants Capital profits
compensation reserve  redemption (accumulated
Share reserve k& reserve  Translation loss) Total
premium ki g8\ &% reserve RERH
kiR LA it RO BERE  (RHR) L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn TiEn TEn TiEn TEn TEn TiEn

At It April, 2007 RZZEtE
mA-H 1,393,101 8,03 - 173 — 124,656 1,525,9]

Exchange differences RRAERER

arising on translation ReEmEE

recognised directly in equity  ZEHXZEE - - - - 90,357 - 90,357
Loss for the year KEEFHE — — — — — (872,259) (872,259)
Total recognised income and ~ FRE B2

expense for the year BXE% - - - - 90,357 (872,259) (781,902)
Issue of new shares (Note 36) B{THMR{ (Mff36) 1507889 = = — — — 1,507,889
Deemed distribution upon issue H %17 AR &

of convertible bonds SREDR - - (201,860) - - — (201,860)
Expenses incurred in connectionZ2 21T 1 3

with issue of shares BBZRY (9.402) = = - - - (9.402)
Exercise of share options /T (E I #E 53437 (6,488) - - - - 46,949
Exercise of warrants GBS F 16,675 = = = = = 16,675
Recognition of equity settled  ERMRALEZ

share-based payments URBAER 25 = 32,267 = = = = 32,267
Lapse of share options BREXN = (50) = = = 50 —
Final dividend for 2007 ZRRLERBRE - - - - - (51612) (51,612)
At 31st March, 2008 RFENE

Zh=t-H 2,961,700 33,760 (201,860) 173 90,357 (799,165) 2,084,965
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For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

37. RESERVES (Continued)

37. fkfs @)

Equity Retained
Share-based  participants Capital profits
compensation reserve  redemption (accumulated
Share reserve & reserve  Translation loss) Total
premium K E1N &% reserve RERH
RirifE Wbl fih R BERE  (RHR) a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER TR TEn TEn TEx TR
At 315t March, 2008 R-BENE
ZB=1-H 2,961,700 33,760 (201,860) 173 90,357 (799,165) 2,084,965
Exchange differences arising on ARAE
translation recognised REgmEL
directly in equity ZERER = = = = 76,048 = 76,048
Profit for the year AEERA - - - - - 1,705,182 1,705,182
Total recognised income EREEIZUA
for the year &g - - - - 76,048 1,705,182 1,781,230
Deemed distribution pon R ENB L Ak
disposals of subsidiaries R - - (64,290 — — — (64,290)
Surrender of share options ~ HEZHEHRE - (6453) 10,590 - - 6,453 10,590
Exercise of warrants EL F 1,045 — — — — — 1,045
At 35t March, 2009 RZZENEZF=1-H 296745 27,307 (255,560) 173 166,405 912470 3,813,540
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FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 38. UIRIpER 2

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the

purpose of providing incentives or rewards to participants.

Under the share option scheme, the Board of Directors of the
Company may grant options as an incentive to selected participants,
including Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe
for shares in the Company at the price determined by the Directors of
the Company, but shall not be lower than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the total number
of shares of the Company on the date of adopting the Scheme. An
option may be exercised at any time within ten years from the date,

upon payment of HK$| on acceptance.

The offer of a grant of share options under the scheme may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer by the grantee.The
vesting and exercisable period of the share option granted is
determinable at the entire discretion of the Board of Directors but the
exercisable period will not exceed a period of ten years immediate

after acceptance of grant.

ARREF-RBRE S ([ZETE) - UH
BREFENSEE -

REZGE AQNAESETRETSEE
(BREALARENBARZES) RHEBRE
FAHSEREEZHB - SERESTRE
RAEEBEZBRABLLTRG AR
BRATERARARDABRERKE A H
ERXFZBTE (XA ERONBEEE
RERHAMARERS B EBRR 2 FIK
mfE RiA2ARG2EEUREER
%) REZFTEAMREZBREBTERA
BT RO REREFTBARKRZTEA
Bz ARRAERITRODBEZ10% - RENEK
XNEREK  BRETERL ZBE05F
AR o

BEZEARMBREZEZS  TREZAY
BEr28 AMMARARR - CRIBREZR
BRARGTHEAMESS2REE  BEHT
SHRARARHEI0F -
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FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 38. LR ERZER (&)
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share options TEREBFAHES ESHRNBEZELF
held by employees (other than Directors) and movements in such BREZFEREBREECEE .

holdings during the year:

Number of share options
RRiEHE
Outstanding at 22.8.2007
RoF%LE
AB=tZH
A
Subscription Outstanding  Exercised Lapsed Granted  Exercised Outstanding Outstanding
price per share at before before aftfer aftfer at at
ERiER 142007 2282007 22.8.2007 2082007 2282007 31.3.2008 Surrendered  31.3.2009
Before After  Exercisable N-FFLE R-FFLE NoFELE Before Atter R-FFtE R-FFLE R-FFNE during R=FENE
Dateof grant ~ adjustment ~ adjustment  period BA-B ARZtzB ABZtZH adjustment adjustment ARZ+ZH ARZ+ZB ZA=t-B  theyear ZA=1-H
fHes dtw ABE ARM WAR  WERR  WEXY  @EW @EE  GERY  GERR WARR ERCRE  MAGK
HKS$ HK$ (Note)  (Note3)
£ oo (W2 (B&3)
(Note ) (Note2)
(1) (W22
522004 130 120 5.2.2005t0 422014 500,000 - - 500,000 540350 —  (04035) 33315 - 336315
“REpE ZERRECRRAE
ZRiA “R-MEZAMA
522004 130 120 5.2.2006 t0 422014 550000 - (50000) 500,000 540350 —  (204035) 33315 - 336315
& k3 i
ZRiR Z3-MEZARA
2042004 1.54 142 2042004 to 1942014 3,850,000 (60,000) — 3790000 4095853 —  (358070) 567783 - 567,783
ZEERE ZZEMEMAZTRE
MA=tA “E-MEMATAA
289.005 143 132 2892005 t0 27901 7250000 (5550000)  (100000) 1600000 1729120 —  (l0go70) 1,621,050 — 1820050
2 St “ETRFAACTNRE
hA=tAR ZR-BENA-THA
27.11.2007 - 656 27.11.2007 10 26.11.2017 - - - - — 10000000 — 10000000 (2000000) 8000000
TRRLE CRRtET-AoTLRE
t-A=ttH ZE-tE-AtAR

[2,150000  (5610000) (150000) 6390000 6905673 10000000 (4044210) 12861463  (2000000) 10861463
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For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 38. LR ERZ M &)
Details of share options held by the Directors of the Company are as HAARIEEHRAZEREFBNT ¢
follows:
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding at 22.8.2007
RoFRLE
MBZtZH Outstanding
RRTfE at 31.3.2008
Subscription Outstanding  Exercised Lapsed Exercised and 31.3.2009
price per share at hefore before after RZFFNE
ERIER 142007 2282007 2282007 na0 ZRz1-H
Before Adter Exercisable RoF8LE NCFFtE ROFELE Before Ater RZFFtE R-FEAE
Date of grant adjustment  adjustment period BA-B ARZ+ZH ABZ+ZB  adjustment adjustment ARZtZH ZRA=t-H
il L) He fried WAfTE  WERE  WERH L) HBE  KERE  HAGE
HKS HKS (Note 2)
iy En (rt2)
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Rr1) (H2)
522004 130 120 522005 to 422014 150,000 (100,000 - 50,000 54035 (54035) -
“REnE “2TRECRRAE
ZREA ZE-MECARA
522004 130 120 5.2.2006 to 42.2014 150,000 - - 150,000 162,105 (162105 -
“EENE “E5/ECREAZ
ZR2R “E-REZARA
2042004 .54 [4 2042004 to 1942014 100,000 - - 100,000 108,070 (108070) -
“RR0% Z3EMERAZTAE
BAZtH “3-MEMATAR
289.2005 |4 13 2892005 to 279.2015 - - - - - - -
e 3 i3 “ERREARCTNAE
MAZtAR “E-EFAACTLR

400,000 (100,000 ) 300,000 3420 (324210) =
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e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Details of share options held by other participants of the Company are

38. DIRIPERZ R @)

ARREMSREFE2BREFROT

as follows:
Number of share options
FRiEdE
Outstanding at 22.8.2007
RoFRLE
MBZtZH Outstanding
RRTfE at 31.3.2008
Subscription Outstanding  Exercised Lapsed Exercised and 31.3.2009
price per share at hefore before after RZFFNE
ERIRR 142007 228200 2282007 082001 ZAZ+-B
Before After Exercisable R-BBtE N-FBtE NCF%tE Before Ater RZEEtE R-FE0E
Date of grant adjustment  adjustment period WA-B ABZ+ZB MNRZtZH adjustment adjustment ARZtZH ZR=t-H
Riied HEH L4 fried WATE  WEAE  mEXY  #EE B HERR WAAHE
HKS HKS (Note 2)
A i (H2)
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(1) (W32
5.2.2004 130 120 5.2.2005 to 422014 5,400,000 (300,000) — 5100000  SSHST0 (4750000) 761570
“2IRECARA “ZRRFCARAE
“2-mEZARA
522004 130 120 5.2.2006 to 422014 6,150,000 - - 6,150,000 6646305 (4750,000) 189305
“TERECARA “RTAECRRRE
“E-REZARA
2042004 1.54 142 2042004 t0 1942014 15150000 (1,300,000 — 13850000 1497695  (14600000) 367495
“2EMEMA-TH “REMEMACTRE
“3-MEMATAR
26,700,000 (1,600,000) — 15100000 27125570 (24100,000) 3,025,570
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately preceding the
date of grant of 5th February, 2004, 20th April, 2004, 28th September,
2005 and 27th November, 2007 were HK$1.30, HK$ .48, HK$1.43 and
HK$6.56, respectively.

As a result of the open offer issue of the Company on 22nd August, 2007,
the number of share options and the exercise prices have been adjusted
in accordance with the requirements of Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing
Rules and the supplementary guidance issued by the Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited on 5th September, 2005.

On 27th November, 2007, 10,000,000 share options with estimated fair
values of HK$32,267,000 were granted to employees at the exercise
price of HK$6.56.

The vesting period ends on the date the exercisable period of the

share options begins.

No share options were exercised during the year.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year ended 3 st

March, 2008, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise

was HK$6.33.

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

38. Wik

Bt

1.

ﬂ_lr

Btz H® (@)

AAERAREBEEREAB_SZNE_A
BR-—ZEMNENA=+H - —ZEREF
AA=Z+NBR=ZFFtE+—HA=1tH
ZWHEABIAH1.308 T ~ 1.488 7T * 1.43
BT N6.56/8 T

BELETRAE17.03(1)FZREREE
BEXZMERVEAR-ZZREAAEA
B 2SI BREZERTEECH
R-ZBLENAZ T BUBRBEITRG
{F R o

R-ZZEZt&+-A=-+tARH
10,000,000 B B & (st 2 FE B
32,267,000 7t) E LA 1T FE6.568 TR F

BEARBRETESNEAHBARKGER

ERBETEETERE -

REE_EENF=A=T—-HLFEERCT
FEzBRENS  WMTERSHZMELIRE
£6.338 T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
These fair value were calculated using The Binomial model. The inputs
into the model for share options granted to employees on 27th

November, 2007 were as follows:

Share price as at grant date RERAHzZRE
Exercise price TRE
Expected volatility TR 1R
Remaining life R &R F HA
Risk-free rate BRERERE
Expected dividend yield FHRE W
Exercise multiple TEEH

Exit rate EERHEE

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price before the grant date for previous three
years. The exercise multiple was to account for the early exercise

behaviour of the share options granted by the Company.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the
options. The variables and assumptions used in comprising the fair
value of share options are based on Director’s last estimate. The value
of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective

assumptions.

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED 2009 Annual Report
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Wikt B2 % (@)
AVENRA-EXEAGHE - R=BBLE
t-A=ttARESRE 2 BREZ B
AZBEENT :

Employees

&S

HK$6.56 & T
HK$6.56 & T
60.60%

10 years F
3.27%

1.2%

4.00

10.00%

RHRELDRARLBHN=FNRTREE
EREMEE  TRMBBTIAAHBAD T
KHBREZRATESTS

BoBAMAE AEEHBREZATE
RBRELTERAA SRR BRYENE
EXRIEHEN  BEREETRETIRE
B2 TRBHMHE -



39. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

39. EBMBATIKBEERAR

The Group acquired the following subsidiaries with details below. AEERBUTHEBAR  FHEERT o

For the year ended 3 Ist March, 2009

(i)

Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star Property

BE_STNE=A=+-HLEE
(i) REBRHMEFME

During the year, the Group acquired certain properties and its Frn FAEEZEBREURE
related assets and liabilities, through public auction at a A R % 1,420,000,000t (H E R &
consideration of RMBI,420,000,000 (approximately 1,605,000,000/% 7T) MBI E=H K2
HK$1,605,000,000) from Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding, an independent BRERUWBETHEREBABEER
third party. The purchase was by way of acquisition of the entire BE -UWBUBAREZEBRMERLE
equity interests of Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star Property. This EMREZANET - LR ERE
transaction has been accounted as a purchase of assets and ABEREBAK -
liabilities.

HK$°000

TERT

Net assets acquired: PR AEERHE :
Prepaid lease payment BANEERE 682,586
Properties under development BRPYE 598,413
Assets classified as held for sales TEARFHEEEE 323,559
Bank balances and cash RITEFERRS 19
Total consideration satisfied by cash BRE UREXM 1,604,577

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration paid

Bank balances and cash acquired

WIBEL RSN M FE

ENRERE (1,604,577)
BAZRTEERRS 19

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the acquisition of subsidiaries

BAMBARIZAERES
ZEMRLER (1,604,558)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

39. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 39. EWEMBASIWBEERER &)

THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
(ii) Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin

During the year, the Group acquired certain properties and its
related assets and liabilities, through public auction from Tianjin
Hi-Tech Property, an independent third party in respect of the
acquisition of entire interest in Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin and the
shareholder’s loan for a total consideration of RMB334,160,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$377,601,000). This transaction

has been accounted as a purchase of assets and liabilities.

(ii)

REBEER

FR - AREEBHENAREARE
334,160,000t (48 % 7 49 377,601,000
BT ABYE=FREEREHERE
ETNERERBEEREE - WEA
BABZERZE2HBRERRRER 2
FRET MRRFERBAEERE
BAK -

HK$°000
TERT
Net assets acquired: FBAEERE
Prepaid lease payment ANHEERE 366,301
Other receivables Hfth eI FRIE 11,268
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRS 32
Total consideration BRE 377,601
Satisfied by: AR
Cash consideration ReRE 180,800
Deferred consideration included FFABNERRR
in trade and other payables Hith BN RIBZELERE 196,801
377,601
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEEZHESRLFE
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (180,800)
Bank balances and cash acquired BAZRTHERRSE 32
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of BAMBLAGRZREERES
the acquisition of subsidiaries ZEYRLEE (180,768)

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED 2009 Annual Report
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39. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(iii)

Huading

During the year, the Group acquired certain properties and its
related assets and liabilities, through public auction fromTianjin
Hi-Tech Development, an independent third party in respect of
the acquisition of 51.28% interest in Huading for a consideration
of RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$226,000,000). The Group is committed through a forward
contract to acquire the remaining equity interest of 48.72% in
Huading in a consideration of RMB190,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$214,700,000) by no later than 20th June, 2009
in accordance with a framework agreement which has been
entered into between the Group and Tianjin Hi-Tech
Development in December, 2008. This transaction has been

accounted as a purchase of assets and liabilities.

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

39. EBHBATIWBEERAR @

(i) #8

ER - AEEERHEUNAREBEARY
200,000,0007c (48 & # # 226,000,000
BT OBIS=AREBRERNBE
TMEREEBEEREE - WELE
AER51.28% @2 HNET o K&
ERBITYRHMENARERERR-Z
ERERAZTHRBEASEREXZS
REBR-SENFT_AFTLZESR
LK B A R%190,000,0007T (1%
R#9214,700,0008 T) E— ST WHEES
BT 248.72% % - KRR FEREA
EEREBAK
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e MERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

39. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
(i) Huading (Continued)

39. EBHBATIKBEERER @

(i) #& (&)

HK$°000
TET
Net assets acquired: FEAEERE:
Properties under development BRPUE 406,954
Other receivables H 1t P& KSR 0R 184,528
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRE 5
Other payables Hitb BT FRIA (147,059)
Taxation payable FE# T 1E (3,728)
440,700
Minority interests DERFER (214,700)
Total consideration BAE 226,000
Satisfied by: RAR
Cash consideration ReRE 226,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEELEZHESRLFE
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (226,000)
Bank balances and cash acquired BAZRTHERRSE 5
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect BAWBARIZRER
of the acquisition of subsidiaries ReZBYRLFERE (225,995)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

39. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 39. EWEMBATMBEERAR @
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Details of the aggregate net assets acquired in respect of the

BB LAME AT MEENEEFERERN

acquisition of the above subsidiaries are summaries below: R T
Fair
value
AFE
HK$°000
FERT
Net assets acquired: B AEERE :
Prepaid lease payment ENHEENE 1,048,887
Properties under development BRPUE 1,005,367
Assets held for sales HEEE 323,559
Other receivables H fth FE R FR IR 195,796
Bank balances and cash RITEEFRRS 56
Other payables H{th R IR (147,059)
Taxation payable FE S B 18 (3,728)
2,422,878
Minority interests DSERRER (214,700)
Total consideration BAE 2,208,178
Satisfied by: RAR
Cash consideration RENE 2,011,377
Deferred consideration included T ABAEERR
in trade and other payables Hitn B RIBZIBLERE 196,801
2,208,178
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WBEEE2REREFE
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (2,011,377)
Bank balances and cash acquired BAZRTEERRS 56
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect BAZENBEARZ
of the acquisition of subsidiaries BeRBRSEEYREFE (2,011,321)
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FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

39. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 39. EWEMBATKMBEERARE @
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
Year ended 31st March, 2008 BEE-FTN\E+-A=+-HLEE
During the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Group acquired certain REBZ-ZEN\F=A=1+-HILFE K&
properties and its related assets and liabilities, through public auction EEBHEUNEARY2,026,000,0007T (4
at a consideration of RMB2,026,000,000 (approximately 2,067,000,000/& 7T) MBI E=F K 2ERE
HK$2,067,000,000) from Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding, an independent third REBETHERENBEERER - B
party. The purchase was by way of acquisition of the entire equity WEXZERFEREERAARKZEREG
interests of X ZBHRIMERE B A A Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star AREERDAZHREZHFLET - LR
Investment Company Limited and X )£/ 2[5 X 12 & H IR 22 A Tianjin SERBAEERERAK -

Hi-Tech Sun Investment Company Limited. This transaction has been

accounted as a purchase of assets and liabilities.

HK$°000
TER
Net assets acquired: FEAEERE:
Investment properties REME 1,105,290
Properties under development BRPY= 961,230
Bank balances and cash RITEFERRE 35
Trade and other payables FEA RSN % HL fth FE ¥ TR 1R (35)
Total consideration satisfied by cash BRE UREXM 2,066,520
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEEZHESRLFE
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (2,066,520)
Bank balances and cash acquired BAZRTHERRE 35
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents BAZENEBRARZ
in respect of the acquisition REeRBSEBYRLERE
of subsidiaries (2,066,485)
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FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

40. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. HEMBAE

During the year, the Group discontinued its development and sales of ER o AREEHEHNERARALEHE
digital consumer products operation at the time of disposal of its HEEMZARREEXY - FBERHE14
subsidiaries. The details have been disclosed in Note 4. -

On 26th November, 2007, the Company entered into an agreement R-B2LF+—-A=+7B XATREEFY
with Golden Result Group Limited, an independent third party, for the 58 =7Golden Result Group Limitedit LA
sale of its entire equity interests in Matsunichi Hi-Tech Limited, B6,723,0008 THERNRABSRERA
Matsunichi Digital (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited and 7 » Matsunichi Digital (Macao
Matsunichi Technology (Dalian) Company Limited at a consideration of Commercial Offshore) Limited & # A &
HK$6,723,000. Those subsidiaries were engaged in manufacturing and (RE)BERDRLHRET LiHE - ZEME
trading of digital consumer products. ARREHEREEHE HEEM o
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For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

40. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

40. HEMRBAT &)

Net assets disposed of: HEZEERFE !
2009 2008
“EThE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTERT FERT
Property, plant and equipment M BERRE 128,158 79,200
Prepaid lease payments ANHEERE 2,804 3,402
Inventories 7B 198,788 5,238
Intangible asset BRERE 162,694 —
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITER 415,490 801
Bank balances and cash RTEERRE 740,399 11,146
Trade and other receivables FE W BR TR % L At BE LK SR T8 428,432 68,067
Tax recoverable A] W el B T8 — 178
Amount due to immediate holding company ~ FEfEZER A AR E (20,339) —
Trade and other payables FE A BR SN % HL fth FE 95X 1B (194,951) (55,234)
Derivative financial instrument TEEMIA (861) —
Bank loans RITER (1,033,868) (112,863)
Taxation payable FE S B 18 (66,019) —
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE (55,683) —
705,044 (65)
Consideration RE 993,925 6,723
288,881 6,788
Assignment of debts EREEE (228,741) —
Release of translation reserve upon disposals & K BREE 7 &% & 267,403 9,226
Release of capital reserve upon disposals HERRRERFRE — 3,605
Contribution from equity participants (Note) MRZANZE AR (FEE) (5,352) —
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries HEKB AR ZWaE 322,191 19,619
Satisfied by: XA
Cash "e 830,722 6,723
Amount due from a related company FE —RIBAE A RIFRIE 163,203 —
993,925 6,723
Net cash flow arising on disposals: HEEEZREREFHE !
Cash consideration HeRE 830,722 6,723
Bank balances and cash disposed of FHEZRTEFRRE (740,399) (11,146)
Net flow of cash and cash equivalents in HEZENBLARZRS
respect of the disposals of subsidiaries REEEENRLFHE 90,323 (4,423)

Note: The amount represents the sale of certain liabilities amounting to

approximately HK$5,352,000 to a Director and controlling shareholder

of the Company at HK$1.
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41.

42.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At 3lst March, 2009, bank deposits of HK$1,000,000 (2008:
HK$662,292,000) were pledged by the Group to the banks in order to

secure general banking facilities granted by the banks to the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

41.

42

BERR

R-ZBAF=RA=1+—-H FAEEQRTE
4R 17 7 71,000,000 T (ZZEENF ¢
662,292,0008 ) © LEBRTETFAEE
ZRITRE ©

B AEFIETE
R AR AE R ST BIE K

2009 2008
“EThF —ZENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FER
Contributions to mandatory provident BEMAEETE
fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) ([BEEtE ] #®HEK 360 393
Contributions to PRC state-managed H REBEAREEMHER
pension schemes 830 1,899
Amount charged to consolidated RS WARMBR 2T
income statement 1,190 2,292

The Group ceased to operate the defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of independent trustee. The Group now only
participates in the MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong which
is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the Scheme at rate specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the Scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in the

future years.

AEBE T BEFREBRERNG EURDIZM 2
REGNKE - ZRHECEERFREZEE
PREE  YUEEHARBERRMBULE
AER - AEBERKESEAMEEEESM
ReBBEETE  BESHENERRBFMA
BEFAERAMNEHEAREEEREM -
BREHAZEERAREZEED MRS
YAREHABARRABITEAEE - R
BRESHACRE  BEIREEEE YA
BEERAEE 2L XU 2 BHR - FKE
ARBRESH 2 - ERAREZBES
REZHR - BRILEDRWHRATHAEE
ERARFERMN2HEK -
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For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

42. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)
The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of pension schemes operated by the Chinese local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant cost of the payroll of these employees to
the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contribution.

43. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had entered into certain non-

cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises. The future

minimum lease payments committed by the Group in respect of the

leases fall due as follows:

42. BHBEFIEE (@)
ADARRFAZMBATD 2 EHEE RS
@RS RS H B2 RS - BEH
BARARREERAZARFERAZE -
BALEZRKLH BN  FRENZE
& REBABEARHH Y 2L - BEHE
HIRE 2 (5 -

43. EERORHE

AEEAEBREA

MNEER AEMTUETEERESNES
FUHHSLERY - AEAFZZAYOMER

FEAEXNRERAS 2XAHAT

THE GROUP
F5E

2009 2008
—ETAE “2RINF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FT#ERT FERT
Within one year —FR 500 5,077
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEZELF (AEMERBEER) 179 2,626
679 7,703

Leases are negotiated for a term ranged from 2 to 4 years. Matsunichi
Communications (Hong Kong) Limited, a company in which Mr. Pan is a
Director, is acting as agent for signing one of the tenancy agreements in

relation to office on behalf of the Group.

The Company had no significant operating lease commitments at the

balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

44. COMMITMENTS 44, #iE
THE GROUP
r5E
2009 2008
“TEAE —RENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Expenditure contracted for but not provided BRI {ERNEGEHBEREA
in the consolidated financial AT 58 B E L
statements in respect of: BE2AX
Additional capital injection in a subsidiary, HNB AR R ZERNTE
Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star Property FHEEMIE 73,450 =

Development expenditure of properties MEBRBX 872,173 —

Construction of club and theme park (Note) ZEEMEEELE (M) 180,800 —

Construction of educational facilities BEHBERIE 90,400 —

1,216,823 —

The Company had no significant capital commitments at the balance AREREE AL BENERERAE -

sheet date.

Note:During the year, the Group entered into an agreement with K2 1l M. AEEREERERENRNEXEEEEZS
EX*EEEEZE S Administrative Committee of Tianjin Hi-Tech BRI FHREREEEMREELBZHE
Industry Park in relation to the construction and operation of the club MmAKBFEERDRAK160,000,000 (FHZ
and theme park and the Group is committed to construct the club and 7180,800,000/&H) REUBEZES IR EED
theme park with minimum investment of RMB 160,000,000 (equivalent to &

HK$ 180,800,000).
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For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

45.

46.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 3Ist March, 2008, the Company provided an unlimited guarantee
and limited guarantee of HK$194,548,000 (2009: Nil) to a bank in
respect of credit facilities granted to a subsidiary. The aggregate
amounts utilised by the subsidiary at 3Ist March, 2008 were
HK$222,967,000 (2009: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 3Ist March, 2009, the Company was entered
into certain sale and purchase agreements in respect of disposal of the
entire interest of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Pan, a Director
and controlling shareholder of the Company has beneficial interest in
the Grace Dragon and Matsunichi Global, the purchasers. The details

are disclosed in Note 14.

Save as disclosed in Notes 14, 25, 29, 30, 3| and 43, during the year
ended 3Ist March, 2008, the Company has issued Convertible Bonds
with aggregate principal value of HK$1,325,607,000 and 220,324,447
Rights Shares to Goldin Group (Investment) and Mr. Pan. The interest
expenses on Convertible Bonds that paid to Goldin Group
(Investment) and Mr. Pan during the year amounted to HK$99,557,000
(2008: HK$49,982,000). HK$2,319,812,000 was received from Goldin
Group (Investment) and Mr. Pan upon the issue of Convertible Bonds
and Rights Shares during the year 31st March, 2008. 73,441,482
warrants had been issued to Goldin Group (Investment) and Mr. Pan in

conjunction with the Rights Shares.
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46.

BARER
RZBENF=ZA=+—-0  KARFH—BEKH
BRARAZEERMEMD —BRTEL -RER

R~ —I18194,548,0008 T (ZEENEF .
B)2ERER R-ZEENF=ZR=1-
B ZHEBAACBRA2EBEAEH
222,967,0008 T (Z2TNF 1 &) -

AEALIRS
REZ-ZZENE=ZA=1—-HLEFE XD
ARHEAREETHB AR 22 MR
VEZEBEERR - AARNEERERBRFEL
£ HEAE A HER Matsunichi GlobalZ B
R o FERME14RE -

BR EXXFfiEE14~ 25+ 29 30~ 31R4A3FTIHE
Eh REZ-EENF=ZA=1+—-HLEF
B AQTRITALEEES1,325,607,0008 T
2 BRES 220,324 MTRERB B F =
BEB (RE) RELLE - FRANTFREEE R
B) RERE2EHFE X 599,557,000/ 7T
(ZZZ/\F : 49,982,0008 ) - RZFEN
FZA=+-ALFERRTURKRES RH
BRRGE SUBSHEEE(RE) RELE
2,319,812,00058 7T ° 73,441,482 R R EFHT
RERERZTTSRER (RE) REBELE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 46. FEANEIX S (&)
Compensation of key management personnel TEEBASZEHM
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management ESRHEMIZEBABRERAZMEUT !

during the year was as follows:

2009 2008

“EEAE —2ENF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET Ti#T

Short-term benefits EHEAR 27,551 16,684

Post-employment benefits fRIERER 18 12

27,569 16,696

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the remuneration EECMENRENALZRERTSES
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market mMFMEESETE

trends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. TEMBATF1E

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 3Ist March, ARRZIEMBRAAR-ZENEFR-ZE
2008 and 31st March, 2009 are as follows: NE=ZR=+—-RAZH#BEAT :

Place of Paid up issued/

incorporation/ registered

registration/ ordinary share

operation capital Proportion of

it/ #RE equity interests
Name of subsidiary R/ B8 held by the Company Principal activities
WEATZR BENY Laks FRERERES A TERE

2009 2008
“E¥NE Z2E\F

Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B HE EE BE

Best Concord Group BV US$! - - 100% —  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong (E REER
ZBELEE/
g
Goldin Properties Group Hong Kong HK$ ! 100% - 100% —  Provision of administrative
Limited gt 187 service
RETHER
Gold Novel Limited B.V.I/Hong Kong uss| 100% - — —  Investment holding
ZBELHEE/ i1 REZR
g
Port Rich Limited Hong Kong HKS | - 100% — —  Investment holding
B ) REER
Proman International Limited Hong Kong HK$ ! - 100% - —  Investment holding
B 187 REZR
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(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Paid up issued/
registered

ordinary share

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

47. TEMBATFE @

operation capital Proportion of
i/ BRE equity interests
Name of subsidiary R/ 87/ held by the Company Principal activities
WEASEH SENY Liks FATmBRES I IERE
2009 2008
it £ 28 “RENF
Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
B HE EE BE

Matsunichi Digital PRC* RMB99,216,000 - - 100% —  Manufacturing and trading

Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. e * ARE of digital consumer products
RAREM K (RY) 99,216,000 REREEREREER

ARAF
Matsunichi Digital

Technology Limited Taiwan NT$10,000,000 - - 100% —  Manufacturing and trading
AENBENUNEERAR =) au of digital consumer products

10,000,0007C RERREABHEER

Matsunichi Information PRC* RMBI64,796,974 - - — [00%  Manufacturing and trading

Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. g * ARE of digital consumer products

RAGEEME (RYN) 164,796,974 7 REREEAR

ARAT HEER
GuangDong Goldin Properties Ltd. PRC* US$49,950,000 - 100% — [00%  Investment holding
(formerly known as Shaoguan e * 49,950,000 REER

Manhattan Enterprise Limited) e

ERGHREHERRAT
(FIRRHEREEXARLT)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZRE=A=1+—HLEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. TEMBATFE @)

(Continued)

Place of Paid up issued/

incorporation/ registered

registration/ ordinary share

operation capital Proportion of

i/ #RE equity interests
Name of subsidiary R/ B2 held by the Company Principal activities
WBATEE EERE LRk FAERRRET AL TERY

2009 2008
EENE “ERNE

Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B BEE EE BE

Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star PRC* RMB10,000,000 - 100% — 100%  Property development and
Investment Company Limited e * ARE investment
RRBEHEREARAA 10,000,0007 NEBRRRE
Tianjin Hi-Tech Sun PRC* RMB10,000,000 - 100% — 100%  Property development and
Investment Company Limited g * ARH investment
REBERAREARAT 10,000,0007 NxERERRE
Tianjin Hi-Tech New PRC* RMBA45,000,000 - 100% - —  Property development and
Star Property Development e * ARE investment
Company Limited 45,000,000 ¢ NEBRRRE
RERRHERNE
REBRAT
Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin PRC* RMB10,000,000 —  100% - —  Property investment
Investment Limited bl ARE NERE
RRBRERAERRAT 10,000,000
Tianjin Huading Real PRC* RMB100,000,000 —  51.28% - —  Property development
Estate Limited e ARH ESNE
RREREHEBRAT 100,000,0007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

< These companies were established in the PRC in the form of wholly

foreign-owned enterprise.

(@) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 3 |st

March, 2009 or at any time during the year.

(b) The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors of the Company, principally affected
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

*

(b)

e MBERRME

For the year ended 3 st March, 2009 BE—EZAE=A=+—HLEE

47. TEMBATFE @

ZERRAUNBBELERAERERL

B>

“ERNFZA=t-AHFREN
A SMBASLEEAERES

RARBEZZ2ER  LRIEXLT
ZHBRARTRNELAGKELFER
BYREAEEEEMEREZRT -
ESRANHEBHEBLAR 2HBEES
REBERAR

200074 BRBELRERAT @



Financial Summary

Year ended 31st March,
BEZE=A=t+—-HILEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“EBEAFE CZETN\E ZEBEETtLHE CZTERFE CZETHE
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
FHET FTET FTET FTET FET
RESULTS E 3
Turnover SRR —_ 4,297,788 3,070,579 2,313,706 1,703,752
Profit before taxation B A1 s Al 666,260 1,157,962 212,942 219,706 215,111
Taxation i1 64,033 (471,312) (10,765) (4,654) (18,888)
Profit for the year FERA 730,293 686,650 202,177 215,052 196,223
At 31st March,
R=A=+-—H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“FFAE -FINF SEFRLF ZEFERF -FFLF
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
FHET TET TET TET TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets EE#AE 7,626,542 8,660,280 3,246,415 2,480,723 1,872,172
Total liabilities BELAE (2,802,912)  (4570,878)  (1,450,673)  (1,135,276) (683,550)
Total equity RSB 4,823,630 4,089,402 1,795,742 1,345,447 1,188,622
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